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CORPORATE PROFILE
ABEEIT

Maoye International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated
in the Cayman lIslands with limited liability on 8 August 2007. The
Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) are principally engaged
in the operation and management of department stores and property
development in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”). The shares
of the Company were listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 5 May 2008 (the
“Listing Date”).

With a unigue operation model of “retail + commercial property”, the
Group has been growing rapidly since its establishment, and has
achieved scale expansion across the country by duplicating this model.
Supported by lands acquired at low costs, the Group uses its physical
retail to nurture property, building a closed ecological cycle in which its
core business supplements and supports each other.

Since Shenzhen Dongmen store, the first store of the Group, opened in
1997, the Group has been concentrating on development and careful
planning for over 20 years, and leveraging its strong competitiveness
and reform and innovation keeping pace with times, the leading position
of the Group in Southern China has been strengthened step by step.
The Group has also further expanded into the most developed markets
with the fastest growth rate in Eastern China, Southwestern China and
Northern China, becoming the industry leader in numbers of regions. As
at 31 December 2022, the Group had 48 stores with total gross floor
area of approximately 3.099 million sg.m., of which self-owned properties
accounted for 77.9% in gross floor area. The major cities under its
coverage include Shenzhen and Zhuhai in Guangdong; Chengdu,
Nanchong and Mianyang in Sichuan; Chongging; Wuxi, Yangzhou,
Taizhou, Nanjing and Huai’an in Jiangsu; Zibo, Laiwu and Heze in
Shandong; Qinhuangdao and Baoding in Hebei; Shenyang and Jinzhou
in Liaoning; Taiyuan in Shanxi; and Hohhot and Baotou in Inner Mongolia.

The Group actively grasps the development trend of medium-to-high end
commercial retail in China, leverages the Group’s years of experience
in operation and brand resource advantages of strategic cooperation,
empowers innovation, integrates online and offline business development,
deeply cultivates consumer experience and technology applications, and
strives to achieve the transformation from traditional department store
retail to new retail business model.

This annual report, in both English and Chinese versions, is available on
the Company’s website at www.maoye.cn.

Shareholders may at any time change their choice of language(s)
(either English only or Chinese only or both languages) of the corporate
communications of the Company (including but not limited to annual
reports, interim reports and circulars) by sending reasonable prior notice
in writing to the share registrar of the Company in Hong Kong, Tricor
Investor Services Limited, at 17/F, Far East Finance Centre 16 Harcourt
Road Hong Kong.

Shareholders who have chosen to receive the Company’s corporate
communications in either English or Chinese version will receive both
English and Chinese versions of this annual report since both languages
are bound together into one booklet.
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Mission Statement
NEEdR

INTELLIGENCE
CREATES
A HAPPY LIFE
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

MFRE

OPERATING RESULTS

REERIE

For the years ended 31 December

HE12B31HLLEE
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
20225 20214 20205 20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000
NSOl \ERTT ARETT ARETT AR®TR
Total sales proceeds and HEMGREREERALLE
rental income' 8,989,387 11,547,236 10,688,894 15,415,742 15,787,762
Total operating revenue? IR A 4B g2 5,395,975 6,399,996 8,016,385 7,940,561 7,848,911
Operating profit RS 1,510,410 1,614,821 1,304,819 2,701,985 3,007,175
Profit/ (Loss) for the year FEFE/ (58) 205,184 110,592 (248,996) 471,046 1,127,221
Profit attributable to: FE(LF %
— Owners of the parent —SARERREA 228,093 65,685 (174,636) 186,262 799,403
- Minority interests - DERERER (22,909) 44,907 (74,360) 284,784 327,818
Basic earnings/ ((0ss) SRELRH/ (BB
per share (RMBJ? (NR¥m) e 0.04 0.01 (0.08) 0.04 0.16
Total sales proceeds and rental income Total operating revenue
HEFSMIERAEW A 4EEE RE UG A LEZE
(RMB million) (RMB million)
(AR¥BEBEET) (AR¥EE&ET)
20000 100000
15,788 15,416 4000 7849 7,941 8,016
15000
6,400
11,547 6000
10,689 5,396
10000 8,089
4000
5000
2000
0 0
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MTE AR

HIGHLIGHTS OF CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION

REMBRRREE

As at 31 December

#128318
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
20225 20214 20205 2019 20185
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
NS \RETT ARETR ARETR ARETR
Assets and liabilities BEKREE
Total assets BEPE 50,236,899 51,744,914 51,307,134 53,830,059 50,969,724
Total liabilities aEeE 33,898,808 35,477,911 35,851,470 37,675,030 35,674,838
Total equity REmiaEE 16,338,091 16,267,003 15,455,664 16,155,029 15,294,886
- Attributable to owners —HREREFEA

of the parent FE{L IR 13,824,204 13,715,262 12,968,145 13,030,346 12,300,008
- Attributable to minority interests  —/DEUR RIE(L R 2,513,887 2,551,741 2,487 519 3,124,683 2,994,878

Notes: FasE -

1.

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 F£E R %

Total sales proceeds and rental income represent the sum of total sales proceeds
from concessionaire sales and revenue from direct sales at the department stores of
the Group.

Total operating revenue represents the sum of the Group’s revenue and other
income.

The calculation of basic earnings per share for the year ended 31 December 2022
is based on the net profit attributable to owners of the parent of approximately
RMB228,093,000 and weighted average number of ordinary shares of
5,140,326,000.

The calculation of basic earnings per share for the year ended 31 December 2021
is based on the net profit attributable to owners of the parent of approximately
RMB65,685,000 and weighted average number of ordinary shares of
5,140,326,000.

The calculation of basic loss per share for the year ended 31 December 2020
is based on the net loss attributable to owners of the parent of approximately
RMB174,636,000 and weighted average number of ordinary shares of
5,140,326,000.

The calculation of basic earnings per share for the year ended 31 December 2019
is based on the net profit attributable to owners of the parent of approximately
RMB186,262,000 and weighted average number of ordinary shares of
5,140,326,000.

The calculation of basic earnings per share for the year ended 31 December 2018
is based on the net profit attributable to owners of the parent of approximately
RMB799,403,000 and weighted average number of ordinary shares of
5,140,326,000.

1.

HEPMMSRERAEWABIERIEAERMAR
[E4EF MBI A8 EE  EIHUWR AR IE B U A KRR

RS A MBERIE A MU A R B A A BIABAD o

HE2022F 12831 HIEFENESREARRFT
BRESATIRDZRBE ARG EFEOARE
228,093,0007T K& B, 847 & 15 B N0 #E 39 58 IR
5,140,326,0008& 515 ©

HE2021F 12831 HIEEFENSREARRFITS
BRESATIRIFEARGEEIEOARY
65,685,0007T & B 217 IR (7 BY h0 #E S 49 E 3E A%
5,140,326,00008 51 & ©

HE2020F 12831 HIEFENESKREREIET
REFATREFEABGLFHEENARE
174,636,0007T K B 817 IR DBV F I @R
5,140,326,00008 51 & ©

HE2019F 12831 HIEFENESREARRFITL
BRESATIRDZRBE ARG EFEOARE
186,262,0007T K B 8 17 IR 19 U N #E T 35 & 5@ Ak
5,140,326,0008& 515 ©

HZE2018F12B31HIEEENEREEARAT
REFFADHEFTEABGFIABOARE
799,403,0007t & B # 1T A BN F 9@ AR
5,140,326,00008 51 & ©
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RETAIL NETWORK

ZEME
Gross
Floor Area
No. Store Name Province (sq.m.) Open Date Ownership Retail Format
EE@mRA
st PIE&TE #1145 (FAK) BEBH MEFRBE ER
1 Shenzhen Dongmen Guangdong 40,710  Mar-1997 Owned Department Store
IR PIIE [& 1997438 BE BE
2 Shenzhen Huagiangbei Guangdong 63,243 Oct-2003 Leased Department Store
RN RIEE E® 2003104 BE BE
3 Shenzhen Shennan Guangdong 10,607 Dec-2004 Leased Department Store
IR EE IS &R 20044128 BE B8
4 Shenzhen Nanshan Guangdong 44,871  Sep-2009 Owned Department Store
wIN LS [& 2009498 BE BE
5 Zhuhai Xiangzhou Guangdong 35,937  Nov-2001 Leased Department Store
HBEMNE E® 20015114 HE BE
6 Shenzhen Outlet Guangdong 23,141  Dec-1999 Leased Outlets
R B B &R 19994124 HE BN ARHT
7 Chongging Jiangbei Chongaing 67,537  Oct-2004 Leased Department Store
BRETILE BE 20044108 HE BE
8 Rendong Sichuan 31,078 Sep-1998 Owned Department Store
NG )11 1998498 =SES) BE
9 Guanghua Sichuan 67,914 Dec-2009 Owned Department Store
FEEE o)l 20091248 BAE BE
10 Chengdu Chunxi Sichuan 32,066 Nov-2013 Owned Shopping Centre
B EERIE g)1] 2013F 114 BE B
11 Yanshikou Maoye Complex  Sichuan 42,897  Jun-2005 Owned Department Store
B OXERME )11 2005464 =SES) BE
12 Nanchong Wuxing Sichuan 25,695 Nov-2001 Owned Department Store
ERAEE o)1 20014118 BE BE
13 Mianyang Xingda Sichuan 27,795 Sep-2008 Owned Department Store
AR I S g)1] 200898 BE BE
14 Zibo Maoye Times Square ~ Shandong 86,677 Apr-2015 Owned Shopping Centre
MBI ERERE LIER 2015544 BB B
15 Laiwu Maoye Complex Shandong 94,616 Dec-2017 Owned Shopping Centre
RETRERME ITE=S 20174124 BB BY RO
16 Heze Huihe Shandong 31,187 Mar-2011 Owned Department Store
SR BAE Lz 20114E38 BE BE
17 Zibo Maoye Complex Shandong 100,724  Aug-2013 Owned Shopping Centre
PR E SN INE=S 2013484 BB B

6 MAOYE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED X ¥ B EZERBRAE
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RETAIL NETWORK

ZEME
Gross
Floor Area
No. Store Name Province (sq.m.) Open Date Ownership Retail Format
BE@mRA
st PIE&TE H#1% (FAK) BEBH MEFRBE ER
18 Zibo Maoye Plaza Shandong 36,791 Dec-2008 Owned Department Store
HIBREREISE e 20085128 BA BE
19 Zibo Maoye Taikerong Mall ~ Shandong 25,337  Sep-2011 Owned Department Store
MERERERE SIS INE=S 2011494 BB BE
20 Zibo Maoye Shopping Mall ~ Shandong 9,761 Sep-1999 Leased Department Store
IR E B IS IT=S 1999498 HE BE
21 Wuxi Shopping Mall Jiangsu 200,433  Oct-2007 Managed Shopping Centre
EmHBYPOIE L&k 20074108 EIEE B
22 Taizhou Maoye Dongjing Jiangsu 86,066 Jan-2015 Owned Shopping Centre
TINKERES JLEF 2015514 BB Y
23 Nanjing Maoye Complex Jiangsu 63,116  Nov-2016 Owned Department Store
EEBETS: S JLER 20165114 BAE BE
24 Wuxi Yibai Jiangsu 78,695 Mar-2016 Owned Shopping Centre
BHEEE JTER 2016434 SES) B
25 Yangzhou Wenchang Jiangsu 21,485 May-2011 Owned Shopping Centre
wINZ IS JLEF 2011454 BB Y
26 Taizhou First Department Store  Jiangsu 40,358 Oct-2009 Owned Department Store
ZEME—BEE AR 20094104 BAE BE
27 Huai’an Maoye Complex Jiangsu 59,856 Apr-2019 Owned Shopping Centre
TER IR ERME JTER 2019444 SES) B
28 Taizhou Maoye Complex Jiangsu 108,566 Dec-2021 Owned Shopping Centre
ENE SN JLEF 20214124 BE BYH O
29 Taiyuan Maoye Complex Shanxi 252,882 Nov-2014 Owned Shopping Centre
KRR E K S I 2014118 BB By
30 Taiyuan Liuxiang Shanxi 30,616 Dec-2008 Owned Department Store
KIRPEIE L7 2008F 124 BA BE
31 Baotou Maoye Complex Inner Mongolia 63,268 Jan-2017 Owned Shopping Centre
Phase |
BEARE Xt —HAE NES 20175F1H BB BY RO
32 Victory Times City Inner Mongolia 190,915 Nov-2010 Leased Shopping Centre
SRS e 20108114 HE YR
33 Victory Mall City Inner Mongolia 131,987 Dec-2013 Owned Shopping Centre
MR ERIE NED 20135124 SES) BYHO
34 Baotou Donghe Victory Inner Mongolia 74,709  Nov-2014 Owned Shopping Centre
Plaza
BERAE SN ESE AN 2014118 BB By

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 F£E R %
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RETAIL NETWORK

ZE MK
Gross
Floor Area
No. Store Name Province (sq.m.) Open Date Ownership Retail Format
EE@mRA
st PIE&TE #1145 (FAK) BEBH MEFRBE ER
35 Victory Commercial Building  Inner Mongolia 48,187 May-2003 Owned Department Store
LN EEE A 2003454 BE BE
36 Victory International Plaza Inner Mongolia 83,969 Oct-2008 Owned Department Store
SN EREISE NES 20084104 BB BE
37 Victory Shopping Centre Inner Mongolia 63,173 Sep-2006 Owned Department Store
HZH BB OE AN 2006494 BB BE
38 Baotou Victory Commercial  Inner Mongolia 77,500 Oct-2010 Owned Department Store
Building
BEESMBEEE NED 20104F104 BB BE
39 Shenyang Tiexi Liaoning 48,496  Jul-2012 Owned Outlets
B EE S RE 20124784 BE B SRHET
40 Jinzhou Maoye Complex Liaoning 48,578 Feb-2019 Owned Shopping Centre
RN 7R 2 K M = 2019528 BB B0
41 Xiandai Shopping Plaza Hebei 36,926 Oct-2006 Leased Department Store
RABYESE AI3E 20065104 HE BE
42 Qinhuangdao Mall Hebei 26,697 May-1996 Owned Department Store
=E25BEE JAE 1996558 B B8
43 Qinhuangdao Jinyuan Hebei 46,287  Jan-2002 Leased Shopping Centre
REEERIE G 2002418 HE B0
44 Qinhuangdao Jindu Hebei 46,610 Sep-2008 Owned Department Store
=E25THEIE Ak 2008498 SES) BE
45 Hualian Commercial Building Hebei 12,737  Mar-1989 Owned Department Store
i EE JAE 1989438 B B8
46 Baoding Yanzhao Hebei 61,881 Sep-2014 Owned Department Store
REFHIE G 201449H BB BE
47 Baoding Guomao Hebei 24,826 Dec-2010 Owned Outlets
RERE S AI3E 20106128 BB B HRHET
48 Qinhuangdao Maoye Hebei 171,333  Oct-2019 Owned Shopping Centre
Complex
REBRERMIE AE 20194104 BB BY RO

8  MAOYE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 72 Bl p 5 fRA & ANNUAL REPORT 2022 EEH %



CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EERBEE

In 2022, the international political and economic environment was
complicated whereas the COVID-19 pandemic spread in various parts of
China and the pandemic lingered in certain regions across the country.
Given the impact of a variety of unexpected factors, the recovery of
China’s economy and consumer market has been affected to a certain
extent. Since the second half of 2022, with the pandemic under control
and the proven effect of macro-control policies, China’s economy has
gradually seen steady recovery and physical commercial activities have
gradually resumed also.

In recent years, with the advancement of science and technology and
the development of the society, the commercial retail industry has been
characterised by new features in the post-pandemic era, and offline
consumption has been suppressed greatly because consumers paid
more attention to experience and become more rational, thus giving
birth to a more obvious consumption hierarchy. Given the new market
challenges, the Group refined its capabilities under the unfavourable
environment, and capitalised on in commercial retail management
experience accumulated for more than 20 years to create spatial
structures and service contents that meet the needs of consumers in
the post-pandemic era. On the New Year's Day of 2023, the Group
welcomed the opening of a new project in Chengdu Shuangliu Maoye
Times Square, which has become a benchmark for regional commerce,
and the Group’s brand influence continued to increase accordingly.

After more than 20 years of rapid development, the Group had 48 stores
in China as of the end of 2022. In terms of store categories, the Group
owns 18 shopping centres, 27 department stores and 3 outlets. All the
Group’s physical stores can be found in prime locations and business
districts with high pedestrian flow which is able to generate obvious
benefits of offline traffic. Boasting the cluster effect of business districts,
the influence of stores continues to expand.

In 2022, the Group also continued to innovate and initiate the upgrade of
urban consumption through various measures. On the one hand, in light
of the changing spiritual demand of consumers in the new economic era,
we continued to upgrade and optimise the layout and offerings of stores,
introduced premium brand names, enabled store transformation and
upgrades, provided customers with diversified and trendy consumption
experience and established strong membership loyalties. On the other
hand, the Group actively strengthened its capability in digitalised
operation, continuously iterated and updated its online business
platforms and facilitated the rapid growth of online sales.

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 F£E R %
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N TR ER_+THENEETESTEL
BoiJEnErBBERAEEEERNTH
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EERBEE

Looking forward to 2023, the upcoming post-pandemic era will probably
give hope to the full recovery of the Group’s business. Under the
favourable environment, the Group will continue to focus on its principal
business and take commercial retail business as the core pillar to
promote diversified and cross-regional collaborative development in every
aspect. Meanwhile, the Group will closely follow the development trend
of consumption modes and business growth, continue to strengthen
its capability in providing quality services, improve the operational
efficiency of stores and optimise the store layout. In addition, the Group
will definitely empower the development of technology and regard
technological innovation as the core advantage of the Company. The
Group will also take the lead to explore and innovate, promote digital
upgrading, explore new scopes for business growth, create a diversified
business ecosystem and bring about additional vitality to the long-term
development of the Group.

Finally, on behalf of the Board, | would like to thank all of our employees

for their dedication and to express my gratitude to our shareholders and
customers.

Huang Mao Ru
Chairman

24 March 2023

10  MAOVYE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 72 Bl fe 5 fRA 5
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EREmR DM

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 F£E R %

MACROECONOMIC OVERVIEW

In 2022, due to the repeated impact of multiple unexpected factors
including the international situation turbulence, domestic epidemic
outbreaks and extreme high temperature weather, the complexity,
severity and uncertainty of China's economic development
environment has risen, which was reflected in the continuous
evolution of the triple pressures of demand contraction, supply
shock and weakening expectations. Facing the stormy political
and economic environment at home and abroad, the Party and the
government has led all people in the country to calmly respond,
coordinate development and safety, and effectively respond to
various unexpected factors, and has achieved social stability and
high-quality economic development. In 2022, the gross domestic
product (GDP) exceeded RMB120 ftrillion, an increase of 3% over
2021, equivalent to approximately USD18 trillion, ranking the second
in the world; the total retail sales of social consumer goods in the
year reached RMB44 ftrillion, of which the online retail sales of
physical goods reached RMB12 ftrillion, up 6.2% year-on-year. China
remains the second largest consumer market and the first largest
online retail market in the world.

Looking forward to 2023, with the overall opening of domestic
epidemic prevention and control measures, various policies issued
at the national level to expand domestic demand and promote
consumption, the expansion of offline consumption scenarios will be
accelerated and the consumer market will recover steadily.

—. REREERE

20225 LEIEEFEHE  BEANEIE
HELZE BiEs B RXRELEBESN
AENKEBEFR BEAKSEERIREDN
BRI FREME BT BBIRAE
TR U AR HAATE R TEHRESS = E R /]
MFEEC BEHEASREXNERINE
ANKERE BENMBNSEE2ESE
ARNERY REZRNZE BNE
HEEBHEPRNENERE ERTHE
METMEENSESHRE 202245
NEEMBERERARBI20BE T
2021 F B R3% T EFETHI18EESE
TORBBHRE 1, 2FEHEHER
TEMBERARBMUE R HEFE
Ym SRR EEERED T ARKI2EE
7T AL EG.2%  BREAZEERIKE
THRHEMBHNE - APETET S

RE2023F  BBEEARBEHENZE
B BREEHEEAT RHENS
BEHR SR T HESRMIRIERE
REHETIZHRD B
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
ERET SRR

OPERATIONAL REVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group operated and
managed a total of 48 stores in 21 cities nationwide with gross floor
area of approximately 3.1 milion sg.m., of which operating area
attributable to self-owned properties accounted for 77.9% (including
gross floor area leased from related parties, 84.4%). Coverage of
key cities included Shenzhen and Zhuhai in Guangdong; Chengdu,
Nanchong and Mianyang in Sichuan; Chongging; Wuxi, Yangzhou,
Taizhou, Nanjing and Huai'an in Jiangsu; Zibo, Laiwu and Heze in
Shandong; Qinhuangdao and Baoding in Hebei; Shenyang and
Jinzhou in Liaoning; Taiyuan in Shanxi; Hohhot and Baotou in Inner
Mongolia. As at 31 December 2022, the distribution of stores of the
Group was as follows:

—.EERROE

HE2022F12831HIEEE  REF L
REE2 1A T & E R EEI8KIE
MEEEBAZELASIEEF K HERE
BV EEBIELEAT7.9% SRS
THEEEEBLLAERS44% BENE
B T B g B BRI R BRSO 1 A ER
MR KRER , BB ; JIHEH BN
MN-FERRER ; LWESE  KEMT
2, HIEREENRE ; BERERG&IB
M5 WLARER ; UEARR SRS
FEo B E2022F 128310 KEBEPHE
DT

Southern  Southwestern Eastern Northern
China China China China Total
i il ER A st
Number of Stores (stores) FE#HE (X) 6 7 15 20 48
Gross Floor Area (sq.m.) BEAER (TAHK 218,409 294,982 1,043,668 1,541,576 3,098,635

Notes:
1. Southern China region includes: Shenzhen and Zhuhai.

2. Southwestern China region includes: Chengdu, Nanchong, Mianyang and
Chongaing.

3. Eastern China region includes: Zibo, Laiwu, Heze, Wuxi, Yangzhou, Taizhou,
Nanjing and Huai’an.

4. Northern China region includes: Hohhot, Baotou, Qinhuangdao, Baoding,
Shenyang, Jinzhou and Taiyuan.

As one of the leading mid-to-high-end physical retailers in China, the
Group has been committed to building a good reputation through
diversified product mix and continuously improving consumer
experience, so as to continue to attract new and old customers.
During the reporting period, the Group laid foundation for its principal
businesses and made intensive and penetrative efforts, consolidated
its own resilience and strength in a complicated and ever-growing
market environment, continuously improved the quality of operation
and management, fully dug into the growth potential of high-
quality commodity resources and continued to grow through brand
adjustment and creative marketing. The business operation has
gradually recovered, and sustainable and healthy development has
been achieved.
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Major Operational Highlights

1.

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 F£E R %

Adapt to consumption upgrade, continuously adjust store
content and enhance core competitiveness

During the reporting period, the Group continued to promote
the upgrading of business format and the optimization of
store content, and made continuous adjustments from the
two aspects of “store” and “goods”, in order to improve the
shopping experience of consumers. On the one hand, the Group
continued to strengthen the building of large stores, promote the
transformation of stores to shopping centers and community life
centers, and increase the proportion of experiential businesses.
On the other hand, through the optimization of brand
management, the Group continued to introduce high-quality first
stores and trendy popular categories, and update the content
of stores. At the same time, the Group continued to improve the
quality of our products, strengthen the building of strategic core
commodity clusters, and further consolidate the market leading
position of its core categories such as affordable luxuries and
cosmetics, in order to achieve further growth in market share
and sales performance.

During the reporting period, the Group continued to adhere
to high-quality merchant management with deepened store
value management system, conducted in-depth data mining
and analysis on the value of key stores, made scientific plans
and adjustments to the layout of multi-purpose stores, and
further clarified its store and pricing policies, in order to achieve
effective improvement of store performance. In terms of store
operation, the Group has always insisted on improving the
refined management capabilities of existing stores. Through the
analysis of store consumption data, the layout of store formats
and categories is reasonably planned according to the customer
flows, so as to enhance the customer attraction of the stores
and increase the customer’s time spend and consumption levels
in the stores.

At the same time, the Group adjusted the layout of product
portfolios by enhancing the efficiency of supply chains, so as
to strengthen product competitiveness in various aspects.
For example, self-owned cosmetics achieved online and
offline segmentation of inventories, which empowered the
lean management of self-owned cosmetics in a better way
and reduced the pressure of manual reconciliation of terminal
staff. The Group has developed an independent procurement
system of orders, which achieved accurate controls over the
order and sales information of self-owned cosmetics. 8 stores
operating high-end cosmetics nationwide fully applied the
cosmetics management system and the granularity of which
reached single-product level, coupled with the penetration into
more opportunities for business growth by big market data and
artificial intelligence, all of these improved the working efficiency
of cosmetics teams.
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The Group has always adhered to a customer-centric approach,
focusing on the enhancement of customer experience and the
improvement of customer service levels. During the reporting
period, the Group optimized the functions of the customer
parking system in stores, and further improved and upgraded
the customer service facilities such as maternity rooms
and customer service centers in some stores. Through the
enhancement of store environment, experience, products and
services, the competitiveness of store products and services are
improved, and more attractive commercial space and life content
is presented to the customers.

Actively promote service upgrade and organizational innovation
through technology empowerment

During the reporting period, the Group adhered to the concept
of technology empowering operation and management, and
continued to inject more vitality into the long-term development
of the Group through the planned promotion of a series of digital
technologies.

The Group’s offline stores have fully promoted the cloud POS
system, replacing traditional manual cashiers with various
mobile payment methods. Online cashiers have also integrated
additional functions such as membership points, shopping
coupon management, and electronic invoices to improve
operational efficiency and user experience. In addition, the
Group has started to promote cleaning robots in some stores,
which helps to improve work efficiency, extend working hours
and increase work scenarios, and also helps to reduce the risk
of manual contact and virus transmission during the epidemic.

During the reporting period, the Group’s three-in-one store
concessionaire-supplier “Xiao Hong Mao” merchant service
platform was continuously optimized, providing updated
functions including real-time access to commodity inventory,
optimization of back-end management operations, and
optimization of material malls, which further improved the
convenience of merchant services and the timeliness of
payment reconciliation, and increased merchant satisfaction and
cooperation efficiency.
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3. Adhere to multi-channel business development and build an

3 BB RERRFEE 1EEDH
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interconnected full retail ecological layout

During the reporting period, the Group continuously developed
and improved the Group’s online marketing APPs such as
“Mao Yue Hui” and “Mao Le Hui” with the aim of “digital retail
and smart business”. The Group continued to expand the
depth and width of the Group’s online business layout through
digital applications such as WeChat official account, enterprise
WeChat, and Tik Tok live-streaming.

The Group continued to follow new forms, new channels and
new contents of marketing activities, and actively researched
differentiated, trendy and youthful brand strategies in response
to the consumption upgrading and consumption stratification
trends in the current economic environment. In addition, the
Group adheres to the interaction and innovation of online and
offline marketing, strengthens the coordination and linkage of
omni-channel marketing activities, in order to achieve two-
way traffic attraction between online and offline. During the
reporting period, the Group continued its in-depth integration of
offline store sales with the online marketing APP “Mao Le Hui”,
promoted the functional integration and data interconnection
of online APPs such as “Mao Yue Hui” and “Mao Lehui”, and
realized the synchronization of online and offline products. At the
same time, the Group has begun to integrate the supermarket
business of some offline stores into the online platform, and
continued to optimize the back-end inventory management, so
as to achieve detailed inventory management at the supply end
and real time monitoring of online and offline inventory.

During the reporting period, the Group’s stores comprehensively
promoted the live broadcast among sales team, carried out
marketing activities with implemented overall marketing plans,
improved cross-merchant marketing linkages, and enhanced the
explosive power of marketing activities. At the same time, the
stores have increased the promotion points of the online APP
to help attract new fans. The functions of the online platform
have also been continuously optimized and upgraded according
to the ever-changing market trends, and constantly carried out
innovative marketing activities and optimized online product
functions. The WeChat mini-program “Mao Le Hui” increased its
exposure through WeChat Moments advertising and attracted
more than 2 million visits throughout the year. At present, there
are more than 300 brands on “Mao Le Hui”, among which
the online sales of various brands including Lancome, SK-II,
Shiseido, La Mer have exceeded RMB20 million annually. In
2022, the sales of the entire online platform achieved RMB640
million.

B EE LR

REHRN AEBBEEUTHFTE
E - BEEBFXIAER THMEA
TEAEENTRRE TREBIF
AR EEHAPP » MBI IS AR
CEME - HEERFHFLER
FEIRAEER LEBHRR
EMEE-

AEBERFBERIEHETEIANT
X HRBEBMNFTAS  HHERK
BIRIBE TN HEAREEED ERE
S W FTE R FRIE
FEAMBREE UL NEE
RGBT EHENEMAN
MsERESHETHNREHS
BREB LR TEMm5IM - WMEHA
REBFERAR TPISHER R
BB L EPAPPEITRERS  #E
MRINE ) ~ REEE I FHE LAPPH
e BANBEEE  BREME
EETRAY LH-FAR > REERDK
FER B 2 4R T PIE BB X0
ERTaETRS UHKEETR
EEFEENEL BEREBEN
BEAECEEURSR LB TER

BRI

WEHARN AERETMAEE2EE
EEEEERTE SMERTEH
ERES HTEREHEAR IS
EBEPNEEME BRI EE
WIgE D RIRF ZMEIEMELR
APPHIME BE LUIR S RIFT IR AD » 1245 F
BNFEETHERLEHR LR
EERE(ENTHIZBEMEHERE
WERHI FAEAMNEHETE M
BIETERERINE REE \ME
NEFRBEAMEBRRBEESRKBN
RN E  2F5|RHEB
WBo00OEBE AR BR R&EE 18
SRAE B BG00ME > HAHEE SKINE
EE RBEZHREZLEARMEERE
BEBESBBBEARK20008 T
2022F iR F R RIHEREERA
RIE6.41E 7T

MAOYE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED %2 BIBRZER A RA T

15



As the main bridge for maintaining and communicating with
members of the Group, the “Mao Yue Hui” membership
management system has been continuously upgraded in
various aspects during the reporting period. The membership
management system has been further improved. All aspects of
the membership management system have been connected
through digital operation, and the data review and refined
analysis of marketing costs have been achieved. During the
reporting period, the Group began to promote enterprise
WeChat as a new channel for linking members, stores and
brands, and achieved favorable member interaction effects.
During 2022, The Group's "Mao Yue Hui" membership
management system attracted 1.1 million new members. As of
the end of 2022, the total number of members served by’Mao
Yue Hui” reached 16.8 million people and the total consumption
of members reached RMB4,713 million.

Promote the construction of new stores steadily to prepare for
better future growth

During the reporting period, the Group on the one hand
continued to promote the integrated development of offline
stores and consolidate the Group's national store layout. At the
same time, the Group actively promoted the crowd gathering
and traffic attraction of newly opened stores. The Group's
Maoye Times Square located in Shuangliu of Chengdu was
officially opened on the New Year's Day of 2023. The project
has a floor area of about 32,000 sg.m. and a business area
of about 17,800 sg.m. It is located in the core residential area
of Shuangliu and is surrounded by large communities. It is the
first community life center "built for home" in Shuangliu and is
expected to contribute sales of about RMB220 million annually.

At the same time, the reconstruction of Maoye Complex (North)
located at Yanshikou in Chengdu and the planning of the plot
owned by Chengdu Maoye Investment Co., Ltd., a subsidiary
of the Group (i.e. the original Jincheng art palace project), are
steadily pushing ahead.
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Improve financial situation, bolster asset value and improve cash
flow level

During the reporting period, the Group actively improved its
financial situation, enhanced the efficiency of its assets and
consolidated its risk resistance capability. During the reporting
period, Zhongzhao Investment Management Co., Ltd.* (1JK
REEEABRAT, “Zhongzhao Investment”), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Group, disposed its shareholding
in INZONEGROUP Co., Ltd.* (REEERKRMERAIE>
“INZONEGROUP”, a company incorporated in the PR.C. and
listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange, stock code: 600858)
on the open market. Please refer to the announcements of the
Company dated 21 June 2022 and 22 September 2022 and
the circular dated 29 November 2022 for details. In December
2022, Chengshang Group Holding Co., Ltd. (FiE £ EZR A IR
‘~5], “Chengshang Holding”), an indirect non-wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Group, entered into a relocation compensation
agreement for the relevant land, properties and facilities with
relevant parties. Please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 22 December 2022 for details. The transactions
above helped the Group to improve its asset quality, fully release
the market value of its assets, enhance its cash flow level, in
order to further focus on the development of its main business
lines. On the other hand, the Group replaced some of its existing
debts, further reducing financing costs and optimizing the
debt structure. As of 31 December 2022, the Group’s interest-
bearing liabilities were further reduced from the end of the interim
period, while financial costs decreased, which helped the Group
to continuously improve its profitability and achieve stable and
healthy development of its operations.
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lll. FUTURE OUTLOOK = RREE

Looking ahead, the comprehensive opening of domestic epidemic
prevention and control will bring dawn to the comprehensive
recovery of the Group's retail business. The Group will continue
to focus on its main business under the favorable factors of the
overall environment, and comprehensively promote diversified and
cross-regional coordinated development of its core commercial
retail business. The Group will follow the development trend of
consumption and commerce, continue to consolidate its high-quality
service capacity, improve the operating efficiency of stores, and
optimize the store layout. At the same time, the Group will hold on
to technological empowerment, take technological innovation as the
company's core advantage, actively explore and innovate to promote

RERK BEBERZRBHENZEKR
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ERFCAR BB EBIE RSB
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digital upgrading, develop new areas of business growth and create BERIABZLEC
a diversified business ecosystem, and inject more vitality into the
long-term development of the Group.
PERFORMANCE OF TOP 10 STORES' A+ RFIERER
Total Sales
Proceeds and Operation Gross
No. Store Name Rental Income Period? Floor Area
HEFRE
MIEKRES
ik PFIERE WA 4858 [5 %2 KEmER
(RMB’000) (Year) (m)
(NR#TT) () (m?)
1 Shenzhen Huagiangbel HYIEERILIE 1,710,783 19.3 63,243
2 Taiyuan Maoye Complex KRR ZERME 879,318 8.1 252,882
3 Shenzhen Nanshan wIIE WS 668,135 13.3 44,871
4 Guanghua HER 636,675 13.1 67,914
5 Taizhou First Department Store  ZME—BF &S 460,685 13.3 40,358
6 Shenzhen Dongmen YIRS 451,837 25.9 40,710
7 Victoria Commercial Building LR EES 369,894 19.7 48,187
8 Zibo Maoye Times Square EE R R 359,103 7.7 86,677
&5 5
9 Xiandai Shopping Plaza BREYESE 289,805 16.2 36,926
10 Qinhuangdao Jindu =E2EESHE 260,679 14.3 46,610
Notes: B

1. Top 10 department stores are ranked by total sales proceeds and rental income 1.
during 2022.

2. Operation period was calculated until 31 December 2022. 2.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Total Sales Proceeds and Rental Income

For the year ended 31 December 2022, total sales proceeds and
rental income of the Group were RMB8,989.4 million, representing a
decrease of 22.2% as compared to 2021, mainly due to the impact of
the macroeconomic environment and the domestic COVID-19 epidemic,
which impacted the overall performance of the retail industry as well as
the operation of the Group's stores.

A %5 (o] B8

HEFSIIERAE WA LEEE

B E2022F 128310 LEE  AEBNHE
FTiSTBRABEW A EEE A AR 1#8,080.48
BT 2021 FEER K T22.2% T EZHNT
RERKEREBERENFTESEBENTE TE
TEERREL AR HAREFPENLKETR
BT —ENRE.

For the year ended
31 December

HE12A31HILEE

2022 2021

2022£ 20214

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETFT AERBKEEFIT

Total sales proceeds from concessionaire 45 5F BN & 4848 6,435,823 8,601,035

sales

Direct sales income BHiERA 1,502,247 1,768,471

Rental income HEWA 1,051,317 1,177,730
Total sales proceeds and HEFTEMIBREEW A LR

rental income 8,989,387 11,547,236

During the year ended 31 December 2022, among the total sales
proceeds and rental income of the Group, total sales proceeds derived
from concessionaire sales accounted for 71.6%, those derived from
direct sales income accounted for 16.7%, and those derived from
rental income accounted for 11.7%. For the year ended 31 December
2022, the Group’s total sales proceeds from concessionaire sales were
RMB6,435.8 million, representing a decrease of 25.2% as compared
to 2021; direct sales income was RMB1,502.2 million, representing a
decrease of 15.1% as compare to 2021; rental income was RMB1,051.3
million, representing a decrease of 10.7% as compared to 2021.
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The total sales proceeds and rental income of the Group in the four major
regions are set out as follows:

KREBENROAR A HEFFERIERIEEW
ANBERIB I FRFAR ¢

Total sales proceeds and

rental income

HEMRBREARBERALEE

For the year ended 31 December

HE12A31ALEE

2022 2021 Change
20224 20214 k)

(RMB’000) (RMB’000)
(AR¥FmT) (NEBEFT) (%)
Eastern China =R 1,335,686 1,543,639 -13.5%
Southern China Erg 3,290,793 4,047,741 -18.7%
Southwestern China ii=] 1,186,428 1,665,507 -28.8%
Northern China 75 3,176,480 4,290,349 —26.0%
Total At 8,989,387 11,547,236 —22.2%

For the year ended 31 December 2022, sales of apparels (including
men’s and ladies’ apparels) accounted for 27.8% (2021: 27.4%),
jewelries accounted for 22.9% (2021: 22.6%), leisure and sports goods
accounted for 10.9% (2021: 11.4%), shoes and leather goods accounted
for 5.1% (2021: 5.9%), cosmetics accounted for 17.4% (2021: 16.6%)
and others (including branded merchandise, children’s items, bedroom
and household goods, home appliances, food, family goods, fresh
products, retail, ancillary and others) accounted for 15.9% (2021: 16.1%).

For the year ended 31 December 2022, revenue of the Group's main
business amounted to RMB4,349.7 million, representing a decrease of
16.9% as compared to RMB5,234.6 million in 2021. The main reason
for the decrease in revenue was due to the spread of the COVID-19
epidemic in many domestic areas in 2022, the Group's stores in various
locations were short-term closed or had shortened business hours,
resulting in a decrease in store operating revenue. In addition, the
COVID-19 epidemic has spread in many places, which have also affected
consumers' travel ability, psychological expectations and willingness
to purchase houses, which has had a certain impact on the Group's
property sales.
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Other Income

For the year ended 31 December 2022, other income of the Group
amounted to RMB1,046.3 million, representing a decrease of 10.2% as
compared to RMB1,165.4 million in 2021. Other income mainly includes
management fee income from franchised counters in stores, promotion
income and credit card handling fee income. The amount of such income
is generally linked to the sales level of the stores, and has declined to a
certain extent during the reporting period.

Cost of Sales

For the year ended 31 December 2022, cost of sales of the Group
amounted to RMB1,851.0 million, representing a decrease of 14.7%
as compared to RMB2,170.2 million in 2021. The cost of sales mainly
includes the cost of purchase of and changes in inventory in stores, as
well as the cost of properties sold, and the decline in cost of sales is
generally in line with the decline in revenue.

Employee Expenses

For the year ended 31 December 2022, employee expenses of the Group
amounted to RMB454.6 million, representing a decrease of 3.8% as
compared to RMB472.4 million in 2021, mainly due to the Group actively
reduced costs and increased efficiency, and carried out organizational
structure adjustment, which led to the reduction in labor costs and the
overall improvement of operating efficiency.

Depreciation and Amortization

For the year ended 31 December 2022, depreciation and amortization of
the Group amounted to RMB1,049.2 million, representing a decrease of
4.9% as compared to RMB1,1083.4 million in 2021, mainly due to certain
of the Group's assets have completed depreciation and amortization.
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Other Operating Expenses

For the year ended 31 December 2022, other operating expenses of
the Group amounted to RMB1,010.8 million, representing a decrease
of 12.3% as compared to RMB1,153.1 million in 2021. The decrease
in other operating expenses was mainly due to the Group's effective
control of various expenses as well as the year-on-year decrease in
utility expenses, promotion and advertising expenses and repair and
maintenance expenses.

Other Gains and Losses

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group recorded other gains
of RMB486.7 million, representing an increase of 299.5% as compared
to RMB121.8 million in 2021. Such increase was mainly attributable to
gain from converting certain of the Group’s investment in associates to
financial assets, and gain from the relocation transaction of Chengdu
North Railway Station.

Operating Profit

Due to the combined effects of the above-mentioned factors, the Group
recorded operating profit of RMB1,510.4 million for the year ended 31
December 2022, representing a decrease of 6.5% as compared to
RMB1,614.8 million in 2021.

Finance Costs

For the year ended 31 December 2022, finance costs of the Group
amounted to RMB1,050.3 million, representing a decrease of 8.4% as
compared to RMB1,146.5 million in 2021. This was primarily due to
the reduced interest-bearing liabilities in 2022, and the financing cost of
interest-bearing liabilities decreased slightly, which caused the year-on-
year decrease in financial costs.

Income Tax Expense

For the year ended 31 December 2022, income tax expense of the
Group amounted to RMB236.3 million, representing a decrease of 28.6%
as compared to RMB331.1 million in 2021, mainly due to the decrease in
corporate income tax and land appreciation tax paid in this year.
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Profit for the Year

As a result of the foregoing, net profit for 2022 was RMB205.2 million,
representing an increase of 85.5% as compared to RMB110.6 million in
2021,

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s cash and cash equivalents
amounted to RMB556.3 million, representing a decrease of RMB640.8
million as compared to the balance of RMB1,197.1 million as at 31
December 2021. The main cash inflow and cash outflow are set out as
follows:

(1) Net cash inflow of RMB1,249.5 million from operating activities;
(2) Net cash inflow of RMB715.7 million from investment activities,
mainly including:

(i) the cash outflow of RMB123.0 million from purchases of items of
property, plant and equipment;

(i) the cash inflow of RMB20.3 million from disposal of items of
property, plant and equipment;

(iiiy the cash outflow of RMB21.0 million from purchase of financial

assets at fair value through profit or loss;

(iv) the cash inflow of RMB395.7 million from disposal of financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss;

(v) the cash inflow of RMB166.3 million from disposal of investment
properties;

(vi) the cash inflow of RMB537.2 million from disposal of
equity investments designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income;

(vi) the cash outflow of RMB44.7 million for dividend paid by
subsidiaries to non-controlling shareholders; and

(viii) the cash outflow of RMB221.6 million for the increase of pledged
bank deposits.
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(8) Net cash outflow of RMB2,551.3 million from financing activities,
mainly including:

(i) the cash inflow of RMB5,545.6 million from the increase in bank
loans and other borrowings;

(i) the cash outflow of RMB6,996.2 million for the repayment of
bank loans and other borrowings;

(i the cash outflow of approximately RMB748.2 million for the
payment of interest;

(iv) the cash outflow of approximately RMB428.2 million for the
principal and interest elements of lease payments;

(v) the cash inflow of approximately RMB1,401.0 million from
borrowings from fellow subsidiaries; and

(vi) the cash outflow approximately RMB1,325.3 million for the
repayment of borrowings from fellow subsidiaries.

Interest-bearing Liabilities

As at 31 December 2022, total bank borrowings and corporate bonds
of the Group were approximately RMB12,864.3 million (31 December
2021: RMB14,314.9 million). The interest-bearing gearing ratio’ and net
interest-bearing debt to equity ratio® were 25.6% and 75.3%, respectively
(81 December 2021: 27.7% and 80.6%, respectively).

1 Interest-bearing gearing ratio = total interest-bearing debt/total
assets = (bank borrowings + corporate bonds)/total assets

2 Net interest-bearing debt to equity ratio = net interest-bearing debt/
equity = (bank borrowings + corporate bonds — cash and cash
equivalents)/equity

Charge on Assets

As at 31 December 2022, certain borrowings of the Group were
secured by the Group’s land and buildings, investment properties, right-
of-use assets, properties under development and certain shares of a
subsidiary with net carrying amounts of approximately RMB3,699.5
million, RMB9,059.8 million, RMB233.4 million, RMB1,929.6 million and
RMB999.6 million, respectively.
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Foreign Currency Risks

During the reporting period, the Group recorded a net foreign exchange
loss of approximately RMB2.3 million. Since the business of the Group
was mainly focused in mainland China, its operation was not exposed to
any foreign exchange fluctuation risk.

As of 31 December 2022, the Group had not entered into any
arrangement to hedge its foreign currency risk. The Group’s operating
cash flow was not exposed to foreign exchange fluctuation risks.

SIGNIFICANT TRANSACTIONS

Disposal of Shares In INZONEGROUP

During the period from June 2022 to September 2022, Zhongzhao
Investment Management Co., Ltd.” (KR EESEER LT,
“Zhongzhao Investment’), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group,
disposed its shareholding in INZONEGROUP Co., Ltd.* (iREE 5 B RZ1D
BR/AE], “INZONEGROUP”, a company incorporated in the PR.C.
and listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange, stock code: 600858) on
the open market. Please refer to the announcements of the Company
dated 21 June 2022 and 22 September 2022 and the circular dated 29
November 2022 for details.

Entering into the Relocation Compensation Agreement for
the Land, Properties and Facilities

In December 2022, Chengshang Group Holding Co., Ltd. (BiFE%E
EZ=RERAE, “Chengshang Holding”), an indirect non-wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Group, entered into a relocation compensation
agreement for the relevant land, properties and facilities with relevant
parties. The amount of the relocation compensation is approximately
RMB415.70 million. Please refer to the announcement of the Company
dated 22 December 2022 for details.

The transactions above helped the Group to improve its asset quality, fully

release the market value of its assets, enhance its cash flow level, in order
to further focus on the development of its main business lines.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Huang Mao Ru (“Mr. Huang”), aged 57, is the founder of the
Group and the Chairman, Executive Director, Chief Executive Officer
and the Chairman of Nomination Committee of the Company. He is
also a director of various companies in the Group. Besides, he is a
director and owner of Maoye Department Store Investment Limited and
MQY International Holdings Limited, the controlling shareholders of the
Company. Mr. Huang is responsible for the overall development and
strategic planning of the Group. He has over 20 years of rich experience
in department store and commercial real estate industries. Before
commencing his department store business, Mr. Huang established
Maoye (Shenzhen) Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. (552 GE1I) Ei#h
ERARAT) in 1992 and Shenzhen Maoye (Group) Co., Ltd. GEIII
RE (EE) BIDABRAT)IN 1995. Mr. Huang had been a director and
the Chairman of Maoye Commercial Co., Ltd. (“‘Maoye Commercial’)
(FREFERMNABIE/AT) (@ company listed on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange, stock code: 600828.SH) since July 2005 and resigned on 9
February 2009.

Ms. Lu Xiaojuan (“Ms. Lu”), aged 49, is the executive Director and
Chief Financial Officer of the Company. She holds a Master of Business
Administration degree from the University of Ballarat, Australia. She joined
the Group in March 1997 and had previously served as the manager of
the finance department, the general manager of the audit and supervision
department, and the general manager of the contract management
center, deputy general manager of the financial management center
and general manager of the financial management center of the Group.
Ms. Lu was appointed as the Chief Financial Officer of the Group
since 5 December 2019. Ms. Lu currently also serves as director of
certain subsidiaries of the Group. Ms. Lu has over 20 years of financial
management experience in the PRC.
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Mr. Tang Haifeng (“Mr. Tang”), aged 41, was appointed as an
executive Director of the Company on 10 March 2023. Mr. Tang joined
the Group in December 2021 and served as the general manager of the
financial management centre of the Company. Mr. Tang has been the
director of Maoye Commercial Co., Ltd. (a joint stock limited company
listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange, stock code: 600828, an indirect
non-wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) since December 2022.
From September 2019 to December 2021, Mr. Tang served as the senior
director of the financial centre of Fantasia Group (China) Co., Ltd. From
June 2017 to September 2019, Mr. Tang served as the deputy director
of the financial management department of Shenzhen Huagiang Group
Co., Ltd. Before that, Mr. Tang worked in the financial management field
in various large companies such as Shenzhen OCT Properties Co., Ltd.
and Konka Group Co., Ltd. Mr. Tang holds a bachelor's degree from the
School of Accounting in Hunan University. Mr. Tang has rich experience in
financial management.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Tony Huang, aged 27, was appointed as a non-executive Director
of the Company on 10 March 2023. Mr. Tony Huang joined the Group
in April 2018. He previously served as the general manager of Maoye
Digital Intelligence Information Technology (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. (an
indirect non-wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company), the general
manager of Shanxi Maoye Land and Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.
(an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company). Mr. Tony Huang
has been the director and CEO of Maoye Commercial Co., Ltd. (a joint
stock limited company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange, stock
code: 600828, an indirect non-wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company)
since November 2019. He is currently the director of Shenzhen
Maoye Shangsha Co., Ltd. (an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company). Mr. Tony Huang holds a bachelor's degree in Computer
Science from the University of Toronto, Canada. Mr. Tony Huang is the
son of Mr. Huang.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Rao Yong (“Mr. Rao”), aged 64, is an independent non-executive
Director of the Company, the chairman of Audit Committee and a
member of Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee. He
joined the Group in April 2020. Mr. Rao is a certified public accountant
in the PRC and obtained a diploma in accounting in 1980 from Guangxi
University of Finance and Economics, the PRC. Mr. Rao was the former
chairman of the Shenzhen Institute of Certified Public Accountants* (G
YHEMETEEHZEE) and the vice chairman of the Guangdong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants* (ER& M EstEMtrEalg
). From May 2015 to May 2021, he served as a member of the Sixth
People’s Congress of Shenzhen City* CRIIFE/NEA AT and a
member of the project budget committee of People’s Congress Standing
Committee of Shenzhen City CRIITTAARGTEIFEHEZEZE ). He is
currently the President of Shenzhen Guangxi Chamber of Commerce. He
is also an independent non-executive director of Kaisa Group Holdings
Limited (@ company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited, stock code: 1638.HK) and SMI Culture & Travel
Group Holdings Limited (a company listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, stock code: 2366.HK). From 18
December 2018 to 22 August 2022, Mr. Rao served as an independent
non-executive director of Shandong Sinobioway Biomedicine Co., Ltd. (a
company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange, stock code: 002581.
SZ). From 1991 to 1997, he served as a director of the Audit Bureau of
Shenzhen City, and from 1984 to 1990, he served as a chief of the Audit
Bureau of Wuzhou City, Guangxi Province. Mr. Rao has over 30 years of
accounting and auditing experience.

Mr. Pao Ping Wing (“Mr. Pao”), aged 75, is an Independent Non-
executive Director, the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee and
a member of both the Audit Committee and Nomination Committee of
the Company. He joined the Group in August 2007. Mr. Pao obtained
a Master of Science degree in Human Settlements Planning and
Development from the Asian Institute of Technology in Bangkok, Thailand
in 1980. In the past years, Mr. Pao has been appointed to serve on
various government policy committees and statutory bodies, especially
those involving town planning, urban renewal, public housing, culture and
arts and environmental matters. He is an honorary fellow of the Hong
Kong Institute of Housing. He was elected as one of the Ten Outstanding
Young Persons of Hong Kong in 1982 and one of the Ten Outstanding
Young Persons of the World in 1983. He was previously also a member
of the Urban Council of Hong Kong. Mr. Pao was appointed as a Justice
of the Peace in 1987 and was a special committee member of the
9th and 10th sessions of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference Guangzhou Committee. Currently, he is also an independent
non-executive director of a number of companies listed on the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
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Mr. Gao Yajun (“Mr. Gao”), aged 47, is an independent non-
executive Director of the Company and a member of Audit Committee
and Remuneration Committee. He joined the Group in April 2020. Mr.
Gao is a senior accountant in Hong Kong, Certified Public Accountant
in the PRC and Australia, and member of the Chartered Institute of
Management Accountants. He is also a member of the Hong Kong
Independent Non-Executive Director Association Limited. Mr. Gao
graduated from Deakin University in Australia with a master's degree
in professional accounting in 2002, holds a PhD in applied economics
(Financial Mathematics and Financial Engineering) from Shanghai
University of Finance and Economics and has been an executive
director and a partner of Baker Tilly Hong Kong since February 2010.
He had been an independent non-executive director of Nanjing Panda
Electronics Company Limited (a company listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange, stock code: 553.HK, and Shanghai Stock Exchange,
stock code: 600775.SH) since 29 June 2018, and he ceased to serve
as its director on 29 June 2021. Mr. Gao has engaged in auditing and
consulting work for a long time and has extensive experience in financial
management.

Ms. YAN Xin (“Ms. Yan”), aged 38, has been appointed as the
Secretary of the Company in June 2022. Ms. Yan is a member of both
the Hong Kong Chartered Governance Institute and the Chartered
Governance Institute in the United Kingdom. Ms. Yan has obtained a
master's degree in Corporate Governance and Compliance from Hong
Kong Baptist University, a master’s degree in Finance from Suffolk
University in the United States of America and a bachelor’'s degree in
Business Administration from Shenzhen University. She has over 10 years
of experience in company secretarial matters and investor relationship
management.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Group recognises the vital importance of good corporate governance
1o its success and sustainability. The Company is committed to achieving
a high standard of corporate governance practices as an essential
component of high quality and has introduced corporate governance
practices appropriate to the operation and growth of its business.

The Company has applied the principles set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (the “Code”) as contained in Appendix 14 of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”). In the opinion of the board of directors of the Company
(the “Board”), the Company has complied with the code provisions set
out in the Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2022, save
and except for the deviation from code provision C.2.1. Key corporate
governance principles and practices of the Company as well as the
details of the deviation are summarised below.

The Board will continue to enhance its corporate governance practices
appropriate to the operation and growth of its business and to review
such practices from time to time to ensure that the Company complies
with statutory and professional standards and aligns with the latest
developments.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Responsibilities and Delegation

The Board is responsible for overall management and control of the
Company. Its main roles are to provide leadership and to approve
strategic policies and plans with a view to enhancing the interests of
shareholders. All directors carry out their duties in good faith and in
compliance with applicable laws and regulations, making decisions
objectively, and acting in the interests of the Company and its
shareholders at all times.

All directors have full and timely access to all relevant information as
well as the advice and services of the Company Secretary and senior
management. Any director may request independent professional advice
under appropriate circumstances at the Company’s expense, upon
making reasonable request to the Board.

The Board reserves its rights for making decision on all major matters
of the Company, including approval and monitoring of all policy matters,
overall strategies and budgets, internal control and risk management
systems, material transactions (in particular those that may involve
conflict of interests), financial information, appointment of directors and
other significant financial and operational matters.
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The Board has delegated a schedule of responsibilities to the executve ZEEEERK—BHEELE R T EAABHITE
directors and senior management of the Company. These responsibilites HRESREEE 2L SFEIE HITES
include implementing decisions of the Board and directing and co- &HIRE IETREFASATNABEER
ordinating day-to-day operation and management of the Company. BB -ZE G EHGTAESERFERES -

The delegated functions and responsibilities are periodically reviewed — _E#ft A B7EFTIEM E B35 A0 > BHEE

by the Board. Approval has to be obtained from the Board prior to any EE&HL o
significant transactions entered into by the aforesaid officers.

BOARD COMPOSITION EETRAA/M

The following chart illustrates the current structure and membership of FTRETEEGREESSTNRITEER

the Board and the Board Committees: BRE :

Board of Directors

Executive Directors #1TZ%

Mr. Huang Mao Ru, Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer
BRNEE (EFRREEHITE)
Mr. Zhong Pengyi, Vice Chairman (resigned with effect from 10 March 2023)
BRRIAE BIEFL) (1F2023835 104 5 F)
Ms. Lu Xiaojuan, Chief Financial Officer
EB/NEZ T (BEHMFHEE)
Mr. Tang Haifeng (appointed with effect from 10 March 2023)
ISR (FR20234E3F 10H EZ1F)

Non-executive Director JE#H1TEE
Mr. Tony Huang (appointed with effect from 10 March 2023)
BUEIE A (FR20232E35 10H #EZ1E)
Mr. Wang Bin (resigned with effect from 10 March 2023)
FIRSEE (722023435 104 §HE)

Independent Non-executive Directors 517 JEH1TEE
Mr. Rao Yong &7k e 4
Mr. Pao Ping Wing JEIAZR 4
Mr. Gao Yajun S ae E At

Audit Committee

Remuneration Committee

Nomination Committee

BRZEZEY HNEEE RYZEE
Mr. Rao Yong (Chairman) Mr. Pao Ping Wing (Chairman) Mr. Huang Mao Ru (Chairman)
K E (F/E) IR L (F/F) =XWMELE (F/F)
Mr. Pao Ping Wing Mr. Rao Yong Mr. Rao Yong
HIRER ST A S KA
Mr. Gao Yajun Mr. Gao Yajun Mr. Pao Ping Wing
SEEE e [SEEE e HIRES L
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The biographical details of the directors are disclosed under the section
headed “Biographies of Directors and Secretary” in this annual report.

The Company has established different mechanisms to ensure
independent views and input are available to the Board.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Board has at all times
met with the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment
of at least three independent non-executive directors (representing at
least one-third of the Board) with one of them possessing appropriate
professional qualifications and accounting and related financial
management expertise.

All directors have brought a wide range of valuable business experience,
knowledge and professionalism to the Board for its efficient and effective
functioning. Moreover, through active participation in Board meetings,
taking the lead in managing issues involving potential conflict of interests
and serving on the Board committees, all independent non-executive
directors have made various contributions to the effective business
direction of the Company.

Apart from regular Board meetings, the Chairman also held 1 meeting
with the independent non-executive directors without the presence of
other directors during the year.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each
independent non-executive director in respect of his independence in
accordance with the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules. The Company is of the view that all independent non-
executive directors are independent.

All independent non-executive directors receive fixed fees for their role
as members of the Board and Board committees. There is no other
emoluments paid to the independent non-executive directors to avoid the
potential biases in their decision making.

The Board also reviews the attendance of each of the independent non-
executive directors at Board and Board committees meetings, as well as
the time contributed to his roles in the Board and Board committees to
ensure that he has devoted sufficient time to discharge his responsibilities
as a Director of the Company.

The implementation and effectiveness of the above mechanisms are
reviewed on an annual basis. The Board considers that such mechanisms
had been implemented properly and effectively in the year ended 31
December 2022.
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Code provision C.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman and chief
executive should be separate and should not be performed by the same
individual.

Mr. Huang Mao Ru is Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer
of the Company. As Mr. Huang is the founder of the Group and has
extensive experience in the department store industry and commercial
real estate industry, the Board believes that it is in the best interest of the
Group to have Mr. Huang taking up both roles for continuous effective
management and business development of the Group.

The Board considers that the current structure of vesting the roles
of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer in the same person will not
impair the balance of power and authority between the Board and the
management of the Company.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

All directors are appointed for a specific term. All the executive directors,
non-executive director and independent non-executive directors of the
Company are engaged on a service contract/letter of appointment with
the Company for a term of three years.

According to the Company’s Articles of Association (the “Articles of
Association”), all directors of the Company are subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years and are eligible for re-election at
annual general meetings of the Company. Any new director appointed
by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall submit himself/herself for re-
election by shareholders at the first general meeting and any new director
appointed by the Board as an addition to the Board shall submit himself/
herself for re-election by shareholders at the following annual general
meeting.

In accordance with the Articles of Association, Mr. Huang Mao Ru, Mr.
Rao Yong and Mr. Pao Ping Wing are subject to retirement by rotation
at the forthcoming 2023 annual general meeting of the Company (the
“2023 AGM”). Each of them, being eligible, has offered himself for re-
election at the 2023 AGM. In accordance with the Articles of Association,
Mr. Tony Huang and Mr. Tang Haifeng who are appointed as Directors
by the Board shall hold office only until the 2023 AGM and, be eligible,
have offered themselves for re-election. The Board and the Nomination
Committee recommend their re-appointments. The Company’s circular,
sent together with this annual report, contains detailed information of the
Directors recommended for re-election as required by the Listing Rules.
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Training and Continuing Development for Directors

Directors shall keep abreast of responsibilities as directors of the
Company and of the business activities and development of the
Company and comply with the code of conduct of the Company at all
times.

Each newly appointed director receives induction on the first occasion
of his/her appointment, so as to ensure that he/she has appropriate
understanding of the business and operations of the Company and that
he/she is fully aware of his/her responsibilities and obligations under the
Listing Rules and relevant regulatory requirements. Such induction is
normally supplemented with visits to the Group’s key business sites and/
or meetings with the senior management of the Company.

Under code provision C.1.4, directors should participate in appropriate
continuous professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills to ensure that their contribution to the Board
remains informed and relevant. Internally-facilitated briefings for directors
will be arranged and reading material on relevant topics will be issued
to directors where appropriate. All directors are encouraged to attend
relevant training courses at the Company’s expenses.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, all the directors have
participated in appropriate continuous professional development activities
by way of attending training arranged by the legal adviser of the Group
and receiving reading materials or regulatory update on corporate
governance matters and responsibilities of the directors.

Model Code for Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transaction
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as its code of conduct
governing directors’ dealings in the Company’s securities. Specific
enquiry has been made of the Company’s directors and all the existing
directors have confirmed that they have complied with the required
standards set out in the Model Code throughout the period from 1
January 2022 to the date of this annual report.

The Company has also established written guidelines no less exacting
than the Model Code (the “Employees Written Guidelines”) for
securities transactions by employees who are likely to possess inside
information of the Company. No incident of non-compliance of the
Employees Written Guidelines by the employees was noted by the
Company.

In case when the Company is aware of any restricted period for dealings
in the Company’s securities, the Company will notify its directors and
relevant employees in advance.
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BOARD COMMITTEES & CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
FUNCTIONS

The Board has established three Board committees, namely, the
Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of the Company'’s affairs. All
Board committees have been established with defined written terms of
reference, which are posted on the Company’s website “www.maoye.cn”
and the Stock Exchange’s website. All Board committees should report
to the Board on their decisions or recommendations made.

All Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to discharge
their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s
expense.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises a total of three members, namely, Mr.
Rao Yong (Chairman), Mr. Pao Ping Wing and Mr. Gao Yajun, all of whom
are independent non-executive directors. The chairman of the Audit
Committee is Mr. Rao Yong who possesses the appropriate professional
qualification, and accounting and financial management expertise as
required under Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules. None of the members
of the Audit Committee is a former partner of the Company’s existing
external auditors.

The main duties of the Audit Committee are to (i) review the financial
statements and reports and consider any significant or unusual items
raised by the financial officers of the Group or external auditors before
submission to the Board; (i) review and monitor the external auditors’
independence and the objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit
process; (i) make recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
re-appointment and removal of external auditors; and (iv) review the
accuracy and effectiveness of the Company’s financial reporting system,
internal control system and risk management system as well as internal
audit function.
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During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Audit Committee has held
3 meetings and performed the following major tasks:

e Review of the scope of audit work and the auditors’ remuneration;

e Review and discussion of the annual financial results and report in
respect of the year ended 31 December 2021 and interim financial
results and report for the six months ended 30 June 2022 and
discussion with the management of the accounting principles and
practices adopted by the Group;

e Discussion and recommendation of the re-appointment of the
external auditors; and

e Review of the financial reporting and internal control and risk
management systems of the Group together with the effectiveness of
the internal audit function of the Group.

The external auditors were invited to attend the Audit Committee
meetings held during the year to discuss with the Audit Committee
members issues arising from the audit and financial reporting matters.
The Chairman of the Audit Committee provided the Board with a briefing
on the significant issues after each Audit Committee meeting. There was
no disagreement between the Board and the Audit Committee on the
selection and appointment of the external auditors.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises a total of three members,
namely, Mr. Pao Ping Wing (Chairman), Mr. Rao Yong and Mr. Gao Yajun,
all of whom are independent non-executive directors.

The duties of the Remuneration Committee are mainly to () make
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s remuneration policy
and structure and the remuneration packages of executive directors
and senior management (i.e. the model described in the code provision
E.1.2(c)(ii) of the Code); and (i) review and approve performance-based
remuneration by reference to corporate goals and objectives.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Remuneration Committee
has held 1 meeting and performed the following major tasks:

° Review and discussion of the remuneration policy of the Group;
and

° Review and discussion of the remuneration packages of directors
and senior management of the Company.
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The senior management of the Company are the directors of the
Company. Details of the remuneration for each director of the Company
for the year ended 31 December 2022 were set out in note 8 of the
financial statement.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee comprises a total of three members, being
one executive director, namely, Mr. Huang Mao Ru (Chairman) and two
independent non-executive directors, namely, Mr. Rao Yong and Mr. Pao
Ping Wing. Accordingly, a majority of the members are independent non-
executive directors.

The duties of the Nomination Committee are mainly to (i) review the
Board composition, develop and formulate relevant procedures for the
nomination and appointment of directors; (i) make recommmendations to
the Board on the appointment and succession planning of directors; and
(iiiy assess the independence of independent non-executive directors.

The Company also recognizes and embraces the benefits of having a
diverse Board and sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an
essential element in maintaining the Company’s competitive advantage.
The Company believes that greater diversity of directors is good for
corporate governance and is committed to attract and retain candidate(s)
for Board with a combination of competencies from the widest possible
pool of available talents; and to assess regularly the diversity profile
of the Board and, where applicable, senior management prepared for
Board positions under the succession planning of the Company and the
progress on achieving diversity objectives, if any.

In assessing the Board composition, the Nomination Committee would
take into account of various aspects set out in the Board diversity
policy, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, professional qualifications, skills, knowledge and industry
and regional experience. The Nomination Committee would discuss and
agree on measurable objectives for achieving diversity on the Board,
where necessary, and recommend them to the Board for adoption.
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The Director Nomination Policy adopted by the Company sets out the
factors for assessing the suitability and the potential contribution to
the Board of a proposed candidate, including but not limited to the
followings: character and integrity; qualifications including professional
qualifications, skills, knowledge and experience that are relevant to the
Company’s business and corporate strategy; diversity in all aspects,
including but not limited to gender, age (18 years old or above), cultural
and educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service; requirements of independent non-
executive directors on the Board and independence of the proposed
independent non-executive directors in accordance with the Listing
Rules; and commitment in respect of available time and relevant interest
to discharge duties as a member of the Board and/or Board committee(s)
of the Company.

The Director Nomination Policy also sets out the procedures for the
selection and appointment of new directors and re-election of directors
at general meetings. The Nomination Committee will review the Director
Nomination Policy (if applicable), to ensure its effectiveness.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Nomination Committee
has held 1 meeting and performed the following major tasks:

° Review of the structure, size, composition and diversity of the
Board to ensure that it has a balance of expertise, skills and
experience appropriate to the requirements of the business of the
Company;

° Recommendation of the re-appointment of those directors standing
for re-election at the 2022 annual general meeting of the Company;
and

° Assessment of the independence of all the independent non-
executive directors of the Company.

Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance
functions set out in the code provision A.2.1 of the Code.

During the year under review, the Board has performed such corporate
governance functions as follows: (i) reviewed and developed the
Company’s corporate governance policies and practices, (i) reviewed
and monitored the training and continuous professional development
of directors and senior management, (i) reviewed and monitored
the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements, (iv) reviewed and monitored the compliance
of the Model Code and the Employee Written Guidelines, and (v)
reviewed the Company’s compliance with the Code and disclosure in the
Corporate Governance Report.
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ATTENDANCE RECORDS OF DIRECTORS AND
COMMITTEE MEMBERS

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Board has held 6
meetings. The attendance records of each director at the Board and
Board committee meetings and the general meeting of the Company held
during the year ended 31 December 2022 are set out in the table below:

EEREEERENT RN FERE

B E2022F 12A31HILEFE  EFEEED
BIT6R > TRFIBZESFLFEH E20224F
12531E¢$ﬁﬁf797§$5 Elu% %%;
EE = u&&zﬁ/&jﬂy%ﬁﬁmuaﬁ‘

Attendance/Number of Meetings

HERY,SERH

Annual

Audit Remuneration Nomination General

Name of Director Board Committee Committee Committee Meeting

EEfs EEE EBRZEE HMWEEEe 2 RLZEE RIBEAE

Mr. Huang Mao Ru BRmEE 6/6 - - il 11

Mr. Zhong Pengyi BRIt 6/6 - - - 11

Ms. Lu Xiaojuan BE/NEZ T 6/6 - - = 11

Mr. Wang Bin IRAE 6/6 - - - 11

Mr. Rao Yong BASRE 6/6 3/3 1/1 1/1 1/1

Mr. Pao Ping Wing BIRELE 6/6 3/3 1/1 1/1 1/1

Mr. Gao Yajun BRELE 6/6 3/3 11 - 1/1
Apart from regular Board meetings, the Chairman also held 1 meeting MRERITHNESS RN ESENNE

with the independent non-executive directors without the presence of
other directors during the year.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR FINANCIAL
REPORTING IN RESPECT OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Board is responsible for presenting balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of annual and interim reports, inside
information announcements and other disclosures required under the
Listing Rules and other regulatory requirements. The management has
provided such explanation and information to the Board as necessary
to enable the Board to make an informed assessment of the financial
information and position of the Group put forward to the Board for
approval.

The directors have acknowledged their responsibilities for preparing the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December
2022. The directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has acknowledged that it shall be responsible for risk
management and internal control systems and review of their
effectiveness on an ongoing basis. These systems are designed to
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives and provide only reasonable but not absolute assurance
against material misstatement or loss.

The Board shall be fully responsible for evaluating and determining the
nature and extent of risks it is willing to take in achieving the Company’s
strategic objectives and to establish and maintain appropriate and
effective risk management and internal control systems.

The Audit Committee assists the Board in leading the management
and overseeing their design, implementation and monitoring of risk
management and internal control systems.

The Company has developed and adopted different risk management
procedures and guidelines with a clear division of power and
responsibility. The Company would conduct self-assessment each year
to confirm that all departments and the Company have properly complied
with the risk management and internal control policy.

During the year, all departments conduct regular internal control
evaluation to identify risks with potential impact on the Group’s business
and other aspects including major operational and financial procedures,
regulatory compliance and information security.

The internal audit department is responsible for independent review of
the adequacy and effectiveness of risk management and internal control
systems. During the year under review, the internal audit department
reviewed important issues such as the relevant strategic management,
major operational and financial reporting procedures, human
resources management, adequacy of resources, staff qualifications
and experiences, regulatory compliance and information security, and
provided its findings and recommendations to the Audit Committee for
improvement.
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During the year under review, the Board, with the support of the Audit
Committee, has reviewed the effectiveness of risk management and
internal control systems of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year
ended 31 December 2022 by reviewing the report from the management
and the internal audit results, and confirmed the effectiveness and
adequacy of risk management and internal control systems of the
Company.

The Company has developed its disclosure policy to provide the general
guideline on handling confidential information, monitoring of information
disclosure and response to queries to its directors, officers, senior
management and the relevant employees. The Company has executed
supervision programs to confirm the strict prohibition from unauthorized
access to and use of inside information.

EXTERNAL AUDITORS AND AUDITORS’
REMUNERATION

The statement of the external auditors of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities for the Company’s financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2022 is set out in the section headed
“Independent Auditor’s Report” in this annual report.

The remuneration paid to the Company’s external auditors by the
Company in respect of audit services and non-audit service for the year
ended 31 December 2022 is set out as follows:

THOEER BEEEEEZEETNHET
EERAAB RENBRARR20228F12H
SIHLEEERBEERANISETRFNE KL
M ERERNESEBREMNANIBEFTER
WHERBAATWERSIENANIEIZERARN
BT DM -

AT BEIUEBRBERRURHEAREE
REHE - BEEEEREKROEEE -5k
BE -SREEBNEMESHMN—MRIE
e R RBBEMITEERF UEERBEEE
IERAERENEBNANARRHE

SMEB IR BA BT R i A BTN <

AT SN IZ BT E K E LA A B & E2022
F12R31 B FEMBRRAVPHREEHIMR
MENRAERBILAZBAETRE —H o

HE2022F 12831 H L EE » KATI MBI
ARTS K JE B 1% AR 7 0] 24 A B IMNBE 1% B4 BT B9 BN
AW T ¢

Type of services RMB’000
BRFsEEEY ARMTT
Audit expenses of the Group KREBNEZER 4,200
Audit expenses of the Group KEBWIEEZER

— Review on the interim financial report of the Group —AREENFIETBREER 1,200

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. YAN Xin, aged 38, was appointed as the Secretary of the Company
in June 2022. Ms. Yan is a member of both the Hong Kong Chartered
Governance Institute and the Chartered Governance Institute in the
United Kingdom. Ms. Yan has obtained a master’s degree in Corporate
Governance and Compliance from Hong Kong Baptist University, a
master’s degree in Finance from Suffolk University in the United States
of America and a bachelor’s degree in Business Administration from
Shenzhen University. She has over 10 years of experience in company
secretarial matters and investor relationship management. During the year
ended 31 December 2022, Ms. Yan has taken no less than 15 hours of
relevant professional trainings to update her skills and knowledge.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a Dividend Policy on payment of dividends.
Depending on the financial conditions of the Company and the Group
and the conditions and factors as set out in the Dividend Policy (including
but not limited to the Group’s financial results, cash flow situation,
business conditions and strategies, future operations and earnings,
capital requirements and expenditure plans), dividends may be proposed
and/or declared by the Board during a financial year and any final
dividend for a financial year will be subject to the shareholders’ approval.

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS

The Company considers that effective communication with shareholders
is essential for enhancing investor relations and investor understanding
of the Group’s business performance and strategies. The Company
also recognizes the importance of transparency and timely disclosure of
corporate information, which enables shareholders and investors to make
the best investment decisions.

To promote effective communication, the Company maintains a website
at “www.maoye.cn”, where extensive information and updates on the
Group’s business developments and operations, financial information,
corporate governance practices and other information are available for
public access.

Shareholders and investors may send written enquiries or requests to the
Company as follows:

g SER

RABERIKA IR SRR S HR - RIBAE
N B e A 5 [ B B AR 000 DA T B IS B SR P K
MRER BEERRRAERBPHEE R
EMEM N EB R REE  RREER
BN BEERKXHFE) - EFGAIME
M FEEEZER,HBIKKE > MK
FENEARESAFRRAER  HAIMEF

BIRRRIREEBR

AAF R RRREFAYER > H{e
REEBMERNAREENAEBEHERE
RRETRED[EE - ARFTAAREE
PRENBRKEASENNEZN REA
MR RREREEFHRERERR -

AREBEBYNE ARBRBHEL Twww.
maoye.cn ] » i R AR EBEEBERKLIEE B
BER rEBEARRMEMAKEMNENMN
BHHEHN B AR ER -

BERBEETEBN T HROAADTH
EESHAER |

Address: 38/F, Tower A, World Finance Centre, 4003 Shennan East Road, Shenzhen, the People’s Republic of
China (For the attention of the director of the Investor Relations Department)

ik FREE A R HEANEDZRYI 5% 7 SR ER40035% tH R & Rl AR /OARE38IE (I A 731K B E RAER4RED)

Email: irs48@maoye.cn

BT ir848@maoye.cn

Enquiries are dealt with in an informative and timely manner.

The Board welcomes views of shareholders and encourages them to
attend general meetings to raise any concerns they might have with the
Board or the management directly. Board members and appropriate
senior staff of the Group are available at the meetings to answer any
questions raised by shareholders.

The Company continues to enhance communication and relationship with
its investors. Designated senior management maintains regular dialogue
with institutional investors and analysts to keep them informed of the
Group’s developments.

The Board has reviewed the shareholders’ communication policy and its
effectiveness was confirmed. With the continuing COVID-19 situation,
the manner of engagement with our shareholders will be scrutinised from
time to time.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

To safeguard shareholders’ interests and rights, separate resolutions are
proposed at shareholders’ meetings on each substantial issue, including
the election of individual directors, for shareholders’ consideration and
voting. The Company’s shareholders may convene an extraordinary
general meeting or put forward proposals at shareholders’ meetings as
follows:

(1) Shareholder(s) holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not
less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company may
request the Board to convene an extraordinary general meeting
pursuant to Article 58 of the Articles of Association by sending a
written requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary at the
Company’s principal place of business in the PRC. The objects of the
meeting must be stated in the written requisition.

(2) If a shareholder wishes to propose a person other than a retiring
director for election as a director of the Company at a general
meeting, pursuant to Article 88 of the Articles of Association, the
shareholder (other than the person to be proposed) duly qualified to
attend and vote at the general meeting shall send a written notice,
duly signed by the shareholder, of his/her intention to propose
such person for election and also a notice signed by the person
to be proposed of his/her willingness to be elected. These notices
should be lodged at the Company’s principal place of business in
the PRC, or the office of the Company’s share registrar. The period
for lodgement of such notices shall commence on the day after the
despatch of the notice of such general meeting and end 7 days prior
to the date of such general meeting.

For the avoidance of doubt, shareholder(s) must deposit and send the
original duly signed written requisition, notice or statement, or enquiry (as
the case may be) to the Company and provide their full name, contact
details and identification in order to give effect thereto. Shareholders’
information may be disclosed as required by law.

During the year under review, the Company has not made any changes
to its Articles of Association. An up-to-date version of the Articles
of Association is available on the Company’s website and the Stock
Exchange’s website. Shareholders may refer to the Articles of Association
for further details of their rights.

All resolutions put forward at shareholders’ meetings will be voted by
poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and the poll voting results will be
posted on the websites of the Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk) and
the Company (www.maoye.cn) immediately after the relevant general
meetings.
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NOTES ON THE REPORT

The ESG Report (the “Report”) covers Maoye International Holdings
Limited (“Maoye International” or the “Company”, together with
its subsidiaries, the “Group”). The contents include the Group’s
Environmental, Social and Governance performance on its major points

of operation (i.e. Mainland China).

REPORTING PERIOD

The Report covers the period from 1 January 2022 to 31 December
2022. Certain contents can be traced back to previous years, as the case

may be.

PREPARATION PRINCIPLE

This report is prepared pursuant to the Environmental, Social and
Governance Reporting Guide (the “Guide”) as set out in the Appendix 27
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong. For information on the Group’s corporate governance,
please refer to the Corporate Governance Report section in this year's

annual report.

DATA DESCRIPTION

All data in this report are based on Maoye International’s formal
documents and statistical reports. In this report, the currency amount is

accounted by RMB, unless otherwise specified.

REPORTING SCOPE AND BOUNDARIES

This report covers the Group’s 48 department stores, outlets and
shopping centres (“Retail Department Stores”) in Mainland China and

the offices in Hong Kong and Mainland China.

CONFIRMATION AND APPROVAL OF THE REPORT
This report was approved by the Board on 24 March 2023.

CONTACT US

Investor Relations Department, Maoye International Holdings Limited
Address: Shenzhen City, Guangdong Province

Tel: (86) 755-25983885

Fax: (86) 755-25981379

Email: ir848@maoye.cn
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

The sustainable development of enterprises cannot be realised
without the engagement and support of all stakeholders. The Group
communicated and exchanged views with stakeholders regarding
sustainable development and related issues through various channels,
and identified the issues that our stakeholders are most concerned
about: “products responsibility” and “community investment”; relatively
important issues: “use of resources”, “health and safety”, “employment”,
“development and training”; and the related issues: “emissions”,
“environment and natural resources”, “labour standard”, “management
of supply chain” and “anti-corruption”. The Group constantly makes
improvement on such issues in the normal course of business so
as to address the concerns of our stakeholders, enhance trust and
cooperation, and jointly promote the sustainable development of the
Group and society.
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Stakeholders Major communication channels

FEFERE

Major concerns

FzAERAAS TEMEEE
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Government and
regulatory bodies

B R B E S

Shareholders
and investors

RERRIGEE

Employees
8T

Suppliers
{HFER

Customers

ZE

Business
partners

AIERH

Communities
and the public
HERAR

Policy and guideline
Daily communication
Working conference
Information disclosure
Social public welfare
activities

General meeting

Results announcement
Investor forum

Annual and interim report,
announcement

Staff meeting
Staff training
Staff activities

Contract negotiation
Daily business transaction
Project cooperation

Customer complaint
hotline

Customer satisfaction
survey

Customer service centre
Discussion and visits

Cooperation
Communication and
interaction

Public welfare

Community education

and promotion

Forum and communication
Enterprise recruitment
publicity etc
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Compliance with relevant laws 8435F5%

Tax paid according to law
Promotion of employment
Social contribution

Operation results
Corporate governance
Information disclosure
Sustainable development

Health and safety
Occupational development
Compensation and benefits

Fair cooperation
Adhere to commitment
Mutual benefits

Quality of service
Handling of complaints
Protection of privacy

Fair cooperation
Performance of contracts
with integrity

Mutual growth

Public welfare
Promotion of employment

Involvement in community
construction
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MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

The Company has listed out 11 areas and evaluated the importance of
various key areas to our internal and external stakeholders and identified
major concerns of our stakeholders.

EEMTE
RABFESIRFIEN11EEE > HRIMERF]
mEES R EERERENERETT
SPGB A SRR T ER IR EmE

HIGH i

= Product responsibility

EREE

a

[
Employment e Co:nm_unity investment
Environment and natural resources e & HERR
RIRRRAE R
Health and safety gy [ ]
REARZ Use of resources
HiRER

(] Labour standard
ST %R

The importance to our stakeholders
B e S5 ot R R 2R

@ Development and training

RS

-
(] Management of supply chain
HREEEE
@ Anti-corruption
REE
\ P

LOwW The importance to our sustainable development HIGH

& HA£EAFHEERNEEN =
GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE EaRE

The Board is the highest governing body of the Company and holds the
ultimate responsibility on the overall strategic development and corporate
governance of the Company. To ensure high governance standards in
ESG matters, the Company has a stable ESG governance structure with
clearly defined responsibilities in place.

Executive Director

BiTES
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The formulation of ESG strategy and the day-to-day management and
reporting on ESG matters resides with the ESG Group, which is headed
by the Executive Director and comprises members from all major
departments. The responsibilities of the ESG Group include formulating
ESG strategies, sustainability reporting, stakeholder engagement,
materiality assessment, monitoring the performance of ESG initiatives and
promotion of ESG issues both internally and externally.

Through the Executive Director, the ESG Group has been providing
updates to the Board on the latest ESG performance of the Company
on an annual basis. The ESG Group has continuously worked upon
enhancing its reporting mechanism that will enable the Directors to
effectively oversee the effectiveness of the ESG risk management and
internal control systems.

To ensure effective implementation of ESG strategies and identify any
potential ESG-related risks and opportunities, the ESG Group conducts
regular meetings to discuss a range of pre-defined ESG initiatives and
to follow up upon the works of business units which are charged with
carrying out measures and setting appropriate policies to align with our
overall ESG strategy. The ESG Group is also assisted by the internal
audit team in identifying and evaluating the potential ESG related-risks
(including climate change related risks), so as to devise appropriate
strategies for risk mitigation.

The ESG Group continues to keep abreast of the latest developments
on sustainability issues and remains committed towards promoting the
integration of sustainable and socially responsible best practices into
our daily operations and decision making processes across all levels of
the Group. With the collaborative efforts of all business units, we are
dedicated towards improving our ESG performance and fulfilling the
expectations of our stakeholders.
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A. ENVIRONMENTAL A. IRIE
Al gpm#@wﬁw
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The Group complies with the relevant requirements of
environmental protection laws and common principles of
corporate management. It correctly handles the relationship
between business and environment in accordance with
characteristics of corporate environmental management, so
that the economy and environmental protection are mutually
reinforcing.

Our environmental policy advocates the prevention of
environmental pollution, with integration of governance for
comprehensive management to achieve maximum economic
benefits under minimum impact on the environment. Meanwhile,
we also attach importance to education and technical trainings
to raise awareness of all employees about the environmental
protection. In view of this, we have established a sound
environmental responsibility system for the garbage from
construction or renovation of the stores and kitchen waste
from restaurants, under which special personnel supervise the
classification and disposal of garbage.

The Group continues to monitor the operation of environmental
protection facilities and regularly checks the implementation of
environmental protection facilities.

All subsidiaries and retail department stores of the Group
are required to strictly abide by the internal environmental
management system to ensure the compliance with laws
and regulations. During the reporting period, no violations of
environment laws and regulations were found.

Note 1:  Since the main business of the Group is operation of retail
department stores, there was no significant emissions and
hazardous waste generated during the reporting period, hence
the relevant disclosure requirements in the ESG Guidelines (Key
Performance Indicators A1.1, A1.3 and A1.5) are not applicable to
the Group.
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Disposal of harmless waste

During the reporting period, the direct production of harmless
waste in the course of business of the Group was mainly papers,
ink cartridges, cartridges, plastic bottles and paper cups. During
the reporting period, the generated equivalents are as follows.

The Group classified and collected different types of waste and
carried out fixed storage and centralised processing. Recyclable
harmless waste was recycled as far as possible, while the
non-recyclable waste was handled by professional qualified
service providers in accordance with the relevant environmental
protection regulations.

ltem ER

Paper (tonnes) AR (MR)

Ink cartridge (tonnes) 2z (W)
Toner Cartridge (tonnes) e (M)
Plastic bottle (tonnes) SEBOKHR (ME)
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Carbon emission

Our carbon emissions are mainly due to the consumption of
electricity. During the reporting period, the relevant carbon
dioxideM**® 2 emissions from the energy generated from our
business is as follows.

Item IEH

Carbon dioxide emission (tonnes) “SEhiEERE (W)
Carbon dioxide emission per square
metre of gross floor area ot s

(tonnes/square metre)
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2022 2021
20224 20214

197,084.51 276,442.43

0.06 0.09

We have implemented various energy-saving measures to
reduce the corresponding carbon emissions. For details, please
refer to the section of “Use of resources” below.

Note 2. The calculation of carbon emissions is based on the Greenhouse
Gas Protocol published by the World Business Council for
Sustainable Development (WBCSD) and the World Resources
Institute (WRI), Reporting Guide for Environmental Key Performance
Indicators issued by the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and the
Baseline Emission Factors for Regional Power Grids in China issued
by the National Development and Reform Commission for the
climate changes.

Note 3:  The total gross floor area for calculating carbon dioxide emission
intensity is 309.9 square metres in 2022

The total gross floor area for calculating carbon dioxide emission
intensity is 309.8 square metres in 2021.
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A2 Use of resources

The Group is committed to becoming an environmentally friendly
enterprise by saving electricity and encouraging the collection
and recycling of office supplies and other resources to save
natural resources. Our stores also integrate environmental
protection publicity with marketing activities to advocate green
lifestyle, so as to strive to become a model store for recycling
economy.

We adhere to the preparation of analysis report on statistics of
water and electricity consumption, and continue to update the
standing book for equipment to enhance the management level.
During the reporting period, the energy saving indicators was
even included as the performance indicators of the employees
to reward outstanding model of energy efficiency, as well as
penalizing irregularities.

Use of energy

Our energy consumption during the reporting period which
is mainly due to the electricity consumption of the 48 retall
department stores (excluding the electricity consumption that are
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not directly controlled by the Group) is as follows. JHFE) WK
2022 2021
ltem EHE 2022% 20214
Electricity consumption (kWh) HEEE (TRR 267,569,820.37 386,362,695.46
Electricity consumption per square BYAKEZRERE
metre of gross floor areaNot 4 FEEEN™
(kWh/square metre) (FREFHK 86.35 124.70

The electricity consumption decreased by 30.75% as compared
with 2021, which was due to the outbreak of the pandemic still
occurs in some areas, which affected store business hours and
customer traffic, which led to the decrease in consumption.

Note 4:  The total gross floor area for calculating electricity consumption
intensity is 309.9 square metres in 2022.

The total gross floor area for calculating electricity consumption
intensity is 309.8 square metres in 2021.
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In order to strengthen the monitoring of the energy consumption
of the Group, a number of energy saving measures were
implemented during the reporting period in addition to the
preparation of statistical analysis reports, namely:

Enhancement of annual and monthly budget management
to continuously promote water and electricity saving;

+  Strict implementation of the operating time for various
types of electrical equipment, with timely adjustment of air
conditioning temperature;

Enhancement of inspection and examination, with timely
troubleshooting and repairs for failure in energy consumption
and prevention of waste of water and electricity;

Continuous innovation for upgrade of energy-saving
equipment and techniques, such as energy-saving
lightings, zone management on lighting, elevator frequency
conversion, energy-saving water valves and use of energy-
saving environmental protection materials; and

Capital investment for optimisation of environment of
stores to establish a model enterprise for clean energy and
environmental protection.

Water consumption

The total water consumption of 48 retail department stores of
the Group during the reporting period is as follows.

ltem HH

Water consumption (cubic metres) FEkE (LK)

Water consumption per square metre & /5 K ZEEE
of gross floor areaNo©* FEK BN
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2022 2021
20224 20214

1,804,721.77 3,5611,411.43

0.58 1.13

The water consumption increased by 48.60% as compared
with 2021, which was due to the outbreak of the pandemic
still occurs in some areas, which affected store business
hours and customer traffic, which led to the decrease in water
consumption.

Note 5:  The total grass floor area for calculating electricity consumption
density is 309.9 square metres in 2022.

The total grass floor area for calculating electricity consumption
density is 309.8 square metres in 2021.
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Some of the water saving measures implemented by the Group
during the reporting period are as follows:

Regularly carry out water conservation education on various
departments of the Group to raise awareness of staff on
water conservation and conduct supervision;

Send special personnel to check whether the water taps are
closed or pipelines are in a leakage condition;

Promote water saving awareness by posting reminders of
water conservation in public toilets;

Install sensor valves in public toilets to control the amount of
water used; and

Reduce water consumption through regular water
management and strict control of waste.

A3 Environmental and natural resources

The Group supports environmental protection and constantly
assess the effectiveness of the measures taken to minimise the
impact of our business operation to the surrounding environment
so that appropriate improvement actions could be taken
promptly. These measures include the use of energy-efficient
lightings, paper usage reduction, turning off idle lightings,
computers and electrical appliances and other facilities and
equipment to save energy. We are also committed to promoting
the use of recycle paper and shopping bags made of recycle
paper in our department stores.

Appropriate actions are taken to manage and minimise the
impacts of our operations to the environment and natural
resources. We actively promote environmental protection and
emphasise green operation and green office. Policies and
measures are implemented to enhance energy conservation
and emission reduction management. Relevant policies and
measures taken during the reporting period are as follows:

Enhance the DingTalk electronic office system, optimise
office procedures and streamline processes to reduce the
use of office paper and promote the Group’s paperless
office operation;

Implementing double-sided printing and reusing and
recycling toner cartridges, paper, envelope and paper files;
relevant forms will be printed according to actual demand to
facilitate the reduction of paper consumption at our stores.
At the same time, printing facilities are being adjusted to
reduce the consumption of consumables. Centralised
collection and disposal of used consumables is adopted
to minimise environmental pollution resulting from improper
waste disposal;
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To advocate environmentally responsible shopping, the
Group uses recycled paper bags instead of traditional
packaging bags. We provide customers with recycled paper
bags made of recycled paper to enhance its recycliability.
We take appropriate measures to comply with “General
Technical Requirements of the environmental protection,
safety and labelling for plastic shopping bags” and “Notice
on restrictions of manufacturing and the sale of plastic
bags” issued by the government. Reduction on plastic bag
consumption was achieved through charging customers for
plastic bags, and provide plastic bags when necessary to
lower waste production; and

Encouraging the use of environmental friendly materials
and energy efficient equipment in our construction projects;
incorporating environmental friendly concept and design into
our office and stores, including maximising the use of natural
light and share lightings in common areas, and utilising and
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refurbishing existing furniture and resources where possible
during renovations.

A4 Climate change

With the growing effects from global warming, saving energy and
minimising greenhouse gas emission become our first priority.

Our administration and engineering departments constantly
maintain all the policies to optimise energy consumption.
These policies include daily maintenance and replacement of
energy-inefficient equipment, switching-on of outdoor lightings
according to local sunset time and using fresh air to replace hot
air instead of air-conditioning in mild temperature. Other policies

adopted in our shops and offices are as follows: B0 RPN -
Energy saving and emission reducing policies 8t #E1E i
Retail department store e Control the illumination hours of stores and maintain sufficient lightings
BEZEME to provide quality shopping experience
D IERARRE FRNRERNAERE  UEHEBBYER
e Enhance the maintenance of air-conditioning system to lower energy
consumption
MR ZE R AR MEELUR D ERIBFE
e (Clean the ventilation system to enhance the cooling efficiency of air-
conditioning
BRBEERFUIEEEANE S
e Adjust the operating hours of escalators to avoid wastage
FEEBERNETRRE LB THERNRE
Office e Remind employees to switch off non-essential lights and electrical
WERR appliances

REETRHEBETKNENEBAKS
e Remind employees to switch off lights and computers during lunch
hours

1REEE T hF ERBFE RR i I B AN B A

54  MAOYE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED F% ¥ B AR AT ANNUAL REPORT 2022 EEH %



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RIE-HHERELARS

B. SOCIAL B. tE
B1 Employment B1 {Ef%
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The Group regards employees as the most important assets
and is committed to providing employees with a fair and
sound working environment having open space for personal
development to ensure that Maoye International keeps company
with its employees for advancement.

The Group has established the corporate values, which
employees are guided to recognise, so that attitudes and
behaviors of every employee will conform to and reflect the
corporate culture. We have established a sound compensation
system to provide all employees with remuneration level and
welfare policies that are competitive in the market, so as to
ensure that employees enjoy fair remuneration and benefits.

For the recruitment and promotion, fair opportunity is provided
for each employee under a just and non-discriminatory principle
to ensure that employees are not affected by gender, race and
other factors in hiring and promotion. At the same time, while
ensuring the contribution of employees to the Company, the
personal ability and value are also promoted to have a rapid
improvement and development.

We also strictly adhere to national and local laws and regulations
in terms of working hours and holiday arrangements. Apart
from paid annual leave, the Group also provides different types
of leaves to employees, such as sick leave, marriage leave,
maternity leave and paternity leave so that employees can enjoy
their due leaves to maintain physical and mental health after
industrious works.

Furthermore, the Group takes steps and initiations to maintain a
harmonious labour relationship. We also work with labour unions
to organise a wide range of leisure and cultural activities to
express our care to our employees and promote healthy lifestyle
and strengthen their sense of belonging and cohesiveness to the
Group.

During the reporting period, there was no violation of the labour
related laws and regulations.
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As at 31 December 2022, the Group had 4,001 employees,
representing a decrease of 24.85% as compared with that of

2021. The employee distribution is as follows.

HR2022F12H31H KREFH
B4,001%ES &®2021F R/ D
24.85% > BE B DB R TR~

Employee Demographics ESIET
2022 2021
2022 20214
Number of Number of
employees Percentage™°t® employees  Percentage*®

Indicator 1EE A¥ (e A¥ fl e
Total number of employees BERAY 4,001 100.00% 5,324 100.00%
By gender BRE D

Female Eog 2,190 54.74% 3,006 56.46%

Male 3 1,811 45.26% 2,318 43.54%
By age group BERRERE D

Under 30 305 LT 755 18.87% 1,137 21.36%

3010 50 30 E505% 2,735 68.36% 3,607 67.75%

Qver 50 BB505% 511 12.77% 580 10.89%
By employment type RERELE D

Full-time 28 4,001 100.00% 5,324 100.00%

Part-time e 0 - 0 =
By location BiEE 5

Mainland China o it 3,999 99.95% 5,317 99.87%

Hong Kong, China HEEE 2 0.05% 6 0.11%

Others Hith 0 0.00% 1 0.02%
By rank BESHARED

Senior =R 91 2.27% 169 3.17%

Middle R 1,365 34.12% 1,492 28.02%

General — & 2,545 63.61% 3,663 68.80%

Note 6:  Percentage refers to the ratio between each indication and the total

number of employees.
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New hires HEES
2022 2021
20224 20214F
Number of Number of
employees Percentage°'e® employees  Percentagee®

Indicator BiE AZ fliLEHee A# fly EpH=s
Number of new hires MEREEAH 1,017 25.42% 1,594 29.94%
By gender BUuRE D

Female & 486 12.15% 846 15.89%

Male L= 531 13.27% 748 14.05%
By age group BERERED

Under 30 30mU T 534 13.35% 850 15.97%

30 to 50 3058 £505% 465 11.62% 699 13.13%

Over 50 HBIB505% 18 0.45% 455 0.85%
By location BHEE D

Mainland China HEI Ay 1,016 25.39% 1,591 29.88%

Hong Kong, China HEEE 1 0.02% 2 0.04%

Others Hth 0 0.00% 1 0.02%
By rank ZEESHMRED

Senior = 25 0.62% 75 1.41%

Middle R 402 10.05% 419 7.87%

General —f% 590 14.75% 1,100 20.66%
Note 7:  Percentage refers to the ratio between each indication and the total M7 : (G RIEARESBIEERESE

number of employees. ANEZ BRI
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Employee turnover 1B 74
2022 2021
20225 20214
Number of Number of
employees Percentage°'e® employees  Percentagee®

Indicator BT A¥ i EE s A¥ fh b e
Number of employee turnover EBEREAE 2,340 58.49% 2,008 37.72%
By gender kNI

Female bog 1,271 31.77% 1,154 21.68%

Male B 1,069 26.72% 854 16.04%
By age group BERAR D

Under 30 30 LT 751 18.77% 883 16.59%

300 50 305% £507% 1,278 31.94% 1,010 18.97%

Over 50 HBiB508% 31 7.77% 115 2.16%
By location BHEE D

Mainland China FE gt 2,340 58.49% 2,004 37.64%

Hong Kong, China HEIEHE 0 0.00% 3 0.06%

Others Hift 0 0.00% 1 0.02%
By rank HESHMRED

Senior = 52 1.30% 36 0.68%

Middle Bk 932 23.29% 557 10.46%

General — K 1,356 33.89% 1,415 26.58%
Note 8:  Percentage refers to the ratio between each indication and the total Mizke . {LLLRIEBARMSIBIERHEREER

number of employees. ANEZ BRI o
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B2 Health and safety B2 {#@EH%E
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The Group provides employees with an ideal and safe working
environment. In addition to taking all appropriate measures to
protect the health and safety of employees, the Group also
pays attention to the balance of work and healthy living among
employees. Corresponding system and measures for leaves
and medical needs of employees in special stages (such as
pregnancy, iliness, work injury etc.) have been developed to
ensure that there is a reasonable guarantee for rights and
interests of the employees.

To enhance employees’ safety knowledge and skills to prevent
accidents, the Group adopts the following policies:

Maintaining proper lightings and ventilation systems and a
clean environment both in office and on sales floors, and
providing sufficient working space in the offices;

Smoking is prohibited in office and store areas; and

Following government guidelines relating to severe weather
warnings such as typhoons and rainstorms.

At the same time, employee is expected to share the
responsibility in the making and monitoring of procedures and
arrangements in respect of safety and health. All employees will:

identify, report and rectify hazards at work in relation to
health and safety and report such hazards immediately to
superiors or the security department;

participate in the investigation of any accidents or hazards to
prevent any re-occurrence; and

co-operate with management in adopting safe working
methods and procedures.
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During the reporting period, there was no prosecution against MRIREGEAN > AEBTERBERERLSE
the Group in relation to occupational health and safety matters. =S E B &IE c 2019F2022F R B & L1

From 2019 to 2022 there was no fatal occupational accident. R TIETEM o
2022 2021
Indicator bl 20224 20214
Total number of reportable ATREN THHEHE
occupational injuriesNo®e” 18 29
Percentage of occupational injuryMete8 T {5 L &Mis 0.45 0.54
Number of working days lost AITHBELXTEBRH
due to occupational injury 539 1,294
Percentage of working days lost A TE4EK T ER th=mao
due to occupational injuryNoe® 13.47 24.31
Absent days g H & 61,244 36,219
Absent ratehote 10 EREf LE Z a0 6.12% 2.72%
Note 9:  Reportable occupational injuries refer to work-related accidents to M9 BFREMWIEIEERERT/EAE
employees resulting in incapacity for a period exceeding 3 days; RIR MBI E LIFBE3K ;
Note 10: Occupational injury rate is calculated based on the number of MEE10 1 TEEEER 2 #4S200,000 T 1E/) R
occupational injury per 200,000 working hours (i.e. per 100 (BMg100BREEF50H  8iF
employees to work 40 hours per week for 50 weeks per year); T AE40ME/ ) N TIEREEHE 5
Note 11: Working days lost rate is calculated based on the working days lost MizE11 B T{EB LEZ#&200,000 T 1F
per 200,000 working hours; INEFRIIERL T IEHEGTE ;
Note 12: Absentee rate refers to the percentage of working days lost from MizE12 ¢ BREERIER T E R EMERRN
occupational injury and other sicknesses over the total number of HREgB LR EESEATIEL
pre-determined working days. REMBEDE
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B3 Development and training

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 F£E R %

The Group focuses on the growth of employees and establishes
a scientific and effective training system to formulate and
implement training programs according to job nature and needs
of employees to promote their improvement and growth. The
training contents are divided into induction training, business
training, quality training and personnel training program of
“Maoye University”.

Induction training

In order to help new employees to integrate into the Company
as soon as possible and quickly adapt to job requirements,
regular new staff trainings are organised. Through these
trainings, employees can understand the development,
corporate culture and the rules and regulations of the Group.

Business training

In-service employees regularly receive different types of trainings
in accordance with the needs of their works. For example, retail
stores regularly held services etiquette trainings, while financial
department held skills training for financial employees.

Quality training

Through arrangements such as “reading club” and online
learning platform, the Group provides employees with personal
quality training programs to enable them to obtain personal
growth and advancement.

Personnel training program of “Maoye University”

With deep integration of the Internet economy and traditional
industries, the transformation of department stores is imperative.
In order to meet the needs of talent in the “new retail” era,
the Group provides employees with more systematic and rich
personnel training programs. By formulating comprehensive
training plans, employees can grow rapidly to realise personal
value in the Company and make contribution to the growth and
development of the Company.
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During the reporting period, the demographics of the Group’s REBESHR AEEZEZEIES
trained employees are as follows. 1ERUW TR
2022 2021
2022 202145
Number of Number of
employees Percentage™°t® employees  Percentage*®
Indicator BiZ A¥ flg kL Es A¥ fl L8
Number of trained employess BEXEIREAH 4,487 112.15% 5,166 97.03%
By gender BRE D
Female Bog 2,385 59.61% 2,941 55.24%
Male B 2,102 52.54% 2,225 41.79%
By employment rank BERENED
Senior B4k 105 2.62% 120 2.25%
Middle R 1,126 28.14% 1,356 25.47%
General —g 3,256 81.38% 3,690 69.31%
During the reporting period, the Group’s employees were trained REEAA > AEE B TIFII4EE
for a total of 63,842 hours. Each employee was trained for 14.23 463,842/ N\ E > R E T AHE
hours. SBRF R 214,23/ \BF o
In 2022, the total training hours were 81,213 hours. Each 2022F I AR B 8L 281,213/ N\ B
employee was trained for 15.72 hours. B 8RBT AEIEIIREA15.72
INEF o
The distribution of average training hours among our employees TEEREFHBININFHIDER
are as follows. UWTFERFTR
2022 2021
(Average (Average
training hours) training hours)
20224 20214
Indicator 1eiE (BT 85 2) (F3 R ED
By gender g allE| oAy
Female k8 14.02 7.8
Male 2 14.46 8.6
By employment rank BEEERE D
Senior (ST 12.24 6.9
Middle &k 18.58 9.4
General —f% 12.79 7.5
Note 13: Percentage refers to the ratio between each indication and the total MizH13 . L RIEBRASIBIERHEREER
number of employees. ANEZ BRI o
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B4 Labour standards B4 BT #8|)
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All of our departments and stores comply with local laws and
regulations and strictly prohibit the use of child labour and
forced labour. Maoye International pays special attention to the
verification of identity information of employees. Comprehensive
recruitment review procedures will be conducted by the human
resources department to ensure that the information provided by
the candidates is accurate. In addition, the Group will regularly
examine whether there is existence of children labour or forced
labour in the operation of the business.

During the reporting period, there was no violation of the laws
and regulations relating to children or forced labour.

The relevant policies adopted by the Group are:

Strictly prohibiting any departments to request and/
or employ any person who age below 16. The Human
Resources Department is responsible for the review of the
age during recruitment to ensure that no minors under the
age of 16 are employed; and

All employment must be on a voluntary basis and we do not
allow forced labour, or using any form of deception to allure
employee to work.

B5 Supply Chain Management

The Group has been considering environmental issues from
various perspectives when negotiating the store leasing with
the suppliers. The Group will directly examine the qualifications
of the customers for new storage goods and supply of new
products, including environmental protection indicators, and
the quality of portfolio of regional and store suppliers to provide
consumers with a variety of choices. The Group will directly
interface with large suppliers to introduce attractive products that
comply with environment regulations to promote the strategic
cooperation between the two parties. In addition, environmental
information is also shared with retail tenants and other visitors
from time to time to promote sustainable green business model.
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At the same time, all suppliers operating in our stores are
required to establish labour relations with employees in
accordance with local laws and regulations and provide
remuneration and benefits (such as social security, provident
fund etc.) that meet legal requirements. The aforesaid
requirements are clearly included in the “counter contract” and
cooperation agreement of the two parties. For the employees
of suppliers, we also require suppliers and their staff to provide
written supporting documents and records to ensure that
interests of the employees of the suppliers are guaranteed.

During the reporting period, the demographics of number of
suppliers by location are as follows.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RIE-HHERELARS

BIEER > AEBERAAEPIE
EENHER LARARRBREMER
ERNEREBSTEUSHER
R T &R R B KA F BN AL 42 )
(MR RBEEF) U LEERY
BRI AE LN (EBERIMNEE
ek o 1T FE R B TEIH T > HAFI75
EXREEEAEETRHEENE
B Al sE &k U ERE R
BTHMmSERE-

RERSHR - ZMEE D HERD
BB R TR

2022 2021
20224 20214

Indicator 1515

Number of major suppliershcte 't FEHEREHFE 12 16

By location & B o
Mainland China AR B g 3 12 16
Hong Kong, China FRE &S A 0 0
Others Hh 0 0

B6 Product responsibility B6 EmE{T
Policy on product and service responsibility Emm R REETHE

The Group is responsible for the products and services and pays
attention to marketing ethics to ensure no engagement in any
form of unfair business practices. The procurement and service
processes of the Group ensure the transparency and security of
the information on products and services. The policy on rights
and interests of customers of the Group is not only formulated
and publicised, but also be implemented in the operating
activities to prevent products or services from harming interests,
health and safety of the consumers. The Group complies
with the relevant product and service regulations and national
standards, without any cheating, misleading, deception or any
other acts that undermine the trust from customers and damage
to their rights and interests.

Note 14: Major suppliers refer to suppliers providing products and/or services
to the Group with total contract value of over RMB10 million.
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Customer service policy

Our business model is based on the needs of customers, with
an ultimate goal of providing customers with the best quality
services. We not only provide customers with the best quality
products to meet their needs, but also implement relevant
examination measures to fulfill the commitment. In case a
complaint about the service is lodged, the Group will conduct
an independent investigation in accordance with its internal
guidelines. The Group also collects the satisfaction questionnaire
from customers regularly to gather valuable opinions from
customers.

In addition, we are committed to establishing a deep partnership
with the tenants, shoppers and visitors by understanding
their needs and working closely with them. In summary, we
are committed to providing customers with a unique and
enjoyable experience. As such, we must fulfill our commitment
to excellence in quality of services and sustainable value-added
assets, creating a good place full of life enjoyment, working joys
and shopping leisure.

Practices relating to observing and protecting intellectual
property rights.

The Group understands that brand equity is crucial to our
success. We allocate resources to maintain and protect the
intellectual property rights of our brands.

We value intellectual property and recognise intellectual
property is an indispensable element of successful business;

We manage and protect our intellectual property through
registration and maintenance and enforcement of our
intellectual property; and

We respect intellectual property rights of others and do not
infringe their intellectual property rights.

During the reporting period, our customer services include
supports extended to customers before, during and after the
sales. All complaints were handled by professional personnel
of our customer service department. Details of the complaints,
monitoring and status, handling time and settlement were
properly recorded. In 2022, customer complaints received by the
Group were consistent with those of the industry.
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Data privacy policy

The Group strictly abides by the provisions of the law and
attaches great importance to the privacy of personal data to
resolutely maintain and protect personal information. Only
personal information needed for the business are collected
and used subject to purposes mentioned in the course of
collection unless with agreement from customers. We will not
transfer or disclose any personal data to any entities other than
the members of the Group without consent, unless otherwise
required by the laws or notification is given to customers in
advance. In addition, we maintain appropriate safety systems
and measures to prevent unauthorised access to personal data.

During the reporting period, there was no violation of the laws
and regulations relating to the quality of products and services.

B7 Anti-corruption

The Group has been committed to upholding the principle
of integrity and all employees are required to strictly abide
by personal and professional conducts. The internal control
and human resources centre of the Group have standardized
channels to accept internal and external reports on corruption,
bribery and other violations of professional conducts, together
with investigation and disposal of reports having evidence.
During the reporting period, there was no violation of the laws
and regulations relating to corruption.

B8 Community investment

We adhere to the concept of “Giving back to society” and
proactively participate in community and social services to
promote corporate social responsibilities and make contributions
to the society. In this regard, we actively invest to support the
community, especially to those less privileged group as well
as the young generation in terms of education, growth and
development. Through connecting and interacting with the
community, the Group aims to:

care for the underprivileged group and bring them hopes
and supports;

encourage employees to be compassionate and caring;

strengthen our employees’ sense of belonging to the
society; and

provide education to help them achieve a better future.
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Section
Reference
A. Environmental (Page Number)
RIEEHZE
IRIE (E15)
Al. Emissions
BE

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 F£E R %

General Disclosure
—RRIFE

KPI
B AR IR

Information on (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant laws
and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer relating to
air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and land,
and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.
BERERMORERBHR MKk REIHMOES -BERBESEEY
NEEEHN (@EBER ; RO)ETHETABEAXZENEREERK
REIBER -

A1.1  The types of emissions and respective emissions data.

PR R AR R B IR B ©

A1.2  Greenhouse gas emissions in total and intensity.
AERBABINEREE -

A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced and intensity.

FRELEAESRRYEEBREE-

A1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced and intensity.
FMESREERMEERTE-

A1.5 Description of measures to mitigate emissions and results
achieved.
R R B ER BRI SRR

A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are
handled, reduction initiatives and results achieved.
HMEEEEREZSEEYN G E  REELESNE A
Frigp SR o
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page 49 to 50

Deemed
immaterial

WRBTEKR
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immaterial

WRB/FREKR
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Section
Reference
A. Environmental (Page Number)
RIREHIZE
IR (EH)
A2.  Use of Resources
BIRERA
General Disclosure Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water and  page 51 to 53
— IR EE other raw materials.
BRERER (BFER  KREMEME) BYBES 51E538
KPI A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type and page 51
RAIRAB IR intensity.
BB DNERKHEEEREEEREE- 518
A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity. page 52
RFEKERTE- 528
A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency initiatives and results  page 51
achieved.
SRR S0 B A a5t B S FRAS AR © 518
A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water  page 53
that is fit for purpose, water efficiency initiatives and results
achieved.
A SKEUGE KR LI B R AR UREABKM Gt 538
BIRPIIERR
A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products. Deemed
immaterial
R mPT A EEMEIREE WIRATEKR
A3.  The Environment and Natural Resources
RIBERRAER
General Disclosure Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impact on the page 53 to 54
— I R environment and natural resources.
BEBTAHRIERRABRENEARTZENBER 53%E548
KPI A3.1  Description of the significant impacts of activities on the  page 53 to 54
R SR AE WIE1R environment and natural resources and the actions taken to
manage them.
HMEFEMHIRRERRAABERNEAXEREERWMEIE 53%548
BT ENTH -
A4.  Climate Change
RIS
General Disclosure Policies on identification and mitigation of significant climate-related  page 54
— R EE issues which have impacted, and those which may impact, the
issuer.
B REHERRAEEHETAELRENEAREERMEE 548
BB o
KPI A4.1  Description of the significant climate-related issues which  page 54
AR A WIS have impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer, and
the actions taken to manage them.
BB R RO EEHBETAEERENEAREEBASE 548
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Section
Reference
B. Social (Page Number)
RIGEEH2E
G (BH)
B1.  Employment
=
General Disclosure Information on (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant laws  page 55 to 58
— G EE and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer relating
to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working
hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination,
and other benefits and welfare.
BERFMNREE - BEASA TEHFE -RA -TEKE Lt 5L5ES8E
b~ RIERMUREMEFB KB (@K ; RO)ETFHETAR
BEAXENEREERRANEE
KPI B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group and  page 56
RA SR AE R AR geographical region.

7R ERER  FRERN RMES D HESER - 568

B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and page 58
geographical region.

MR FlAR Rt E S DRSS MK 588
B2.  Health and Safety
REHEZ S
General Disclosure Information on (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant laws  page 59 to 60
—RRINE and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer relating to
providing a safe working environment and protecting employees from
occupational hazards. .
ERRUZ2 TFRERFERSBRBEMBIN QKE,; Kk S9E60R
OETFHBETABEAXENEREERRAIMNER
KPI B2.1  Number and rate of work-related fatalities. page 60
RASRAB IS IR R ITIERAFRMIE T AR KL= o 608
B2.2 Lost days due to work injury. page 60
AIBEEEIAIIFE&- 608

B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures  page 59 to 60
adopted, and how they are implemented and monitored.
HMPT RN R ER L 2 URBERARITREZR 59%F60H
ke
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Section
Reference
B. Social (Page Number)
RIGEEH2E
e (BH)
B3.  Development and Training
R R IE
General Disclosure Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for page 61 to 62
— R R discharging duties at work. Description of training activities.
BEREFHEERIT LIEBENA B R AENBER - EiElliEs. 61£628
KPI B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and page 62
RARE IR employee category (e.g. senior management, middle
management).
MR REESEN MR EEE -FREERE B0 628
HfEEB D
B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by page 62
gender and employee category.
BRI REELERE D BREETMZ NN TR - 628
B4.  Labour Standards
& T#EA
General Disclosure Information on (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant laws  page 63
— A R and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer relating to
preventing child and forced labour.
ARAPIEE TE8MI%5 TR (IR ; RO)ETHEHITABEARY 638
ERNHEBERAROINE K o
KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review employment practices to  page 63
RARAE ISR avoid child and forced labour.
AR TR B BB S M LGB R E T Roas|s T e 638
B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when  page 63
discovered.
I IRERBERFEIRE BB TP ERERY A 5% 638
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B. Social

e

Section
Reference
(Page Number)
RESH2E
(E15)

B5.  Supply Chain Management

e TR
General Disclosure
—RRE

KPI
RS A ISR

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 F£E R %

Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the supply

chain.

EIEMHEEBIRIR R RREER -

B5.1

Number of suppliers by geographical region.

rEE R HEREE -

Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers,
number of suppliers where the practices are being
implemented, how they are implemented and monitored.

it A RS B mE N7 A BIBA R HER
HE UKBRAEANRITREER G E

Description of practices used to identify environmental
and social risks along the supply chain, and how they are
implemented and monitored.
B A B H A RS ERONIRE TS RENIER
MR AR AT S BB 5 7% o

Description of practices used to promote environmentally
preferable products and services when selecting suppliers,
and how they are implemented and monitored.

7t 7T PR FE R (B 2% BIRRAE m RARFEBIIE G » L
AT RER G %
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Section
Reference
B. Social (Page Number)
RIGEEH2E
e (BH)
B6.  Product Responsibility
Emafi
General Disclosure Information on (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant laws  page 64 to 66
— AR and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer relating to
health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters relating to
products and services provided and methods of redress.
BRFMREERIRBHNEREZ - EBES - RERMESEUR 64FE66E
R ED (QBER ; ROETHETABEALENEREER
RAIBNER o
KPI B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to
BRI IZ recalls for safety and health reasons.
Qﬁﬁ@%%é%%%$Hﬁ%ﬁ@@ﬁ&ﬁﬁ@%%@ -
éj o

B6.2 Number of products and service related complaints received
and how they are dealt with.
BRRNEmRRBIEHFEME UREH £ -

B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and protecting  page 65
intellectual property rights.

SR R RPE RN E B RARIE G o 658

B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall page 64 to 65
procedures.
S S EIEE K ERDIWIERE o 64ZE658

B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies, page 66
and how they are implemented and monitored.
Wi EEE B RERLBESE URERRNITRERS 668
o
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Section
Reference
B. Social (Page Number)
RIGEEH2E
G (BH)
B7.  Anti-corruption
R&5
General Disclosure
—RRINEE Information on (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant laws  page 66
and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer relating to
bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.
BRIPH IEERRS 1R~ IREF AR B2 [(BUR ; o)BFHET A 668
BEATENEMERRRANER -
KPI B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices  page 66
RRREMIEIZ brought against the issuer or its employees during the
reporting period and the outcomes of the cases.
RERMARETANEEERLELEEENESHAE 663
BB B KRR
B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing  page 66
procedures, and how they are implemented and monitored.
ML SR R RIBRT  LURERARITREEE 55 665
B7.3 Description of anti-corruption training provided to directors
and staff.
HWiNESERETRHMNRESIEC -
B8.  Community Investment
HELSE
General Disclosure Policies on community engagement to understand the needs of the  page 66
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The Board is pleased to present the audited consolidated results of the
Company and the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands with limited liability on 8 August 2007. The Group
principally engages in the operation and management of department
stores and property development in the PRC. There were no significant
changes in the nature of the Group’s principal activities during the year.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022 are set
out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss on page 93.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the Group’s business during the year, which includes a
discussion of the principal risks and uncertainties facing by the Group,
an analysis of the Group’s performance using financial key performance
indicators, an indication of likely future developments in the Group’s
business and a discussion on the relationships with its key stakeholders,
are set out in the “Financial Highlights”, “Chairman Statement”,
“Management Discussion and Analysis”, “Corporate Governance Report”
and “Environmental, Social and Governance Report” of this annual report.
The review forms part of this directors’ report.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The Company’s Register of Members will be closed from Tuesday, 16
May 2023 to Friday, 19 May 2023 (both days inclusive), during which
no transfer of shares of the Company will be registered. In order to be
eligible to attend and vote at the 2023 AGM to be held on Friday, 19 May
2023, unregistered holders of shares of the Company should ensure all
share transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates be
lodged with the Company’s share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor
Services Limited at 17/F, Far East Finance Centre,16 Harcourt Road,
Hong Kong for registration no later than 4:30 p.m. on Monday, 15 May
2023.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association, or the laws of the Cayman Islands.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the property, plant and equipment of the Group are set out in
note 17 to the financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and of the
Company during the year are set out in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity on pages 98 to 99 and note 36 to the financial
statements. The reserves are calculated in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2022, the aggregate amount of reserves available
for distribution was approximately RMB1,784 million, calculated in
accordance with the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands.

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman lIslands, the share premium
is distributable to the shareholders of the Company. Pursuant to the
137 of Articles of Association, dividends may be declared and paid
out of the profits of the Company, realized or unrealized, or from any
reserve set aside from profits which the Directors determine is no longer
needed. With the sanction of an ordinary resolution dividends may also
be declared and paid out of share premium account or any other fund or
account which can be authorized for this purpose in accordance with the
law.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Movements of the share capital of the Company are set out in note 35 to
the financial statements.

INTEREST BEARING BANK LOANS AND OTHER
BORROWINGS

Interest bearing bank loans and other borrowings of the Group as at
31 December 2022 amounted to approximately RMB12,864.3 million,
details of which are set out in the heading under “Interest-bearing
Liabilities” above and note 33 to the financial statements.

DIRECTORS

As at the date of this annual report, the directors of the Company were as
follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Huang Mao Ru (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Lu Xiaojuan (Chief Financial Officer)
Mr. Tang Haifeng

Non-executive Director
Mr. Tony Huang

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Rao Youg
Mr. Pao Ping Wing
Mr. Gao Yajun

In accordance with the Articles of Association, Mr. Huang Maoru, Mr.
Rao Yong and Mr. Pao Ping Wing are subject to retirement by rotation
at the 2023 AGM. Each of them, being eligible, has offered himself for re
election at the 2023 AGM. In accordance with the Articles of Association,
Mr. Tony Huang and Mr. Tang Haifeng who are appointed as Directors
by the Board shall hold office only until the 2023 AGM and, be eligible,
have offered themselves for re-election. The Board and the Nomination
Committee recommend their re-appointments.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the directors proposed for re-election at the 2023 AGM has a
service contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not
determinable within one year without payment of compensation other
than statutory compensation.
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INDEMNITY OF DIRECTORS

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for Directors’
and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against its Directors and
senior management arising out of corporate activities. The Articles of
Association provide that the Directors shall be indemnified and secured
harmless out of the assets and profits of the Company from and against
all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses which they
shall or may incur or sustain by or by reason of any act done, concurred
in or omitted in or about the execution of their duty, or supposed duty, in
their respective offices; provided that this indemnity shall not extend to
any matter in respect of any fraud or dishonesty which may attach to any
of said persons. Save for the above, at no time during the year ended 31
December 2022 and up to the date of this report, there was or is, any
permitted indemnity provision (as defined in section 9 of the Companies
(Directors’ Report) Regulation (Chapter 622D of the Laws of Hong Kong))
being in force for the benefit at any of the Directors (whether made by the
Company or otherwise) or any of the directors of an associated company
(if made by the Company).

DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the directors of the Company are set out in the
section headed “Biographies of Directors and Secretary” in this annual
report.

PENSION SCHEMES

Employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in Mainland China are required
to participate in retirement schemes administered and operated by
the local municipal government. The Group’s subsidiaries in Mainland
China contribute funds to the retirement schemes to fund the retirement
benefits of the employees which are calculated on certain percentage
of the average employee salary as stipulated by the local municipal
government. Such retirement schemes are responsible for the entire
post-retirement benefit obligations payable to the retired employees.

The Group’s contributions to retirement benefit schemes charged to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year ended 31 December
2022 were RMB46 million. Details of the pension scheme are set out in
note 8 to the finance statement.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company was entered into
or existed during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in note 39 to the financial statements, no director nor
a connected entity of a director had a material interest, either directly or
indirectly, in any transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance
to the business of the Group to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party during the year.

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

The directors’ emoluments are determined by the Board with reference
to their duties, responsibilities and performance and the results of the
Group. Details of the directors’ emoluments are set out in note 8 to the
financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year were rights to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company granted to any
director or their respective spouses or minor children, or were any such
rights exercised by them; or was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a
party to any arrangement to enable the directors to acquire such rights in
any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2022, the interests of the directors of the Company
in the shares of the Company and its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance) as recorded
in the register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO; or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
the Model Code set out in the Listing Rules were as follows:
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(1) Long position in the shares of the Company

(1) x2BRGBZHES

Approximate
percentage of

Number of the Company’s
ordinary shares issued share
Name of director Capacity interested capital*
1A AT
EAEDZ BETREHN
BEEps 513 EEREE B4 E 9t
Mr. Huang Mao Ru Interest of controlled corporations 4,200,000,000 81.71%
BRmkE TEEEENE R (Note)
(=2
Beneficial owner 50,000,000 0.97%
BaEAA
4,250,000,000 82.68%
Ms. Lu Xiaojuan Beneficial owner 411,000 0.01%

BMER T

BaEAA

Note:  These shares were held by Maoye Department Store Investment Limited,
a wholly-owned subsidiary of MOY International Holdings Limited, which in
turn was wholly-owned by Mr. Huang Mao Ru.

The percentage represents the number of ordinary shares divided by the number
of the Company’s issued shares as at 31 December 2022.

(2) Long position in the shares of associated corporations

(2.1)Maoye Department Store Investment Limited, the immediate
holding company of the Company

HfsE

Z 5 R1PEAMOY International Holdings
Limitedd9 2 & fff /& A E]Maoye Department
Store Investment Limitedi& %A » TIMOY
International Holdings LimitedFR & 5 al o4
2EHB-

BALERREBEREERUETATR
2022FF12A31HESETTRMN ZH B °

@ MEEEBRAZEFE

(2.1)78 2\ 5] B 2\ E]Maoye
Department Store Investment Limited

Percentage
of the issued
share capital

Number of in such
ordinary shares associated
Name of director Capacity interested corporation*
EEAEL A
BAEGZ ERITRAHN
EEps 513 EEREE WA E 2L
Mr. Huang Mao Ru Interest of controlled corporation 2 100%
=3l REGEZENER (Note)
(P5E)
Note: These shares were held by MOY International Holdings Limited, FfsE - ZZ R EMOY International

which was wholly-owned by Mr. Huang Mao Ru.

The percentage represents the number of ordinary shares divided
by the number of Maoye Department Store Investment Limited’s
issued shares as at 31 December 2022.
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(2.2)MOY International Holdings Limited, the ultimate holding
company of the Company

(2.2)78 1\ Bl R AR 2\ EIMOY
International Holdings Limited

Percentage
of the issued
share capital

Number of in such
ordinary shares associated

Name of director Capacity interested corporation*
EELEL
BREREZ BETRAM

ERfR &1 EERHE B4 B 2L
Mr. Huang Mao Ru Beneficial owner 100 100%

BRNRE BaEAA

*

The percentage represents the number of ordinary shares divided by the
number of MOY International Holdings Limited’s issued shares as at 31
December 2022.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, none of the directors
or chief executives of the Company had any interests or short positions
in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2022, the following persons (other than the directors
of the Company, whose interests have been disclosed in the above
section headed “Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and Short
Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares of the Company and its
Associated Corporations”) had interests of 5% or more in the shares
of the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 336 of the SFO:
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Long position in the shares of the Company ERBIRMGZEE
Approximate
percentage of
Number of the Company’s
ordinary shares issued share
Name of substantial shareholder Capacity interested capital*
EAAT
BEEGEZ BRI
TERRYS g1 ERERHE L F SR g
Mrs. Huang Jingzhang Interest of spouse 4,250,000,000 82.68%
REEZ L Fo B (Note (a))
(M45%(a))
Maoye Department Store Beneficial owner 4,200,000,000 81.71%
Investment Limited EmBEBA (Note (o))
(GE()
MOY International Holdings Limited Interest of controlled corporation 4,200,000,000 81.71%
REGIEENER (Note (b))
(Pt (o))
Notes: MIEE

@  Mrs. Huang Jingzhang was deemed to be interested in these shares through the interest of
her spouse, Mr. Huang Mao Ru.

(o) Maoye Department Store Investment Limited was a wholly-owned subsidiary of MOY
International Holdings Limited. Such interests were also disclosed as the interests of Mr.
Huang Mao Ru in the above section headed “Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests
and Short Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares of the Company and its Associated
Corporations”.

* The percentage represents the number of ordinary shares divided by the number of the
Company’s issued shares as at 31 December 2022.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, no person (other
than the directors of the Company, whose interests have been disclosed
in the above section headed “Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests
and Short Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares of the Company
and its Associated Corporations”) had an interest or a short position
in the shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of
the SFO.
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EMPLOYEES AND EMOLUMENT POLICY

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had a total of 4,001 employees.
Salaries, bonuses and benefits are determined with reference to market
terms and performance, qualifications and experience of individual
employees.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this annual report, the directors of the Company
confirmed that based on information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the directors, the Company had
maintained sufficient amount of public float as required under the Listing
Rules and agreed by the Stock Exchange.

PURCHASE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED SECURITIES
OF THE COMPANY

For the year ended 31 December 2022, neither the Company nor its
subsidiaries had purchased, redeemed or sold any of the Company’s
listed securities.

DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

Under the deed of non-competition dated 17 April 2008 given by Mr.
Huang Mao Ru, Maoye Holdings Limited and Richon Holdings Limited
(collectively known as the “Controlling Shareholder Group”) in favour
of the Company, details of which were stated in the prospectus of the
Company dated 21 April 2008 (the “Prospectus”), the Controlling
Shareholder Group had undertaken to use its best endeavour within
three years to (i) resolve the existing litigation between Chongging
Jiefangbei Maoye Department Store Co., Ltd. (EEMRRMEEERS
B BR/AE) (“Chongging Jiefangbei Store”) and Chongging Xin Long
Da Real Estate Development Company Limited (EEEZ[EZEREME
BEE B RAT) (“Xin Long Da”); (i) obtain all necessary consents and
approvals for the transfer of the interest of the Controlling Shareholder
Group in Chongaing Jiefangbei Store and Wuxi Maoye Department
Store Company Limited (% E B EHERAQE])and Wuxi Maoye
Baifu Supermarket Company Limited (R EBTRBRHIZEEL
@) (the latter two collectively known as “Maoye Wuxi Store”) to the
Group (note); and (jii) obtain all necessary consents and approvals for
the transfer of the Controlling Shareholder Group’s interest in Guiyang
Friendship Group Holdings Company Limited (&5 & 38 ((£E) 215 B R
‘A E]) (“Guiyang Friendship Group”), to serve a notice on the Group within
ten business days of any of the issues in clauses (i) to (i) above having
been resolved, and to use his/its best endeavour to transfer the interest in
Chongqing Jiefangbei Store, Maoye Wuxi Store and Guiyang Friendship
Group to the Group as soon as practicable once the relevant issues
impeding such transfer have been resolved. The Controlling Shareholder
Group had further undertaken to keep the Company informed every six
months from the Listing Date as regards the progress on the matters
described above.

Note:  The ownership of Maoye Wuxi Store has been changed to Wuxi Maoye Property
Co., Ltd., and such company was controlled by the Controlling Shareholders.
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Since the Supreme People’s Court has adjudged that the leasing
agreement entered into between Chongging Jiefangbei Store and
Xin Long Da was valid and binding, the litigation between Chongging
Jiefangbei Store and Xin Long Da has been resolved. However, the
Group is still considering as to whether to acquire the interests of the
Controlling Shareholder Group in the Chongqing Jiefangbei Store and
Maoye Wuxi Store. As the original master management agreement has
terminated on 31 December 2019, the Company entered into the new
master management agreement (the “New Master Management
Agreement”) with Maoye Holdings Limited on 1 January 2020 for a
term of three years to govern the terms upon which the Group will
provide store management services to the Controlling Shareholder
Group with respect to the Maoye Wuxi Store and/or department stores
owned by the Controlling Shareholder Group, in order to avoid conflict
of interests between the Group and the Controlling Shareholder Group.
On 1 January 2023, the parties have entered into the renewed New
Master Management Agreement (the “2023 Master Management
Agreement”) for a term of three years, for the continuing provision of
store management services by the Group to the Controlling Shareholder
Group with respect to the Maoye Wuxi Store and/or department stores
owned by the Controlling Shareholder Group. As Maoye Holdings
Limited is a connected person (as defined under the Listing Rules) of the
Company, the entering into of the New Master Management Agreement
and the 2023 Master Management Agreement constituted connected
transactions for the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
However, as all the applicable percentage ratios in relation to the New
Master Management Agreement and the 2023 Master Management
Agreement were less than 0.1%, these agreements were fully exempt
from the reporting, announcement and shareholders’ approval
requirements under the Listing Rules. As Chongqging Jiefangbei Store
has ceased operation since February 2011, the Group did not manage
Chongging Jiefangbei Store thereafter. Approval from the relevant
government departments has not been obtained in relation to the Group’s
application for transfer of interest in Guiyang Friendship Group.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTION

Internet Promotion Service Agreement

On 18 August 2021, Maoye Digital Intelligence Information Technology
(Shenzhen) Co., Limited (“Maoye Digital Intelligence”, an indirect
non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company) entered into the Internet
Promotion Service Agreement with Shenzhen Shijin Business Consulting
Co., Ltd. (“Shenzhen Shijin”), pursuant to which Maoye Digital
Intelligence agreed to pay, and Shenzhen Shijin agreed to provide, among
others, promotion services relating to the information designated by
Maoye Digital Intelligence on multi-channel online platforms including
Tencent and ByteDance.
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The Internet Promotion Service Agreement is effective for three years
commencing from 18 August 2021 to 17 August 2024. According to the
Internet Promotion Service Agreement, the total service fees payable by
Maoye Digital Intelligence for the advertising services and value-added
services to Shenzhen Shijin and the proposed annual caps are RMB5.0
million, RMB20.0 million, RMB30.0 million and RMB30.0 million from 18
August 2021 to 31 December 2021, for the year 2022, for the year 2023
and from 1 January 2024 to 17 August 2024, respectively.

According to the Internet Promotion Service Agreement, the service fees
paid by Maoye Digital Intelligence to Shenzhen Shijin for the advertising
services and value-added services was RMB3.6 million for the year
ended 31 December 2022.

The independent non-executive directors of the Company have reviewed
and confirmed that such Continuing Connected Transaction is:

(i) inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(i) on normal commercial terms or better; and

(i) according to the relevant terms governing the conduct of such
transactions on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests

of the Company and the Company’s shareholders as a whole.

The auditors of the Group confirmed in the letter to the board of directors
that, in respect of the above continuing connected transactions:

(i) they did not notice anything that would lead the auditors to believe
that the disclosed continuing connected transactions were not
approved by the board of directors;
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(i) they did not notice anything that led the auditors to believe that
the transactions were not conducted in all material respects in
accordance with the relevant agreements of these transactions; and

(i) with regard to the continuing connected transactions in total, they
did not notice any circumstances that would make the auditors
believe that the continuing connected transactions exceeded
the relevant caps referred in the relevant Agreements and
Announcements of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

As at 31 December 2022, save as disclosed below, none of the Directors
or their respective associates had any business or interests in businesses
which compete or are likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with
the businesses of the Group:

Mr. Huang Mao Ru held interests in Chongqing Jiefangbei Store, Maoye
Wuxi Store and Guiyang Friendship Group. Details of these companies
and Mr. Huang’s interests in these companies are set out in the
Prospectus. As mentioned in the Prospectus, the Controlling Shareholder
Group has granted the Group an option to purchase the whole or part of
the interest of these companies.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Since the Group mainly engages in retail business, for the year ended 31
December 2022, none of its customers or suppliers accounted for more
than 5% of the Group’s revenue or purchases. In addition, for the year
ended 31 December 2022, none of the directors, shareholders or their
respective close associates who owned 5% or more of the Company’s
issued share capital had any interest in any of the five largest customers
and the five largest suppliers of the Group.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Details of the corporate governance practices of the Company are set out
in the “Corporate Governance Report” of this annual report.
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES

The Group is committed to building an environmental-friendly corporation
that pays close attention to conserving natural resources. The Group
strives to minimize the environmental impact by saving electricity and
encouraging recycle of office supplies and other materials. Details of the
environmental policies of the Company are set out in the “Environmental,
Social and Governance Report” of this annual report.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group’s operations are mainly carried out in the Mainland China while
the Company itself is listed on the Stock Exchange. Our establishment
and operations accordingly shall comply with the relevant laws and
regulations in the Mainland China and Hong Kong. As far as the Directors
are aware, during the year ended 31 December 2022 and up to the
date of this report, the Group has complied in material respects with
the relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on its
business and operations.

AUDITORS

Ernst & Young, the Company’s auditors, will retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment. A resolution will be proposed at the 2023
AGM to re-appoint Ernst & Young as auditors of the Company.

By order of the Board

Maoye International Holdings Limited
Huang Mao Ru

Chairman

24 March 2023
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

BIZEEMR S

Ernst & Young

27/F, One Taikoo Place
979 King’s Road
Quarry Bay, Hong Kong

e
EY:x

To the shareholders of Maoye International Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Maoye
International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) set out on pages 93 to 242, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2022, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2022, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (‘HKSAs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”). Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditors responsibilities for the audit of
the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how
our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly,
our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to
our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements. The results of our audit procedures, including
the procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the
basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial

statements.

Key audit matter

HRESNEE

F#EETEE@®

HZPECET T ARS B ESHERS
MBWRAENSE —HBANEE 28
SIS ERIRE ERAEMNSE AL 3
FNEs TIEEEATHERE T GGG
BRNEABRERMRETHIBEF
PRTEFEFNER  SERY THAE
B FEAMATHER R HRERE
REARRIEETER-

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

HANEAMAHARES ERETRE

Goodwill - impairment

BE — #E

As at 31 December 2022, the Group reported goodwill of
RMB1,270,349,000 as a result of previous acquisitions.
Management performs an impairment test for the cash-
generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated
annually, and whenever there is an indication that the unit
may be impaired, by comparing the carrying amount of the
unit, including the goodwill, with the recoverable amount of
the unit. The impairment test is complex, and significantly
relies on management’s judgement and estimation about
the discount rate and the expected future operating
results, such as the long-term growth rate, revenue and
margin development which are affected by future market
and economic conditions.

122022128310 EXERAKAIWBEFEMEKRAR
#1,270,349,000c N & - B G @B LR E U REE
(B1EHE) BB WbER SFREEETRET
ZEAELRRER HEAEHENREESEN
ETRENE REANSEHEFEEIREHREM
AT RRQE XS MRABEX - WAREFNER) B
FIER R (st ZERERRRTIB BRI E o

The accounting policies, significant estimates and
related disclosures are included in note 2.4 Business
combinations and goodwill, note 3 Impairment of goodwill
and note 20 Goodwill to the consolidated financial
statements of the Group.

B BER - BEAMGHREAKRBECRASERLGSMH
WRIF24EB S HREE ME3EERE W20

BEo

We evaluated the key assumptions used in cash flow
forecasts, such as the sales growth and gross margin,
through comparison with historical performance and the
business development plan. We involved our internal
valuation specialists in the assessment of the discount
rate and long-term growth rate with reference to general
market indicators and comparable companies. We
also tested the management’s sensitivity analysis of the
impairment test.
BMEREATRBLEREERERFITERERE
FERIFT AR RERSR WHEEREREFN X - FHME
A EEERBESE —RMSERERA ERAB G
MBREXREREAEER - RMTAREEBHRENADN
BURE Do

We also assessed the adequacy of the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements.

HAITHEGRE M BRERPHABKERS R
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter

F#EETEE@®

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

R EFE

Investment properties - valuation

REWE — 1518

HANEANMAHAEESFHRETRE

The Group is engaged in the operation and management
of department stores and property development in
Mainland China. The completed investment properties in
operation and investment properties under construction
are recognised as investment properties and measured
at fair value. Management engaged external appraisers
to evaluate the fair values of the investment properties
annually. As of 31 December 2022, the Group’s
investment properties amounted to approximately
RMB21,480,749,000 The fair value measurement of
investment properties is complex and highly dependent
on a range of estimates made by management, such as
the rental value, rental growth, vacancy rates, discount
rate, budgeted construction cost, remaining percentage to
completion and profit margin on construction.
EEERPTREAENEEEEREREIREYEERE
BoREPNERTIREMERTERENERKLEY
EWEANBEE - BIEREZRIIN G EMES T
SEYEN A RBER2022F12831H EEEMNK
BYELNB ARE21,480,749,00070 - EM XN A 7
BEIEEHREAEETERBFLN—RIHs MBS
BE - HEEE - TEX - WRX -TEEEEMA B
BTERTMNEDLERTREFEZE.

The accounting policies, significant estimates, fair value
hierarchy and related disclosures are included in note 2.4
Investment properties, note 3 Estimation of fair value of
investment properties, and note 18 Investment properties
to the consolidated financial statements of the Group.
Bt HRR BRI AABEERRBERIRESHA
BEEEGEMBRRMA24LEYE W3R EME
NAREEMGS U185 EYE-

We assessed the objectivity, independence and expertise
of the external appraisers, as well as obtained an
understanding of the external appraisers’ scope of work.
M TS EEMANTEE - B UM R EENH
PR T fR o B (B AT TR &E[E o

With the assistance of our internal valuation specialists, we
obtained an understanding of the valuation process and
techniques and inputs (such as discount rate) adopted
by the external appraisers to assess whether they were
consistent with the requirements of industry norms. We
obtained the detailed work of the external appraisers
and assessed the reasonableness of the significant
unobservable inputs and the accuracy of the source
data adopted by the management of the Group and the
external appraisers by comparing them, on a sampling
basis, to existing tenancy profiles, publicly available
information of similar comparable properties and our
knowledge of the real estate industry. We also evaluated
the sensitivity analysis prepared by management on the
significant unobservable inputs to evaluate the magnitude
of their impacts on the fair values.
AERMASEEERNHE T M TR T HEBRER
4MER 1 18 B PTERAR AY 75 0% DU R 8 A B (5190 BG IR =) 1L
TEEEERITERERTE o HMEVE S EB 1 EED
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DEHERER A RBENTERE

We also reviewed the adequacy of the disclosures of the
fair value of investment properties in the consolidated
financial statements.

BB ReMBRRTPREMELDEENKER
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OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the Annual
Report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors of the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.

90 MAOYE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED % ¥ BT AR A

IS FREIE Mt E R

EAREFFHHMENES - HMENE
BHEREFHRANER  EFNSEEETH
WERRHEPIBZHBENRS ©

BROHREMBREANERIAREAME
o BT AHZEEMENEREAER

AYEESE 4 oM ©

MBEAEFEEMBRERNBSMS > HFIB
EEEREBEEMER  THEILBREPEEH
hENESRESMBREIAKMAEESB
BT RNERFEERBEREUFZ
EERERBRMAIBER - ERHMAENTH
TR NRBFIDBEMBERNFEERER
B ZRPIREREZFE-EEHE I
RAEEFERS

ESEMGRSMBRRARKENERE

EARES A EREEKREERESS
nE o BY B PR B B 4R 15 2B Rl e B 8 A BRI BY
RERERBEEMPSNESMBRE
WHHRRREESTHHFRENRETFE
EEREF S HE AR T S AV B AR SR R P B AY
REMERIEE -

ERFEEEMBRERE EARNEFEH
HEEEFECENE LEBERBERT
RELARBEEAMNER UAERREE
RERGHER RIFERRNEFAEERE
EBRBEWFILEE  ff LA LN BRI E
HMBRNENSG R

ERRESAEEZLZEGNHY TAEEE
EEENMHREER

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 FE#R &



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

BIZEEMR S

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(continued)

e FEvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh
the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Law Kwok Kee.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

24 March 2023
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

n\7|-\ *E m 1%

Year ended 31 December 2022
B ZE2022F12831HIEFE

2022 2021
20224 20214
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt =E AREFT ARETFIT
REVENUE WA 5 4,349,690 5,234,615
Other income HkA 6 1,046,285 1,165,381
Total operating revenue S PN 5,395,975 6,399,996
Cost of sales iHE A 7 (1,850,950) (2,170,195)
Employee expenses BERZ 8 (454,586) (472,360)
Depreciation and amortisation ITEE M i i (1,049,160) (1,103,358)
Payments for short-term leases and CHATE REEE
leases of low-value assets EERERX 10 (6,728) (7,965)
Other operating expenses HMKSx 11 (1,010,824) (1,153,118)
Other gains and losses Hfhlam & E518 12 486,683 121,821
Operating profit S F 1,510,410 1,614,821
Finance costs RRE A AN 13 (1,050,310) (1,146,469)
Share of profits and losses of: FEMEU TR HER
a joint venture —EaEhE (592) (499)
associates = /NE] (17,990) (26,167)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BRI A 441,518 441,686
Income tax expense FriSfREs 14 (236,334) (331,094)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR EFHE 205,184 110,592
Attributable to: MTFALTFEW:
Owners of the parent BATERFTEA 228,093 65,685
Non-controlling interests JERER R R (22,909) 44,907
205,184 110,592
EARNINGS PER SHARE BAREE#ERITE AR 16
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY SRERN
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT
Basic HAx
— For profit for the year —ARFH]H RMB4.44 RMB1.28
cents cents
AR¥4.443y AR¥1.28%
Diluted i3]
— For profit for the year — AR EEF RMB4.44 RMB1.28
cents cents
AR#4.443 AR¥E1.28%
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FEEEWER

Year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12831HIEFE

2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AEFTT
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR AEFE 205,184 110,592
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS)/INCOME Hthz2m (858 =
Defined benefit retirement plans REBKEFEE 688 (210)
Exchange differences on translation of BINEBRMEEEDN
foreign operations (E R Z=RR (52,506) 18,375
Other comprehensive (loss)/income that MBS rgEMmoER
will not be reclassified to profit or loss in BRWEME2E (B8
subsequent periods: W -
Changes in fair value on equity investments EEAURAABEFZEH
designated at fair value through other HEEt AHEMEEREDN
comprehensive income fk#&zﬁﬂ’l’/}fﬁ%’iﬁﬁiﬂ (168,259) (118,067)
Income tax effect FriRine & 42,067 31,769
Gains on property revaluation Y| %%Tﬂ& 118,136 1,053,595
Income tax effect PRS2 (29,534) (262,642)
(37,590) 704,655
Share of other comprehensive income of associates 731 B i Httzmla - 9,719
Net other comprehensive (loss)/income that DESEErgEmoEE
will not be reclassified to profit or loss in BmEMEE BB
subsequent periods Wz P 2R (37,590) 714,374
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS)/INCOME FERREHMEE B8)
FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX & (89,408) 732,539
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FREEKNHELE
FOR THE YEAR 115,776 843,131
Attributable to: DU AT FELS
Owners of the parent FBARREGEFEA 114,104 747,117
Non-controlling interests JFIER RS R T 1,672 96,014
115,776 843,131
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

A MBRIRR

31 December 2022
20225%F12H31H

31 December

31 December

2022 2021
20225 20214
12H31H 12831H
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5F AR¥T T ARBFT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FERBEE
Property, plant and equipment M2 R B % 17 7,928,703 8,297,704
Investment properties REYE 18 21,480,749 21,394,912
Right-of-use assets FREEE 19(a) 5,507,352 5,946,016
Goodwil M 20 1,270,349 1,322,252
Other intangible assets HEmErEE 21 32,595 37,446
Investment in a joint venture R—EaEtERSE 22 - 592
Investments in associates REEATRE 23 362,833 447,013
Equity investments designated EEAURABENZEEER
at fair value through other gt AEMEEmBEDN
comprehensive income HRRE 24 1,101,520 1,354,735
Financial assets at fair value through MrnBEst2EEEH5TA
profit or loss BENEREE 24 9,654 9,475
Prepayments SEANE R 29 115,042 134,074
Deferred tax assets REIRIBE E 25 708,081 745,925
Total non-current assets IERBEELR 38,516,878 39,690,144
CURRENT ASSETS MEEE
Inventories 75 26 352,487 333,974
Completed properties held for sale HEGEERHYE 2,170,243 2,119,354
Properties under development BRI 27 5,486,731 5,314,077
Financial assets at fair value through ManBEsIEEEEHEA
profit or loss BHENETMEE 24 35,425 417,053
Trade and bills receivables ERESHIERER 28 28,331 14,144
Prepayments, other receivables and FETFIE ~ HAhFEWERIE K
other assets Hth&E 29 2,721,783 2,511,938
Pledged deposits BIERER 30 368,728 147,114
Cash and cash equivalents BRERIBEEHEY 30 556,293 1,197,116
Total current assets ENH EMRER 11,720,021 12,054,770
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e MEBRIRR

31 December 2022
2022%F12H31H

31 December

31 December

2022 2021
20224 20214
12H31H 12H831H
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5E AR T ARBFT
CURRENT LIABILITIES mENBE
Trade and bills payables B S MIEKREE 31 1,600,620 1,892,912
Contract liabilities, deposits received, aBHaE BWEE
accruals and other payables FEST & B R EMERIE 32 8,467,500 8,317,028
Interest-bearing bank loans and FERIBTER K
other borrowings HERr 33 6,902,772 6,412,887
Lease liabilities HEa®E 19(b) 318,115 276,666
Income tax payable FEBIFRISIR 351,936 383,430
Dividend payable EERE 26,078 26,076
Total current liabilities BB BAREE 17,667,021 17,308,999
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES mENBaERE (5,947,000) (5,254,229)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT HEERRBARE
LIABILITIES 32,569,878 34,435,915
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

A MBRIRR

31 December 2022
20225%F12H31H

31 December

31 December

2022 2021
20224 20214
12H31H 12831H
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B3 EE AR¥T T ARETFIT
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ERIMEE
Interest-bearing bank loans and FEIRITERK
other borrowings HuE=R 33 5,961,510 7,901,982
Lease liabilities HEaRE 19(b) 1,807,755 2,100,472
Deferred tax liabilities p U =y == 25 4,340,089 4,301,047
Other long-term payables HitRHE T RIE 32 4,116,172 3,858,622
Provision for retirement benefits BIKGEF] B 34 6,261 6,789
Total non-current liabilities ElEI=KI=E L 16,231,787 18,168,912
Net assets BEESRE 16,338,091 16,267,003
EQUITY Ui
Equity attributable to owners of the parent &/A T E1THE AEEERD
Issued capital BETRAE 35 460,153 460,153
Other reserves Hithf#Es 36 13,364,051 13,255,109
13,824,204 13,715,262
Non-controlling interests JEFERR AR Bt T 2,513,887 2,551,741
Total equity M 4R 16,338,091 16,267,003

Huang Mao Ru
=341
Director

EF
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Lu Xiao Juan
B/
Director
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
REEmEER

Year ended 31 December 2022

HE2022512A31HILFE
Attributable to owners of the parent
SRAREREARERE
Disposal
of partial
interestina
Acquistion  subsidiary Defined
Share  ofnon- without Capital Statutory Asset beneft ~ Exchange Non-
Issued ~premium  controling losing redemption Contrbuted ~ surplus  revaluation ~ refirement  fluctuation  Retained controling Total
capitl  account interests control reserve surplus reserve reserve’ plans reserve profits Total interests equity
HE-
HELE
W% BoRE
B&f B 2R AEXE  E4EE EERE  BEBE  RERK  HERE 2R
B RBR REER AR BE ZERR AR G B BE 2R At REER ERLE
RMB'000  RMBOO0 RMB000 RMB'O0 RMB'OO0  RMB'00 RMB'O00 RMB'000  RMBO00 RMB'000  RMB'0O0 RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000
AERBTR ARETR ARETR A\RETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARBTR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR
At 1 January 2021 20011810 460,153 1,630,539 (82,386) 295477  (459,251) 28009 987,084 4020522 (092)  (12,744) 6,101,084 12,968,145 2,487,519 15,455,664
Proft for the year KERE - - - = = S S S - - 65685 65685 44907 110592
Other comprehensive income for the year: FEEMAANE
Changes i fair value of equity ivestments 5 EANAAEEHEE
designated at fair value through other AR MR AN
comprehensive income, before tax ENAREEE
(s#) = = . = . . - (1059%9) = - - 0599 (12128 (18,067)
Disposal of equity investments designated at~ HEEAUARBESEE
fair valug through other comprehensive HBEHALMEERAN
income (note 24) BRBE (H5tod) - - - - - - - 1714 - - (17144 S S =
Exchange differences on translation of BN EBREELNEREE
foreign operations - - - - - - - - - 18375 - 18375 - 18,375
Defined beneft retirement plans RER a5 - - - - - - - - {174 - - (174) (36) 210)
Revaluation gains on properties upon ransfer ~ FR¥1% BRRRESRE
from property, plant and equipment to REMENNEEGNE
nvestment properties, before tax (B30 - - - - - - - 918575 - - - 073575 80020 108359
Tax effect of components of other EtAEREERBANRE
comprehensive income ye = = . = 5 = - i 2 5 -ty (16749 (280879)
Share of other comprehensive income of HMEBEATNEMRENE
assoclates - - - - - - - 9719 - - - 9719 - 9719
Total comprehensive income for the year FERENERE - - - - - - - 680375 (74 18375 48541 TATIT 9014 843,131
Profit approprated to reserves BIERENNE - - - - - - 2686 - - - 26861 S s =
Dividend paid by a subsidiary to —EREAS R R R
non-controling shareholders EBRE - - - - - - - - - - - - P79 3179
31 December 201 Ha1E12ANA M IR0 @B BT GRS B00 10BKS AT0RT UG 5B 61BN BTG 2517 16267003
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
SRR

n\7|-\
Year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022612A31HILFE
Attributable to owners of the parent
BAARERAAREES
Disposal
of partial
interestina
Acquisition  subsidiary Defined
Share ofnon-  without  Capital Statutory Asset  benefit Exchange Non-
premium  controlling losing redemption Contributed  surplus revaluation retirement fluctuation Retained controlling
account interests control  reserve  surplus  reserve  reserve’ plans  reserve profits Total interests
tiE—H
HBAR
WiE  BoEE
R KR WEXE ESEE EERE  BEE RERK EEB R
HER BREG  f6E fE  REER A i R s SHEA At BREE REAE
RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000
Btn ARBTR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ABETR ARETR ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETR
At 1 January 2022 120021810 1,630,539 (82,3860) 205477 (459,251) 28009 1,013,895 4,700,807 (466) 5631 6,122,764 13715262 2,551,741 16,267,003
Proft for the year KERB - - - - - - = = - 28003 228093 (22909 205,184
Other comprehensive income for the year: ~ AEEM2ENE
Changes In fair vaue of equity investments ~ EEALUAABEHEEH
designated at fair vlue through other TARMSERER
comprehensive income, before tax BaRENANBEES
(B0 = - - - - - (180,557) - - - (180,557) 12,298  (168,259)
Disposal of equity investments designated &t~ HEEEALNUAREEHE
fair value through other comprehensive BEEHHAHMZEN
income (note 24) wiiE H4) - - - - - - 243866 - - (043,866) - - -
Exchange diferences on translation of ENEBRERENER
foreign operations 8 = = - - - - - - (52,506) - (52,506) - (52,506)
Defined beneft retirement plans RERIERHE - - - - - - - 570 - - 570 118 688
Revaluation gains on properties upon ransfer 1% BRRRESRE
from property, plant and equipment to RENENMEER NG
nvestment properties, before tax (Bs#0) - - - - - - 7816 - - - 97816 20320 118,136
Tax effect of components of other ETU%@WE%HEI%HE’J
comprehensive income K2 - - - - - - 2068 - - - 20,688 (8,155 12,583
Share of other comprehensive income of & A“TB’]HT‘GQ@HM
associates - - - - - - (9,719) - - 9,719 - - -
Total comprehensive income for the year FERENGLE - - - - - - 172,004 570  (52506)  (6,054) 114,104 1672 115776
Cash compensation to non-controling interests 3R G fEHRIR 2R - - - - (5162 - - - - - (5162 5162 -
Proft appropriated to reserves BERENIE - - - - - B4R - - - (6495 - - -
Dividend paid by a subsidiary o ~BHELAREERRE
non-controling shareholders BRRANRE - - - - - - - - - - - (44688  (44,689)
131 December 202 REbE T 16050° (B30 254T* (S5 T 1UTBBT 4B 04 (GETH' 605175 13624204 2513807 16398091

The asset revaluation reserve arose from a change in use from property, plant and i

equipment to investment properties carried at fair value and changes in fair value of
equity investments designated at fair value through other comprehensive income.

These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated other reserves of

*

RMB13,364,051,000 (2021: RMB13,255,109,000) in the consolidated statement of

financial position.
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CONSOLlDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
n\7|_\ Eﬁr%;ﬁéi

Year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12831HIEFE

2022 2021
20224 20214
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 AR¥T T ARBEF T
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ST ESNIRESERE
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax PRI AT 441,518 441,686
Adjustments for: MTEIEHE .
Interest income FEWA 6 (9,779) (22,380)
Depreciation and amortisation of ME-BEREEUR
property, plant and equipment and HthEEEEY
other intangible assets T EE Re 4 8 561,736 585,488
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FEREEEEZINE 19 487,424 517,870
Loss on disposal of shares HE—BBEQTRMD
in an associate RIS IR 12 - 46,272
Gain on deemed disposal of BIEHE—BBE AT
shares in an associate f1n =z Wz 12 (328,207) =
Foreign exchange losses/(gains), net ShEERSIE, (H& m) SRR 12 2,262 (1,055)
Impairment/(reversal of impairment) of FEWE 518
trade receivables BAE, CREREE) 11 1,378 (4,232)
Impairment of investment in an associate 1 — R E A TNIEE RE 12 24,382 102,932
Impairment/(reversal of impairment) of HM IR E,
other receivables CRLE#E[E]) 11 79,590 (21,833)
Impairment of goodwill HE A 12 51,903 38,870
Reversal of impairment of amounts FE W BE gt 75 =R I8
due from related parties BB 11 (1,439) (316)
Impairment of a property under BREAYERE
development 11 - 2,872
Impairment of completed properties FERFECERYERE
held for sale 11 8,468 S
Gain on disposal of investment HEXREM XN W E
properties 12 (196,072) -
Losses/(gains) on disposal of items of HEME -BENRE
property, plant and equipment BEMEE W) 12 299 (89,869)
Losses/(gains) on disposal of HEUARBEFEAHR
financial assets at fair value EEETABENEMEE
through profit or loss B1a (WE) 12 1,449 (6,153)
Dividend income from financial assets KEUAREEG=ZEEHEE
at fair value through profit or loss A BTHNEREEN
B S WA 12 (2,309) (1,563)
Fair value gains on investment properties & EYEN A AMEEW T 12 (114,703) (302,390)
Fair value (gains)/losses on URAnEBEFTEEHES)
financial assets at fair value FFABENERMEEN
through profit or loss NABE WE) EE 12 (7,205) 17,567
Dividend income from equity investments 1§E &MU AR EEFEEE
designated at fair value through other EEETAHEMEEBED
comprehensive income HEmBREREWA 12 (4,798) (6,517)
Finance costs B A 13 1,050,310 1,146,469
Share of losses of associates DhBE R B E1E 17,990 26,167
Share of loss of a joint venture pME—EEERERSIR 592 499
2,064,789 2,470,384
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

= A he =i — 1
.é.'%m (=] EE@)MLE%Z
Year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12H31HIEEE

2022 2021
2022 20214
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
MisE AR¥FT ARBEFIT
Decrease in completed properties held — FHEHE B EYI =R
for sale 462,273 506,493
Additions of properties under development3% & F1 4 2£ 3% 1 (666,471) (564,972)
Increase in inventories EFEEE (18,513) (69,526)
Provision for retirement benefits paid BT RAREN EE 34 (76) (533)
(Increase)/decrease in trade and bills FEUW B 5 RIE K ik (1)
receivables D (15,565) 1,103
(Increase)/decrease in prepayments and &1 2B K E (thfE WL =R IE
other receivables (g R (158,962) 39,112
Decrease in trade and bills payables FEN B S RIE R ER R (96,220) (573,305)
Decrease in contract liabilities, deposits &HBE BWitE fEFTER
received, accruals and other payables B ELth P A =hE g (138,261) (552,514)
Cash generated from operations KSR E 1,432,994 1,256,242
Interest received BF B 5,606 15,251
PRC tax paid BN HRERE (189,067) (464,798)
Net cash flows from operating activities ~— && EFHEXNIR SR 258 1,249,533 806,695
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

n\7|_\ EE % ;ﬁ E 15§

Year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12831HIEFE

2022 2021
20224 20214F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B EE AR®TT ARBEF T
CASH FLOWS USED IN INVESTING ARREFBELEN
ACTIVITIES RERE
Purchase of items of property, BEEVE BMEMREEEB
plant and equipment (123,022) (231,354)
Proceeds from disposal of items of HEVE BEKRKEEE
property, plant and equipment Frig=RIE 20,342 79,659
Purchase of financial assets E%,E\L/U&ﬁ:fa% FTEEHEZH)
at fair value through profit or loss STABTHNEMEE (21,000) (626,300)
Proceeds from disposal of HEUAABESTEEEED)
financial assets at fair value AT EMEERNS
through profit or loss IE 395,679 224,141
Proceeds from disposal of investment HEREYEMSIE
properties 166,281 -
Proceeds from disposal of equity HEEEAUAABESEER
investments designated at fair value HEB s AHMEEmUGEERY
through other comprehensive income R EFREMNIE 537,233 207,285
Proceeds from disposal of HE— R A BB
a partial interest of an associate Frig=RIE - 302,170
Purchase of other intangible assets E%,E\E@#ﬂ&tﬂ/ié}x (56) (746)
Repayment of a loan by a third party —RE=FEEEN - 20,198
Payment for acquisition of interest in SN EFEPRWE—EHRE AR
a subsidiary acquired in prior year TR - (228,572)
Dividend paid by subsidiaries to M B A B M IEER R R T
non-controlling shareholders RE (44,688) (31,792
Dividend received from financial assets ~ REMUAABESEEEHEH)
at fair value through profit or loss SFAERNEREERE 1,752 3,216
Dividend received from equity investments 2R BH{EEAMU AR BESTER
designated at fair value through other H“E*EJDJU\ET&%EH&Z 5 B9
comprehensive income BomEERE 4,798 6,517
(Increase)/decrease in pledged bank BIRFIRITER (iBD) Ve : 4%
deposits (221,614) 98,805
Net cash flows from/(used in) ®B/ (AR BREEBEEN
investing activities RE RS FEE 715,705 (176,773)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

.\7r\ EE@/}ILE%%

Year ended 31 December 2022
B ZE2022F12831HIEFE

2022 2021
20224 20214
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B EE ARBTT ARETIT
CASH FLOWS USED IN BRREEFSHNRERE
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
New bank loans and other borrowings Mg RITER R EMAERR 5,545,619 6,267,075
Repayment of bank loans and BERIBITERKRAMMER
other borrowings (6,996,206) (6,294,665)
Interest paid BAHFE (748,215) (825,880)
Principal and interest elements of HMERBEBARESNH S E 2
lease payments 19(b) (428,193) (443,637)
Loans from fellow subsidiaries KEERMBARNER 1,401,000 1,431,200
Repayment of loans from fellow BERRMBABNER
subsidiaries (1,325,300) (633,979)
Net cash flows used in financing activities RSB E S EENMIR S RS 548 (2,551,295) (499,886)
NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN CASH IR& KRIRE % EY)
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS GRiZL) /YGhn7$%ER (586,057) 130,036
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, [ERESMF L
net HER (54,766) 20,391
Cash and cash equivalents FVRERIRE
at beginning of year FEBY) 1,197,116 1,046,689
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT SXBE&kES
END OF YEAR ZEWM 556,293 1,197,116
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF HERIREEEY
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS HEER DR
Cash and bank balances RERIRITHERR 30 556,293 1,197,116
Cash and cash equivalents as stated REMERMHIRER
in the statement of cash flows HEEEY 556,293 1,197,116
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR MIEE

Year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12831HIEFE

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

Maoye International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman lIslands on 8 August 2007 as an
exempted company with limited liability in the Cayman Islands under
the Companies Law, Chapter 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated
and revised). The Company’s registered office address has been
changed to P.O. Box 31119 Grand Pavilion, Hibiscus Way, 802 West
Bay Road, Grand Cayman, KY1-1205 Cayman Islands with effect
from 1 October 2016 and the head office and principal place of
business of the Company is located at 38/F Tower A, World Finance
Centre, 4003 Shennan East Road, Shenzhen, the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC”). The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) are principally engaged in the operation
and management of department stores and property development in
Mainland China.

In the opinion of the directors, the immediate holding company
and the ultimate holding company of the Company are Maoye
Department Store Investment Limited and MOY International
Holdings Limited, respectively, which were incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands.

Information about subsidiaries
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

Place and date
of incorporation/
registration and

REIREEREH

REBBZERBERLAR (TRA71) B
2007FB8HSHIEIMESHEREMS R
BABIE22F AT A (1961 FFE350 A
2o UREHKETEALE) ML
BRRERETRB AR E ZFM
MEFMIABEEFEAP.O. Box 31119
Grand Pavilion, Hibiscus Way, 802 West
Bay Road, Grand Cayman, KY1-1205
Cayman lIslands’ B2016E1081HEAE
B MARN BB E R R B RS
AR R E AR FEME (THREL) FIIE
9 5R B 400357 T 5 & Rl R /D ABE38HE © 2%
RERENBAR GETHEH) T2
RAEAEREEEEREREIEAY

BERA ARANEBREZERABNR
BIERABI DA BRIIN EBER R B
EfIMaoye Department Store Investment
LimitedAIMQY International Holdings
Limited o

BB ARNER
FATRERMBABFEAT !

Nominal value
of issued and  Percentage of
paid-up share/ equity attributable

Company name place of operations registered capital to the Company  Principal activities
MBI s M EE R BEETRERE FRFEMGES
AEaiE AR EE A RIAEE/EMEE BAL TEEH
Direct Indirect
E# &
% %
Maoye Department Store Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands US$2/US$50,000 100 - Investment holding
REREZRERAT 11 September 2007 2%7T,/50,0002 7 RETR
EBERREE
2007598118
Maoye Department Stores (China) Limited Hong Kong HK$100,000 - 100 Investment holding
(‘Maoye China’) 7 December 1993 100,000 7T REER
X¥RE (hE) BRAD (REFRE) &
1993&1287H
Zhongzhao Investment Management Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000,000 - 100 Investment holding
(Zhongzhao’) 28 October 1997 AR 50,000,000 REZR
PR EEEBRAE (k) e/ REARE
19974107 28H
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A T5 R R M 5T

Year ended 31 December 2022
B ZE2022F12831HIEFE

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION REREEER @

(continued)
BRMBATNER @
KRB EEMBATWERBNOT © (@

Information about subsidiaries (continued)
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

(continued)
Place and date Nominal value
of incorporation/ of issued and  Percentage of
registration and paid-up share/ equity attributable
Company name place of operations registered capital to the Comp_any Principal activities
ML/ MR BEARMR F2IRfEL ‘
GIET AfREX MR RINEE HREX Epai TEEH
Direct Indirect
B BE
% %
Dahua Investment (China) Limited Hong Kong HK$100/HK$10,000 - 100 Investment holding
RERE (FE) BRAH 28 May 2008 100%7%,/10,000%7T REER
Bk
2008&5)% 28H
Shenzhen Maoye Shangsha Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China US$445,000,000 - 100 Investment holding and
(“Shenzhen Maoye Shangsha’) 31 January 1996 445,000,000 7T operation of department
AIEEBEERAR (NF iﬂl&%ﬁﬁ!ﬁj) e,/ REARE stores
19961 A31H RERERESEREE
Shenzhen Maoye Department Store Shennan PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 - 82.8  Operation of a department
Co., Ltd. 20 April 2000 AE%1,000,0007% _ store
T RLEERRERAT" e,/ REIARE KEBER
2000545208
Shenzhen Department Store Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB536,869,782 - 82.8  Operation of a department
RIKERERERAT" 20 April 2000 AR #536,869,7827C _store
e,/ REARE KEBEE
200054F208
Shenzhen Maoye Department Store Huagiangbei  PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 - 82.8  Operation of a department
Co., Ltd. 31 March 2003 AE#1,000,0007% ~ store
FFRLEEERIBRA e,/ REARE KEBEE
2003%3531A
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Year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12831HIEFE

1.

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

1. REIREEREH @

ERMBARNER (@

AATEEMBATNFENT © (@

(continued)
Place and date Nominal value
of incorporation/ of issued and  Percentage of
registration and paid-up share/ equity attributable
Company name place of operations registered capital to the Company  Principal activities
ML AR ERTRARE FAREMGEES
G AfREX MR RiAEE/ FRES BAL TEEH
Direct Indirect
B RBE
% %
Shenzhen Maoye Oriental Times Department PRC/Mainland China RMB1,200,000 - 82.8  Operation of a department
Store Co., Ltd. 8 August 2005 AR #1,200,0007¢ store
AMImRERARABEERAT hE,/REARE KEREE
2005F8H8H
Zhuhai City Maoye Department Store Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB4,800,000 - 82.8  Operation of a department
LETREBERRAT" 24 August 2001 AE4,800,0007C store
hE,/REIARE KEBEE
2001485 24A
Zhuhai Jiarun Investment Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB2,000,000 - 82.8  Operation of a department
KERHRERRAT" 17 December 2013 AE#2,000,0007 store
I,/ REARE KEBERE
20135E12817H
Chongaing Maoye Department Store Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB30,000,000 - 82.8  Operation of a department
EERXBEERAT” 27 August 2004 AR #30,000,0007T store
hE,/REARE KEREE
200488274
Talyuan Maoye Department Store Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB1,005,000,000 - 100 Operation of a department
ARREBGBERAT 11 Apri 2008 AE#1,005,000,0007T store
hE,/REIARE KEBEE
2008F4A118
Chongging Baifule Business and Commerce PRC/Mainland China RMB102,481,500 = 82.8  Operation of a supermarket
Co., Ltd. 16 September 2008 AR %102,481,5007T KeBh
EEEREBEERAT" e,/ REARE
2008595 160
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Year ended 31 December 2022
B ZE2022F12831HIEFE

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

1. REIREEREH @

ERMBARNER (@

AATEEMBATNFENT © (8

(continued)
Place and date Nominal value
of incorporation/ of issued and  Percentage of
registration and paid-up share/ equity attributable
Company name place of operations registered capital to the Company  Principal activities
MM MR R ERETRARE FATEMEES
AE%TE AERE £t R RINEE HREX Epai TEEH
Direct Indirect
B BE
% %
Shanxi Maoye Land and Real Estate PRC/Mainland China RMB100,000,000 - 100  Property development
Development Co., Ltd. (“Shanxi Real Estate”) 18 November 2008 AR 100,000,000 BHELE
LAREEH B EREERAR e,/ REARE
(MuFEEME) ~ 20085115188
Changzhou Maoye Department Store Co., Ltd. ~ PRC/Mainland China RMB5,000,000 - 100  Operation of a department
ENXEREBRAD" 21 May 2009 AR 5,000,000 store
hEl,/ REARE KEBEE
200945521A
Shenzhen Maolehui-commmerce Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB5,000,000 - 98  Operation of a department
AMREEEFHHBREELT 26 July 2019 AR #5,000,0007 store
I,/ REIARE KEBER
201978268
Shenyang Maoye Times Property Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB8,000,000 - 100  Property development
BEAERRELERAT 24 September 2007 AE#:8,000,0007% BHERRE
e,/ REARE
200749H 247
Shenzhen Municipal Maoye Advertisement PRC/Mainland China RMB2,000,000 - 100 Provision of advertising
Co., Ltd. 25 December 2002 AE#2,000,0007T services
AhREREBRAF e,/ B AR REEERE
20024 12825H
Taizhou First Department Store Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB18,950,000 - 80.57  Operation of a department
FNE-BRBERABRAT 20 May 1994 AR 18,950,0007 store
e,/ REIARE KEBER
199458204
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Year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12831HIEFE

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. AERERER @

(continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

ERMBARNER (@

AATEEMBATNFENT © (@

(continued)
Place and date Nominal value
of incorporation/ of issued and  Percentage of
registration and paid-up share/ equity attributable
Company name place of operations registered capital to the Company  Principal activities
ML AR ERTRARE FAREMGEES
G AfREX MR RiAEE/ FRES BAL TEEH
Direct Indirect
B RBE
% %
Wuxi Yibai Property Limited PRC/Mainland China RMB202,500,000 - 90  Property development
EHRABXERRT” 15 April 2008 AR #202,500,0007¢ BHELR
e,/ REARE
200854F 158
Shenyang Maoye Business Service Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB155,000,000 - 100  Operation of a department
BRREBERBERAR 13 May 2010 AR 1#155,000,0007 store
hE,/ REIARE KEBEE
201058138
Jinzhou Maoye Property Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China HK$193,000,000 - 100  Property development
ENREEXBRAT 9 July 2010 193,000,000 7T BHERR
e,/ REARE
2010%7A9H
Baoding Maoye Department Store Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB5,000,000 - 100  Operation of a department
(‘Baoding Maoye’) 20 September 2010 AR #5,000,0007% store
REXERRARAR ((REREBED " hE,/RE AR KEREE
2010698 20H
Huaian Maoye Property Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB206,000,000 - 100  Property development
EZREBLBRAT 30 September 2010' AR 206,000,000 BHELE
e/ REA
20104F9H30R"
Shandong Zibo Maoye Department Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB143,887,180 - 80  Operation of a department
LREEEREESRABRAT" 7 January 1999 ABH143,887,1807C store
o/ hE A GEEERE
19995 187H
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B ZE2022F12831HIEFE

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(continued)

1. REIREEREH @

ERMBARNER (@
FRABEEZMBABRFENT : (B

Information about subsidiaries (continued)
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

(continued)
Place and date Nominal value
of incorporation/ of issued and  Percentage of
registration and paid-up share/ equity attributable
Company name place of operations registered capital to the Company  Principal activities
MM MR R ERETRARE FATEMEES
GIET AERE £t R RINEE HREX Epai TEEH
Direct Indirect
B BE
% %
Baoding Maoye Land and PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000,000 - 100  Property development
Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. 18 December 2006 AR 50,000,000 BHELE
(‘Baoding Land and Real Estate’) e/ REIARE
REXERMERERRAT 20065125188
(MRERMERE)
Linyi Maoye Department Store Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB5,000,000 - 100  Operation of a department
BARXEEERAT 3 November 2010 A E%5,000,0007C store
e,/ REARE KEBEE
2010%11H3A
Taizhou Maoye Property Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China HK$524,800,000 - 100  Property development
(“Taizhou Property’) 8 November 2010 524,800,0007% 70 BHEEE
FNREEEERNE (RMRE) e,/ B AR
2010411588
Hong Kong Maoye Department Store (Yangzhou) ~ PRC/Mainland China RMB64,643,046 - 70 Operation of a department
Co., Ltd. 16 May 1996 AE64,643,0467T store
ERARERE GG BRAE" e,/ REIARE KEBER
199658164
Zibo Maoye Shangsha Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB81,800,000 - 80  Operation of department
HMEREBEBRAT” 25 June 1994 AR #81,800,0007T stores and supermarket
R,/ REIARE chain stores
1994464 25H KenaEREHED
Maoye Commercial Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB1,731,982,546 - 82.8  Investment holding and
(‘Maoye Commercial’) 31 December 1993 ANE#1,731,982,5467T operation of department
REBERNERAR (REHE)" e,/ B AR stores
1993128311 RERERESEREE
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HZE2022F12831HIEFE

1.

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

1. REIREEREH @

ERMBARNER (@

AATEEMBATNFENT © (@

(continued)
Place and date Nominal value
of incorporation/ of issued and  Percentage of
registration and paid-up share/ equity attributable
Company name place of operations registered capital to the Company  Principal activities
ML AR ERTRARE FAREMGEES
NGB AERE £t R RIVEE/ EMES BAL TEEH
Direct Indirect
B RBE
% %
Chengdu Maoye Property Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB48,000,000 - 79.35  Investment holding
BHREEXBRAT” 18 March 1998 AR #48,000,0007T RELER
hE,/REARE
1998535 18H
Chengshang Group Nanchong Maoye Co., Ltd. ~ PRC/Mainland China RMB20,000,000 - 82.8  Operation of a department
(‘Nanchong Maoye”) 20 November 2001 AE20,000,0007% store
RAERRAXEEEARAR (HRKE) > FE,/ FEAE KEBEE
20015118208
Nanchong Zefu Trade Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB21,500,000 - 82.8  Operation of a department
BRERHEERAT" 5 November 2014 AE#21,500,0007T store
I,/ RE AR KEBERE
2014511850
Nanchong Zhimei Trade Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB3,800,000 - 82.8  Operation of a department
HRASEHEBRAT” 17 November 2014 AR 13,800,000t store
e,/ REARE KEREE
20145118170
Chengshang Group Holdings Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB1,378,417,349 - 82.8  Investment holding
(‘Chengshang Group') 9 March 1998 AE#1,378,417,3497 R&EZR
MEERERERAD (LR hE,/ Rl AR
19985359H
Leshan E'mei Shan Chengshang PRC/Mainland China RMB33,730,000 - 6624  Operation of a hotel and
Phoenix Co., Ltd. 11 March 1997 AR#33,730,0007T provision of ancillary
& | mEELRRERERENERAT" hE/REARE services
199738118 RERE R MHEERS
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Year ended 31 December 2022
B ZE2022F12831HIEFE

1.

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

1. REIREEREH @

ERMBARNER (@

AATEEMBATNFENT © (8

(continued)
Place and date Nominal value
of incorporation/ of issued and  Percentage of
registration and paid-up share/ equity attributable
Company name place of operations registered capital to the Company  Principal activities
MM MR R ERETRARE FATEMEES
GIET AfREX MR RINEE HREX Epai TEEH
Direct Indirect
B BE
% %
Chengdu People’s Department Store (Group) PRC/Mainland China RMB5,000,000 - 82.8  Operation of a department
Mianyang Co., Ltd. 13 September 2007 A #5,000,0007T store
BEARES EE) BHERAT" e,/ REARE KepaE
200749F 138
Chengdu Group Mianyang Department Store PRC/Mainland China RMB5,000,000 - 82.8  Operation of a department
Co., Ltd. 3 February 2015 AE#5,000,0007T store
REERRERERERRAT hEl,/ REARE KEpaE
2015%2A3H
Chengshang Group Chengdu People’s PRC/Mainland China RMB20,000,000 - 82.8  Investment holding and
Department Store Co., Ltd. 21 August 2009 AR #20,000,0007% operation of department
RAERANSARBAERAT FE/ RE AR stores
2009F8A21H REZRREEHERE
Chengdu Maoye Estate Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB8,000,000 - 82.8  Property development
HHREMEBRAT” 15 July 2008 A E%8,000,0007C BHELR
e,/ REARE
20087150
Heze Maoye Department Store Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB5,000,000 - 74,52 Operation of a department
ERXBEEBERAT 29 December 2008 AR 5,000,0007T store
e,/ B AR KEpaE
20085128290
Jiangsu Maoye Department Stores PRC/Mainland China RMB325,000,000 - 100  Operation of a department
IERERERRAT 9 May 2012 AR #325,000,0007T store
/AR KEBER
2012486398
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Year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12831HIEFE

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(continued)

1. REIREEREH @

ERMBARNER (@
FRABEEZMBRABFENT : (8

Information about subsidiaries (continued)
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

(continued)
Place and date Nominal value
of incorporation/ of issued and  Percentage of
registration and paid-up share/ equity attributable
Company name place of operations registered capital to the Company  Principal activities
ML AR ERTRARE FAREMGEES
G AERE £t R RiAEE/ FRES BAL TEEH
Direct Indirect
B RBE
% %
Baotou Maoye Dongzheng Real Estate PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 - 100  Property development
Development Co., Ltd. 26 October 2011 AR #10,000,0007T BHMELE
(‘Baotou Maoye Dongzheng’) hE/ RE AR
AETREREEMERZFRAT 201145105268
(MBERERE)
Laiwu Maoye Property Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB20,000,000 - 100  Operation of a department
REREEXBERAT” 25 December 2012 AR #20,000,0007 store
e,/ REARE KEREE
20126 12H25H
Shenzhen Maoye Investment Holdings Co., Ltd.  PRC/Mainland China RMB545,465,800 - 100 Investment holding
(‘Shenzhen Maoye Investment’) 24 August 2012 AR #545,465,8007T REZR
MNEEREERERAR hE,/REIARE
(MRNEFRE) 20124F8F24H
Shenyang Anli Real Estate Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB133,000,000 S 100 Investment holding and
("Shenyang Anli’) 4 August 2005 AR #133,000,00075 property management
ERRUEEKEEREALT I,/ RElARE REERRNEERE
(Mm% 2005F8A4H
Shenyang Maoye Hotel Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 - 99  Hotel business
BEXEBEERAR 30 August 2007 AR 10,000,000 BIEER
hE,/REARE
200748H30A
Liaoning Logistics Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB78,000,000 - 99.94  Investment holding and
("Liaoning Logistics’) 12 May 2003 AE78,000,0007T property development
EEMRERAR (REWR) hE,/ REIARE RERREEHAELR
2003455 12A
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Year ended 31 December 2022
B ZE2022F12831HIEFE

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

1. REIREEREH @

ERMBARNER (@

AATEEMBATNFENT © (8

(continued)
Place and date Nominal value
of incorporation/ of issued and  Percentage of
registration and paid-up share/ equity attributable
Company name place of operations registered capital to the Company  Principal activities
MM MR R ERETRARE FATEMEES
GIET AERE £t R RINEE HREX Epai TEEH
Direct Indirect
B BE
% %
Shenyang Zhanye Property Co., Ltd.(‘Zhanye”) ~ PRC/Mainland China RMB245,000,000 - 5094  Property development
BEREEHMERAR (BE) 2 September 1999 A 1245,000,00070 BHELR
e,/ REARE
199997 2H
Shandong Weizhou Property Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000,000 - 100  Property development
UREMNEZRRAT 11 August 2009 AR 50,000,00070 BHEZR
e,/ HRE AR
200988118
Qinhuangdao Maoye Real Estate Development PRC/Mainland China RMB515,000,000 - 100 Property development
Co,, Ltd. 4 January 2012 AR 515,000,007 BHEER
REBKERMEREERAG" e,/ RE AR
20121848
Qinghuangdao Maoye Property Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB8,000,000 - 82.8  Property development
ZEERXEXRHEREBRAT" 19 May 2016 AR #8,000,0007 and operation of a
R,/ REIARE department store
2016458198 BHEZRREERERE
Qinhuangdao Jinyuan Real Estate PRC/Mainland China RMB135,000,000 - 100  Property development
Development Co., Ltd. 8 August 2000 AR 135,000,000 BHEEE
REBMEREHAEREERAT e,/ TRE AR
20008H8H
Zibo Maoye Property Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB20,000,000 - 100  Property development
HEREEEBRAT 29 November 2013 AR 20,000,000 EMEXE
e,/ RE AR
2013E118290

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 F£E R %

MAOYE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED %2 BIBRZER A RA T

113



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A T5 R M5t

Year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12831HIEFE

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. AERERER @

(continued)
BRAMBATNER @
KABEEMBATINEBOT (@

Information about subsidiaries (continued)
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

(continued)
Place and date Nominal value
of incorporation/ of issued and  Percentage of
registration and paid-up share/ equity attributable
Company name place of operations registered capital to the Company  Principal activities
ML AR ERTRARE FAREMGEES
G AfREX MR RiAEE/ FRES BAL TEEH
Direct Indirect
B RBE
% %
Qinhuangdao Maoye Department Store Co., Ltd.  PRC/Mainland China RMB342,301,588 - 100  Operation of a department
ZEERXBERRAT" 26 June 2001 AR 1342,301,5887T store
hE,/REARE KEREE
2001565260
Qinhuangdao Maoye Property PRC/Mainland China RMB5,000,000 - 100 Property leasing
Management Co., Ltd. 26 June 2001 AE#5,000,0007 MERE
REBRENERFBRRA e/ REA R
2001465260
Qinhuangdao Jinyuan Business PRC/Mainland China RMB140,000,000 - 100  Property management
Management Co., Ltd. 14 April 2001 AR #140,000,0007 MEER
RERBMERHEERAEREAAT" e,/ REARE
2001545148
Anhui Guorun Investment and Development PRC/Mainland China RMB294,330,000 - 100 Investment holding and
Co., Ltd. (*Anhui Guorun”) 4 Qctober 1998 AR #294,330,0007T property development
ZHEERBEERARAD (RHEE) hE,/REARE RERRREHELR
1998510544
Chuzhou Maoye Investment and PRC/Mainland China RMB70,000,000 - 100  Property development
Development Co., Ltd. 25 April 2003 AE 70,000,000 BHELE
BNEEREERBRAA B/ REA
200345250
Shenzhen Maoye Innovation Service Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 - 82.8  Software and information
FIRERFREBR AR 22 September 2021 AR 10,000,000 technology
I,/ REARE B R {5 SR
2021598228
Wuhu Maoye Property Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB110,000,000 - 100  Property development
BHREEXBERAT 16 May 2002 AR #110,000,0007 BHELR
hE,/REARE
200255168
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B ZE2022F12831HIEFE

1.

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

1. REIREEREH @

ERMBARNER (@

AATEEMBATNFENT © (8

(continued)
Place and date Nominal value
of incorporation/ of issued and  Percentage of
registration and paid-up share/ equity attributable
Company name place of operations registered capital to the Company  Principal activities
MM MR R ERETRARE FATEMEES
GIET AERE £t R RINEE HREX Epai TEEH
Direct Indirect
B BE
% %

Huainan Maoye Investment and PRC/Mainland China RMB31,600,000 - 100  Property development
Development Co., Ltd. 26 March 2002 AE%31,600,00070 BHELR

ERXEREERARAR e,/ REARE

20024E3 6268

Chengdu Maoye Renhe Spring Department PRC/Mainland China RMB40,000,000 - 82.8  Operation of a department
Store Co., Ltd. (‘Chengdu Renhe Spring”) 29 October 1997 AE#40,000,0007% store

BB EECNEREEERAT e,/ B AR KEBEE

(TR #ER) 1997410829H

Chengdu Maoye Qingyang District Renhe PRC/Mainland China RMB185,000,000 - 82.8  Operation of a department
Spring Department Store Limited 29 November 2007 AE#185,000,0007% store
(‘Chengdu Qingyang Renhe Spring’) HE,/ B AR RE[ER

REmEIRRECHEREEERAR 20074118298

(RBEECHNER)

Inner Mongolia Victory Commercial (Group) PRC/Mainland China RMB170,000,000 S 70.38  Investment holding
Management Co., Limited 12 June 2002 AR #170,000,0007% and operation of a
(‘Victory Commercial’) HE,/ B A department store

NELELHIEE (B BRAR 2002465128 RERREKERERE

(Mg sHmE)~

Inner Mongolia Victory Xincheng Commercial PRC/Mainland China RMB140,000,000 - 70.38  Operation of a department
Management Co., Limited 15 January 2008 AE#140,000,0007% store

AEOELTFREEERRRAT" I,/ REARE KEBERE

2008515158

Inner Mongolia Jinweili Commercial PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 - 70,38 Operation of a department
Management Co., Limited 24 March 2015 AR %10,000,0007T store

NELEENBEERERAF" e,/ REARE KEBEE

201583H24R
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A T5 R M5t

Year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12831HIEFE

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. AERERER @

(continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

ERMBARNER (@

AATEEMBATNFENT © (@

(continued)
Place and date Nominal value
of incorporation/ of issued and  Percentage of
registration and paid-up share/ equity attributable
Company name place of operations registered capital to the Company  Principal activities
ML AR ERTRARE FAREMGEES
G AfREX MR RiAEE/ FRES BAL TEEH
Direct Indirect
B RBE
% %
Baotou Maoye Victory Business PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 - 82.8  Operation of a department
Management Co., Limited 14 November 2019 A %10,000,0007T store
AEMREESHBEERERAF" e,/ REARE KEREE
20195118 14H
Baotou Victory Mall Co., Limited PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 - 70,38 Operation of a department
BETELTBEBRAD" 14 April 2009 AE 10,000,000 store
e/ REA KEBEE
200948148
Baotou Victory Commercial Management PRC/Mainland China RMB3,000,000 - 70.38  Operation of a department
Co., Limited 28 October 2013 AE3,000,0007T store
OEMELHBEERRRAF I,/ RE AR KEBERE
2013108280
Chengdu Maoye Real Estate Management PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 - 82.8  Property development
Co, Ltd 18 January 2022 AE1,000,0007T BHEZR
WERE HEEEFRAT /e AR
2022418188
Hohhot Victory Real Estate PRC/Mainland China RMB30,000,000 - 70.38  Property development
Development Co., Limited 29 November 2001 AE#30,000,0007¢ BHERRE
WERTHSHRNERERRAT e/ REARE
20014118290
Hohhot Victory Property Management LLC PRC/Mainland China RMB500,000 - 70,38 Property leasing
WHERHESHEREERISERT" 25 January 2008 K #500,00070 NEEE
B,/ RE AR
2008415250
Maoye Digital Intelligence Information Technology ~ PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 - 98  Investment holding
(Shenzhen) Co., Limited 23 January 2017 AR 10,000,000 KREZR
XEHBHAEERM (RY) BRAZ" /e AR
2017415238
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A T5 R R M 5T

Year ended 31 December 2022
B ZE2022F12831HIEFE

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. AERERER @

(continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

ERMBARNER (@

AATEEMBATNFENT © (8

(continued)
Place and date Nominal value
of incorporation/ of issued and  Percentage of
registration and paid-up share/ equity attributable
Company name place of operations registered capital to the Company  Principal activities
MM MR R ERETRARE FATEMEES
AE%TE AERE £t R RINEE HREX Epai TEEH
Direct Indirect
B BE
% %
Baotou Maoye Property Co., Limited PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 - 82.8  Property management
BEXEEZRRAT" 20 September 2019 AR #10,000,0007 WEEE
e,/ REIARE
201998208
Maoye Technology Retails Co., Limited PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 - 82.8  Investment holding
EERBTERRAT" 16 December 2019 AR #10,000,0007T RERK
e,/ REARE
2019512H 160
Chengdu Maoye Hotel Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 - 82.8  Hotel business
WA EREERAT 12 November 2019 AR #10,000,0007T BEES
e,/ B AR
20198118128
Chengdu Maoye Investment Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB600,000,000 - 82.8  Property development
MEAREREBRAR 22 August 2011 AR #:600,000,0007 EHERE
/AR
2011588228
Hefei Yerun Trade Co., Limited PRC/Mainland China RMB20,000,000 - 100 Investment holding
BREEEEERRAT 04 September 1998 AR #20,000,0007T BERK
e,/ REARE
1998974 H
Wuhu Maoye Agricultural and Sideline PRC/Mainland China RMB22,000,000 - 100 Investment holding
Products Market Co., Limited 10 June 2006 AR #22,000,0007T RERR
RARERAEQTABRAT e,/ REARE
2006565108
Maoye Investment Jiangsu Co., Limited PRC/Mainland China USD30,000,000 = 100 Investment holding
REREIHERAF 10 August 2022 30,000,000 7% REER
R/ AR
2022485108
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR MIEE

Year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12831HIEFE

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:
(continued)

*

A subsidiary with its A shares listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange in the
PRC

ke

Companies registered as limited liability companies under PRC law

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the
opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for the year or
formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To give
details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors,
result in particulars of excessive length.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AT R R EE

Year ended 31 December 2022
B ZE2022F12831HIEFE

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 F£E R %

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”), which
comprise standards and interpretations approved by the International
Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”), and International Accounting
Standards and Standing Interpretations Committee Interpretations
approved by the International Accounting Standards Committee,
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. They have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, except for investment properties, financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss (“FVPL”), and equity investments
designated at fair value through other comprehensive income
(“FVOCI”) which have been measured at fair value. These financial
statements are presented in Renminbi (‘RMB”) and all values are
rounded to the nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had net current liabilities of
approximately RMB5,947,000,000. The Group’s ability to repay its
debts when they fall due relies heavily on its future operating cash
flows and its ability to renew the bank loans and other borrowings.
The directors have carefully assessed the Group’s liquidity position
having taken into account:

(1) the Group’s expected cash inflows from operating activities in
2023;

(2) the bank borrowings that will expire during the next 12 months,
which the directors of the Company are confident that could be
renewed upon expiration based on the Group’s past experience
and credit standing; and

(8) RMB1,758,677,000 and RMB730,379,000 of current liabilities
as at 31 December 2022 are contract liabilities and deposits
received in nature of which the Group will not be expecting any
cash outflow.

The directors of the Company believe that the Group has adequate
resources to continue operation for the foreseeable future of not less
than 12 months from the end of the reporting year. The directors of
the Company therefore are of the opinion that it is appropriate to
adopt the going concern basis in preparing the consolidated financial
statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A T5 R M5t

Year ended 31 December 2022

HE2022F12831HIEEE
2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued) 2.1 R U EE (@)
Basis of consolidation SHEE

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022.

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity), directly or
indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when
the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that
give the Group the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the
investee).

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights
results in control. When the Company has, directly or indirectly,
less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the
Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing
whether it has power over an investee, including:

(@ the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the
investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the
same reporting period as the Company, using consistent accounting
policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date
on which the Group obtains control, and continue to be consolidated
until the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group
and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets
and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to
transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A T5 R R M 5T

Year ended 31 December 2022
B ZE2022F12831HIEFE

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued) 1RNEE @

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 F£E R %

Basis of consolidation (continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or
more of the three elements of control described above. A change
in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is
accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i) the
assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, (i) the
carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (i) the cumulative
translation differences recorded in equity; and recognises () the
fair value of the consideration received, (iij the fair value of any
investment retained and (i) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit
or loss. The Group’s share of components previously recognised
in other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss or
retained profits, as appropriate, on the same basis as would be
required if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities.

2.2CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following revised IFRSs for the first time
for the current year’s financial statements.
Amendments to IFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual
Framework
Property, Plant and Equipment:
Proceeds before Intended Use
Onerous Contracts —
Cost of Fulfilling a Contract
Amendments to IFRS 1,
IFRS 9, lllustrative Examples
accompanying IFRS 16, and
IAS 41

Amendments to IAS 16
Amendments to IAS 37

Annual Improvements to
IFRS Standards 2018-2020
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A T5 R M5t

Year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12831HIEFE

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

The nature and the impact of the revised IFRSs that are applicable to
the Group are described below:

@)

Amendments to IFRS 3 replace a reference to the previous
Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial
Statements with a reference to the Conceptual Framework for
Financial Reporting (the “Conceptual Framework”) issued in
March 2018 without significantly changing its requirements. The
amendments also add to IFRS 3 an exception to its recognition
principle for an entity to refer to the Conceptual Framework to
determine what constitutes an asset or a liability. The exception
specifies that, for liabilities and contingent liabilities that would
be within the scope of IAS 37 or IFRIC 21 if they were incurred
separately rather than assumed in a business combination,
an entity applying IFRS 3 should refer to IAS 37 or IFRIC 21
respectively instead of the Conceptual Framework. Furthermore,
the amendments clarify that contingent assets do not qualify
for recognition at the acquisition date. The Group has applied
the amendments prospectively to business combinations
that occurred on or after 1 January 2022. As there were no
contingent assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities within the
scope of the amendments arising in the business combination
that occurred during the year, the amendments did not have any
impact on the financial position and performance of the Group.

Amendments to IAS 16 prohibit an entity from deducting
from the cost of an item of property, plant and equipment any
proceeds from selling items produced while bringing that asset
to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of
operating in the manner intended by management. Instead,
an entity recognises the proceeds from selling any such items,
and the cost of those items as determined by IAS 2 /nventories,
in profit or loss. The Group has applied the amendments
retrospectively to items of property, plant and equipment made
available for use on or after 1 January 2021. Since there was
no sale of items produced prior to the property, plant and
equipment being available for use, the amendments did not
have any impact on the financial position or performance of the
Group.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A T5 R R M 5T

Year ended 31 December 2022
B ZE2022F12831HIEFE

2.2CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

The nature and the impact of the revised IFRSs that are applicable to
the Group are described below: (continued)

(©)

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 F£E R %

Amendments to IAS 37 clarify that for the purpose of assessing
whether a contract is onerous under IAS 37, the cost of fuffilling
the contract comprises the costs that relate directly to the
contract. Costs that relate directly to a contract include both
the incremental costs of fulfilling that contract (e.g., direct labour
and materials) and an allocation of other costs that relate directly
to fulfiling that contract (e.g., an allocation of the depreciation
charge for an item of property, plant and equipment used in
fulfilling the contract as well as contract management and
supervision costs). General and administrative costs do not
relate directly to a contract and are excluded unless they are
explicitly chargeable to the counterparty under the contract. The
Group has applied the amendments prospectively to contracts
for which it has not yet fulfilled all its obligations at 1 January
2022 and no onerous contracts were identified. Therefore, the
amendments did not have any impact on the financial position or
performance of the Group.

Annual Improvements to /FRS Standards 2018-2020 sets
out amendments to IFRS 1, IFRS 9, lllustrative Examples
accompanying IFRS 16, and IAS 41. Details of the amendment
that is applicable to the Group are as follows:

e |FRS 9 Financial Instruments: clarifies the fees that an entity
includes when assessing whether the terms of a new or
modified financial liability are substantially different from the
terms of the original financial liability. These fees include
only those paid or received between the borrower and the
lender, including fees paid or received by either the borrower
or lender on the other’s behalf. The Group has applied the
amendment prospectively from 1 January 2022. As there
was no modification or exchange of the Group’s financial
liabilities during the year, the amendment did not have
any impact on the financial position or performance of the
Group.
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RAFsER R MIEE

Year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12831HIEFE

2.3ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised IFRSSs,
that have been issued but are not yet effective in these financial

statements.

Amendments to IFRS 10

and IAS 28

Amendments to IFRS 16

IFRS 17

Amendments to IFRS 17

Amendment to IFRS 17

Amendments to IAS 1

Amendments to IAS 1

Amendments to IAS 1 and
IFRS Practice Statement 2

Amendments to IAS 8

Amendments to IAS 12

FNER S S

2024.

3 As a consequence of the amendments to IFRS 17 issued in June 2020, IFRS
4 was amended to extend the temporary exemption that permits insurers to
apply IAS 39 rather than IFRS 9 for annual periods beginning before 1 January

2023

e An entity that chooses to apply the transition option relating to the
classification overlay set out in this amendment shall apply it on initial

application of IFRS 17

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an
Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture®

Lease Liability in a Sale
and Leaseback?
Insurance Contracts'

Insurance Contracts™®

Initial Application of IFRS 17 and IFRS 9 -
Comparative Information®

Classification of Liabilities as

Current or Non-current

(the “2020 Amendments”)> 4
Non-current Liabilities

with Covenants

(the “2022 Amendments”?
Disclosure of Accounting Policies'

Definition of Accounting Estimates'

Deferred Tax related to Assets
and Liabilities arising from a
Single Transaction’

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024

No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption

As a consequence of the 2022 Amendments, the effective date of the 2020
Amendments was deferred to annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
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2.3ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE 2.3 B a1 M ok £ 389 Bl PR B 75 ¥R

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 F£E R %

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

Further information about those IFRSs that are expected to be
applicable to the Group is described below.

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 address an inconsistency
between the requirements in IFRS 10 and in IAS 28 in dealing
with the sale or contribution of assets between an investor and its
associate or joint venture. The amendments require a full recognition
of a gain or loss resulting from a downstream transaction when the
sale or contribution of assets between an investor and its associate
or joint venture constitutes a business. For a transaction involving
assets that do not constitute a business, a gain or loss resulting
from the transaction is recognised in the investor’s profit or loss only
to the extent of the unrelated investor’s interest in that associate or
joint venture. The amendments are to be applied prospectively. The
previous mandatory effective date of amendments to IFRS 10 and
IAS 28 was removed by the IASB in December 2015 and a new
mandatory effective date will be determined after the completion of
a broader review of accounting for associates and joint ventures.
However, the amendments are available for adoption now.

Amendments to IFRS 16 specify the requirements that a seller-lessee
uses in measuring the lease liability arising in a sale and leaseback
transaction to ensure the seller-lessee does not recognise any
amount of the gain or loss that relates to the right of use it retains.
The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2024 and shall be applied retrospectively to sale and
leaseback transactions entered into after the date of initial application
of IFRS 16 (i.e., 1 January 2019). Earlier application is permitted. The
amendments are not expected to have any significant impact on the
Group’s financial statements.

HEER @

ERREARBRARETEBNERY R
HEAME—SERFEMMT -

BB RS E R F10 R E R T st &
A5528%% (1851 A) BABIKMBFRE
B 551050 K B PR & 5t 2 B 552857 >~ 4]
HREREREELEHBEATGEEH
¥CBEEHERRANREN I —
Mo ZEBITBERNEBEEZELEHBE N
DAY EECEHAMNEELERBAE
B —IEERE BB E2MRE T HERS
MR BN A EBREFNEE
G RXZREENWGE D EEE L E
MENKREENZBEA AT EE b
MEDZAR RNIEEENEBERRED-
ZEBIT BN AR AREER . BEED
HHHERIBEG B H20155FE128 5k E
MRS ERFE10E RER G+ 2ERH
288% (1E574) LAEsamIE M B ER mH
HRE E M HRR RS AT RS E
TCENSHRESRPEZNREBE
TE o SR > X E BT IR IR FE RS o

HREF RS 2R 51658 (1B5TA) B
BEA-—ABAGFEERLARZESE
MIBEEBFRBAAENRE URERE
F—ABATERDEMREERES
B EiEE S B -2 S B BMER
R2024F1B1H S 2 BEIEMERE RS
HA > 30 FE BB R R B PR B RS R s #E )
F16EEXER2H (BI2019FE181H)
ZRBRBINERLOERG - AFIEERE
AezEEIBMEreHRERNEGT
BRREETEMAEATE-

MAOYE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED %2 BIBRZER A RA T

125



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A T5 R M5t

Year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12831HIEFE

2.3ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE 2.3 B a8 5 ok 4 3080 B P& B 755 8k

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to IAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-
current clarify the requirements for classifying liabilities as current or
non-current, in particular the determination over whether an entity
has a right to defer settlement of the liabilities for at least 12 months
after the reporting period. Classification of a liability is unaffected by
the likelihood that the entity will exercise its right to defer settlement
of the liability. In 2022, the IASB issued the 2022 Amendments to
further clarify that, among covenants of a liability arising from a loan
arrangement, only those with which an entity must comply on or
before the reporting date affect the classification of that liability as
current or non-current. In addition, the 2022 Amendments require
additional disclosures by an entity that classifies liabilities arising
from loan arrangements as non-current when it has a right to defer
settlement of those liabilities that are subject to the entity complying
with future covenants within 12 months after the reporting period.
The amendments also clarify the situations that are considered a
settlement of a liability. The amendments are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024 and shall be applied
retrospectively. Earlier application is permitted. An entity that applies
the 2020 Amendments early is required to apply simultaneously
the 2022 Amendments, and vice versa. The Group is currently
assessing the impact of the amendments and whether existing
loan agreements may require revision. Based on a preliminary
assessment, the amendments are not expected to have any
significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.

Amendments to IAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting Policies require
entities to disclose their material accounting policy information
rather than their significant accounting policies. Accounting policy
information is material if, when considered together with other
information included in an entity’s financial statements, it can
reasonably be expected to influence decisions that the primary users
of general purpose financial statements make on the basis of those
financial statements. Amendments to IFRS Practice Statement 2
provide non-mandatory guidance on how to apply the concept of
materiality to accounting policy disclosures. Amendments to IAS 1
are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023
and earlier application is permitted. Since the guidance provided in
the amendments to IFRS Practice Statement 2 is non-mandatory,
an effective date for these amendments is not necessary. The Group
is currently revisiting the accounting policy disclosures to ensure
consistency with the amendments.
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INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to IAS 8 clarify the distinction between changes
in accounting estimates and changes in accounting policies.
Accounting estimates are defined as monetary amounts in financial
statements that are subject to measurement uncertainty. The
amendments also clarify how entities use measurement techniques
and inputs to develop accounting estimates. The amendments are
effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January
2023 and apply to changes in accounting policies and changes in
accounting estimates that occur on or after the start of that period.
Earlier application is permitted. The amendments are not expected to
have any significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.

Amendments to IAS 12 narrow the scope of the initial recognition
exception in IAS 12 so that it no longer applies to transactions that
give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences, such
as leases and decommissioning obligations. Therefore, entities are
required to recognise a deferred tax asset (provided that sufficient
taxable profit is available) and a deferred tax liability for temporary
differences arising from these transactions. The amendments
are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1
January 2023 and shall be applied to transactions related to leases
and decommissioning obligations at the beginning of the earliest
comparative period presented, with any cumulative effect recognised
as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained profits or other
component of equity as appropriate at that date. In addition, the
amendments shall be applied prospectively to transactions other
than leases and decommissioning obligations. Earlier application is
permitted. The amendments are not expected to have any significant
impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24T EGHBEME

POLICIES

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long term interest
or generally not less than 20% of the equity voting rights and over
which it is in a position to exercise significant influence. Significant
influence is the power to participate in the financial and operating
policy decisions of the investee, but is not control or joint control over
those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the parties that
have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of
the joint venture. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of
control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about
the relevant activities require the unanimous consent of the parties
sharing control.

The Group’s investments in its associates and joint ventures are
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position at the
Group’s share of net assets under the equity method of accounting,
less any impairment losses. Adjustments are made to bring into line
any dissimilar accounting policies that may exist. The Group’s share
of the post-acquisition results and other comprehensive income
of associates and joint ventures is included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and the consolidated other comprehensive
income, respectively. In addition, when there has been a change
recognised directly in the equity of the associate or joint venture,
the Group recognises its share of any changes, when applicable,
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. Unrealised
gains and losses resulting from transactions between the Group
and its associates or joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of
the Group’s investments in the associates or joint ventures, except
where unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment of the
assets transferred. Goodwill arising from the acquisition of associates
or joint ventures is included as part of the Group’s investments in
associates or joint ventures.

When an investment in an associate or a joint venture is classified
as held for sale, it is accounted for in accordance with IFRS 5 Non-
current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations.
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EF2022F12831HILEE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24FTEGTHBERBME @
POLICIES (continued)
Business combinations and goodwill EBaHREmE

Business combinations and goodwill Business combinations are
accounted for using the acquisition method. The consideration
transferred is measured at the acquisition date fair value which is the
sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets transferred by the
Group. Liabilities assumed by the Group to the former owners of the
acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange
for control of the acquiree. For each business combination, the
Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling interests in the
acquiree that are present ownership interests and entitle their holders
to a proportionate share of net assets in the event of liquidation at
fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets. All other components of non-controlling interests are
measured at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

The Group determines that it has acquired a business when
the acquired set of activities and assets includes an input and a
substantive process that together significantly contribute to the ability
to create outputs.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets
and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and designation
in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances
and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes
the separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts of the
acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously held
equity interest is re-measured at its acquisition date fair value and
any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
will be recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability is measured at
fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not re-
measured and subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24T EGHBERME @

POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the
aggregate of the consideration transferred and the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests, and any previously held
equity interests, over the net identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed. If the sum of this consideration and other items is lower
than the fair value of the net assets acquired, the difference is, after
reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain
purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment loss. Goodwill is tested for impairment
annually if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying value may be impaired. The Group performs its annual
impairment test of goodwill as at 31 December. For the purpose of
impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is,
from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s cash-
generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are
expected to benefit from the combination, irrespective of whether
other assets or liabilities of the Group are assigned to those units or
groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to which
the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is less than the
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An impairment
loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (or
group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation within
that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation
disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the operation when
determining the gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of in
these circumstances is measured based on the relative value of the
operation disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating unit
retained.
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POLICIES (continued)

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties, financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss and financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive income at fair value at the end of each
reporting period. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset in an orderly transaction between market participants at
the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset takes place either
in the principal market for the asset, or in the absence of a principal
market, in the most advantageous market for the asset. The principal
or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group.
The fair value of an asset is measured using the assumptions that
market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability,
assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account
a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using
the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure
fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial
statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described
as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities

Level2 - based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is observable, either directly or indirectly

Level 3 - based on valuation techniques for which the

lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of
each reporting period.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24T EGHBERME @

POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment
testing for an asset is required (other than inventories, contract
assets, deferred tax assets, financial assets and investment
properties and non-current assets/a disposal group classified as
held for sale), the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An
asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-
generating unit’s value in use and its fair value less costs to disposal,
and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from
other assets or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable
amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs. In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment, a portion
of the carrying amount of a corporate asset (e.g., a headquarters
building) is allocated to an individual cash-generating unit if it can be
allocated on a reasonable and consistent basis or, otherwise, to the
smallest group of cash-generating units.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an
asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. An impairment loss is charged to the consolidated statement
of profit or loss in the period in which it arises in those expense
categories consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to
whether there is an indication that previously recognised impairment
losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such an
indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously
recognised impairment loss of an asset other than goodwill is
reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates used
to determine the recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an
amount higher than the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such
an impairment loss is credited to the statement of profit or loss in the
period in which it arises.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s family
and that person

(i)
(ii
(i)

or

has control or joint control over the Group;
has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management personnel of the Group
or of a parent of the Group;

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

U

(vi)

(vi)

the entity and the Group are members of the same group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the Group (or of
a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same third
party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other
entity is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit
of employees of either the Group or an entity related to the
Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a);

a person identified in (g)() has significant influence over the
entity or is @ member of the key management personnel of
the entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part,
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provides key management personnel services to the Group
or to the parent of the Group.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24T EGHBERME @

POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in progress,
are stated at cost (or valuation) less accumulated depreciation and
any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property, plant and
equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable
costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and location for
its intended use.

Cost may also include transfers from equity of any gains or losses
on qualifying cash flow hedges of foreign currency purchases of
property, plant and equipment.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment
have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is
normally charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss in
the period in which it is incurred. In situations where the recognition
criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection is
capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as a replacement.
Where significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required
to be replaced at intervals, the Group recognises such parts as
individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them
accordingly.

Valuations are performed frequently enough to ensure that the fair
value of a revalued asset does not differ materially from its carrying
amount. Changes in the values of property, plant and equipment are
dealt with as movements in the asset revaluation reserve. If the total
of this reserve is insufficient to cover a deficit, on an individual asset
basis, the excess of the deficit is charged to the statement of profit or
loss. Any subsequent revaluation surplus is credited to the statement
of profit or loss to the extent of the deficit previously charged. An
annual transfer from the asset revaluation reserve to retained profits
is made for the difference between the depreciation based on the
revalued carrying amount of an asset and the depreciation based
on the asset’s original cost. On disposal of a revalued asset, the
relevant portion of the asset revaluation reserve realised in respect of
previous valuations is transferred to retained profits as a movement in
reserves.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24T EGHBERHME @

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 F£E R %

POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the
cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual
value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used for
this purpose are as follows:

E B B R A B s (@)

REDREME BRRREERNE
S (A I Y MU B A S L A
R BEN MGt UL ERNEE
EREEQT

Annual depreciation rate

FINE=XR
Land and buildings T RAEF 2.25% 10 9%
Machinery and equipment A3 R et 9% to 19%

Motor vehicles RE
Furniture, fittings and other equipment
Leasehold improvements HEMZEEE
Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a reasonable
basis among the parts and each part is depreciated separately.
Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation method are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial year
end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant
part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any
gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss in the period the asset is derecognised
is the difference between the net sale proceeds and the carrying
amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents properties under construction,
which are stated at cost less any impairment losses, and are not
depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs of construction during
the period of construction. Construction in progress is reclassified
to the appropriate category of property, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for use.

RE KR HMRE

11.25% to 19%
7.5% to 19%
10% to 33.33%
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24T EGHBERME @

POLICIES (continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings (including
the leasehold property held as a right-of-use asset which would
otherwise meet the definition of an investment property) held to earn
rental income and/or for capital appreciation, rather than for use in
the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of business. Such
properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are stated at
fair value, which reflects market conditions at the end of the reporting
period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of investment
properties are included in the statement of profit or loss in the year in
which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment
property are recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the year
of the retirement or disposal.

For a transfer from investment properties to owner-occupied
properties or inventories, the deemed cost of a property for
subsequent accounting is its fair value at the date of change in
use. If a property occupied by the Group as an owner-occupied
property becomes an investment property, the Group accounts for
such property in accordance with the policy stated under “Property,
plant and equipment and depreciation” for owned property and/
or accounts for such property in accordance with the policy stated
under “Right-of-use assets” for property held as a right-of-use asset
up to the date of change in use, and any difference at that date
between the carrying amount and the fair value of the property is
accounted for as a revaluation in accordance with the policy stated
under “Property, plant and equipment and depreciation” above. For
a transfer from inventories to investment properties, any difference
between the fair value of the property at that date and its previous
carrying amount is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24T EGHBERHME @
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POLICIES (continued)

Properties under development

Properties under development are stated at cost, which include all
development expenditures, including land costs, interest charges and
other costs directly attributable to such properties.

Properties under development are classified as current assets unless
the construction period of the relevant property development project
is expected to complete beyond the normal operating cycle.

Properties under development are valued at the lower of cost and
net realisable value at the end of the reporting period and any
excess of cost over the net realisable value of an individual item of
properties under development is accounted for as a provision. Net
realisable value is based on estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business as determined by management with reference to
the prevailing market conditions, less further costs expected to be
incurred to completion and selling and marketing costs.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a
business combination is the fair value at the date of acquisition.
The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite
or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently
amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be
impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for
an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at
each financial year end.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment
annually either individually or at the cash-generating unit level. Such
intangible assets are not amortised. The useful life of an intangible
asset with an indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether
the indefinite life assessment continues to be supportable. If not,
the change in the useful life assessment from indefinite to finite is
accounted for on a prospective basis.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24T EGHBERME @

POLICIES (continued)

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or
contains, a lease. A contract is or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach
for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-
value assets. The Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease
payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the
underlying assets.

At inception or on reassessment of a contract that contains a lease
component and non-lease component(s), the Group adopts the
practical expedient not to separate non-lease component(s) and
to account for the lease component and the associated non-lease
component(s) (e.g., property management services for leases of
properties) as a single lease component.

(@) Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement date
of the lease (that is the date of the underlying asset is available
for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost
of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities is
recognised, initial direct costs, and lease payments made at
or before the commencement date less any lease incentives
received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-
line basis over the shorter of the lease terms and the estimated
useful lives of the asset as follows:

Land use right
Buildings

20 to 70 years
2 to 23 years

If ownership of leased asset transfers to the Group by the end of
lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a purchase option,
depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of the
asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)
Group as a lessee (continued)

(b)

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 F£E R %

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement date of
the lease at the present value of lease payments to be made
over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments
(including in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives
receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or
a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value
guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price
of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the
Group and payments of penalties for termination of a lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising the option to terminate
the lease. The variable lease payments that do not depend on
an index or a rate are recognised as an expense in the period in
which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group
uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement
date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of
lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and
reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying
amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification,
a change in the lease term, a change in lease payments (e.g.,
a change to future lease payments resulting from a change in
an index or rate) or a change in assessment of an option to
purchase the underlying asset.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption
to its short-term leases of office equipment (that is those
leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). It
also applies the recognition exemption for leases of low-value
assets to leases of office equipment and laptop computers that
are considered to be of low value.

Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value
assets are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis
over the lease term.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24T EGHBERME @

POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)
Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease inception (or
when there is a lease modification) each of its leases as either an
operating lease or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are classified
as operating leases. When a contract contains lease and non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration in the contract to
each component on a relative stand-alone selling price basis. Rental
income is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease term
and is included in revenue in the statement of profit or loss due to
its operating nature. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and
arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis
as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the
period in which they are earned.

Lease that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of an underlying asset to the lessee are accounted for as
finance leases.

Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently
measured at amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive
income, and fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends
on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics and
the Group’s business model for managing them. With the exception
of trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or for which the Group has applied the practical
expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing
component, the Group initially measures a financial asset at its fair
value, plus in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through
profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not
contain a significant financing component or for which the Group has
applied the practical expedient are measured at the transaction price
determined under IFRS 15 in accordance with the policies set out for
“Revenue recognition” below.
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HE2022F12H31HIEEE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24T ETHEREE @
POLICIES (continued)
Investments and other financial assets (continued) RERHEMEMEE @

Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at
amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive income, it
needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest (“SPPI”) on the principal amount outstanding. Financial
assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are classified and measured
at fair value through profit or loss, irrespective of the business model.

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets refers to
how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash flows.
The business model determines whether cash flows will result from
collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both.
Financial assets classified and measured at amortised cost are held
within a business model with the objective to hold financial assets
in order to collect contractual cash flows, while financial assets
classified and measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income are held within a business model with the objective of both
holding to collect contractual cash flows are selling. Financial assets
which are not held within the aforementioned business models are
classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or
sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the period generally established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using
the effective interest method and are subject to impairment. Gains
and losses are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the
asset is derecognised, modified or impaired.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24T EGHBERME @

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Subsequent measurement (continueq)

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
(debt instruments)

For debts investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income, interest income, foreign exchange revaluation and
impairment losses or reversals are recognised in the statement of
profit or loss and computed in the same manner as for financial
assets measured at amortised cost. The remaining fair value changes
are recognised in other comprehensive income. Upon derecognition,
the cumulative fair value change recognised in other comprehensive
income is recycled to the statement of profit or loss.

Financial assets designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income (equity investments)

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify irrevocably
its equity investments as equity investments designated at fair
value through other comprehensive income when they meet the
definition of equity under IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation
and are not held for trading. The classification is determined on an
instrument-by-instrument basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled to the
statement of profit or loss. Dividends are recognised as other income
in the statement of profit or loss when the right of payment has been
established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with
the dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of the dividend
can be measured reliably, except when the Group benefits from such
proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost of the financial asset,
in which case, such gains are recorded in other comprehensive
income. Equity investments designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income are not subject to impairment assessment.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the
statement of financial position at fair value with net changes in fair
value recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

This category includes equity investments which the Group had
not irrevocably elected to classify at fair value through other
comprehensive income. Dividends on equity investments classified
as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are also
recognised as other income in the statement of profit or loss when
the right of payment has been established, it is probable that the
economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the Group
and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24T EGHBERHME @
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POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Subsequent measurement (continueq)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (continued)

A derivative embedded within a hybrid contract, with a financial
liability or non-financial host, is separated from the host and
accounted for as a separate derivative if the economic characteristics
and risks are not closely related to the host; a separate instrument
with the same terms and the embedded derivative would meet the
definition of a derivative; and the hybrid contract is not measured at
fair value through profit or loss. Embedded derivatives are measured
at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in the statement of
profit or loss. Reassessment only occurs if there is either a change
in the terms of the contract that significantly modifies the cash flows
that would otherwise be required or a reclassification of a financial
asset out of the fair value through profit or loss category.

A derivative embedded within a hybrid contract containing a financial
asset host is not accounted for separately. The financial asset host
together with the embedded derivative is required to be classified in
its entirely as a financial asset at fair value through profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or
part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised
(i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated statement of financial
position) when:

e the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

e the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from
the asset, or has assumed an obligation to pay the received
cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under
a “pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or
(b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of
the asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24T EGHBERME @

POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (continued)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it
evaluates, if and to what extent, it has retained the risk and rewards
of ownership of the asset. When it has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor
transferred control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise the
transferred asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement.
In that case, the Group also recognises an associated liability. The
transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis
that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that
the Group could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses
(‘ECLs”) for all debt instruments not held at fair value through
profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the
contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all
the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at an
approximation of the original effective interest rate. The expected
cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of collateral held or
other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for
which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result
from default events that are possible within the next 12 months (a
12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has been
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss
allowance is required for credit losses expected over the remaining
life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a lifetime
ECL).
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
General approach (continued)

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit
risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition. When making the assessment, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition and considers
reasonable and supportable information that is available without
undue cost or effort, including historical and forward-looking
information.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual
payments are 90 days past due. However, in certain cases, the
Group may also consider a financial asset to be in default when
internal or external information indicates that the Group is unlikely
to receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking
into account any credit enhancements held by the Group. A financial
asset is written off when there is no reasonable expectation of
recovering the contractual cash flows.

Debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive income
and financial assets at amortised cost are subject to impairment
under the general approach and they are classified within the
following stages for measurement of ECLs except for trade
receivables and contract assets which apply the simplified approach
as detailed below.

Stage 1 - Financial instruments for which credit risk has not
increased significantly since initial recognition and for
which the loss allowance is measured at an amount
equal to 12-month ECLs

Stage 2 - Financial instruments for which credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition but that
are not credit-impaired financial assets and for which
the loss allowance is measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs

Stage 3 - Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the
reporting date (but that are not purchased or
originated credit-impaired) and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to lifetime
ECLs
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24T EGHBERME @

POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Simplified approach

For trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or when the Group applies the practical expedient of
not adjusting the effect of a significant financing component, the
Group applies the simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under the
simplified approach, the Group does not track changes in credit risk,
but instead recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at
each reporting date. The Group has established a provision matrix
that is based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic
environment.

For trade receivables that contain a significant financing component
and lease receivables, the Group chooses as its accounting policy
to adopt the simplified approach in calculating ECLs with policies as
described above.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings,
payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an
effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in
the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables,
amounts due to related parties and interest-bearing loans and
borrowings.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their
classification as follows:
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POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities (continued)
Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
rate method unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in
which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss when the liabilities
are derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate
amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is
included in finance costs in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those
contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to
make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument. A financial guarantee contract is recognised initially as a
liability at its fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequent to initial
recognition, the Group measures the financial guarantee contracts at
the higher of: (i) the ECL allowance determined in accordance with
the policy as set out in “Impairment of financial assets”; and (i) the
amount initially recognised less, when appropriate, the cumulative
amount of income recognised.

Convertible bonds

The component of convertible bonds that exhibits characteristics
of a liability is recognised as a liability in the statement of financial
position, net of transaction costs. On issuance of convertible bonds,
the fair value of the liability component is determined using a market
rate for an equivalent non-convertible bond; and this amount is
carried as a long term liability on the amortised cost basis until
extinguished on conversion or redemption. The remainder of the
proceeds is allocated to the conversion option that is recognised
and included in shareholders’ equity, net of transaction costs. The
carrying amount of the conversion option is not re-measured in
subsequent years. Transaction costs are apportioned between the
liability and equity components of the convertible bonds based on
the allocation of proceeds to the liability and equity components
when the instruments are first recognised.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24T EGHBERME @

POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability
and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference between the
respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit
or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount
is reported in the statement of financial position if there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is
an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle
the liabilities simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories comprise merchandise purchased for resale and
are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost of
merchandise is determined on the moving weighted average method
basis. Net realisable value is based on estimated selling prices less
any estimated costs to be incurred to completion and disposal.

Completed properties held for sale

Completed properties held for sale are stated at the lower of cost
and net realisable value. Cost is determined by an apportionment of
the total land and buildings costs attributable to unsold properties.
Net realisable value is estimated by the directors based on the
prevailing market prices, on an individual property basis.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity
of generally within three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts
which are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the
Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial position,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks,
which are not restricted as to use.
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POLICIES (continued)

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable
that a future outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised
for a provision is the present value at the end of the reporting period
of the future expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation. The increase in the discounted present value amount
arising from the passage of time is included in finance costs in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Coupon liabilities

Coupon liabilities are recognised based on the fair value of bonus
points or coupons granted to customers in accordance with the
announced bonus point scheme and the Group’s past experience
on the level of redemption of coupons and are recorded in other
payables. The revenue of the Group is deducted when the coupon
liabilities are recognised.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating
to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit
or loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current periods are measured
at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period, taking
into consideration interpretations and practices prevailing in the
countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on temporary
differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24T EGHBERME @

POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

e when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition
of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

e in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries and associates when the timing of
the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it
is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which
the deductible temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused
tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

e when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary
differences arises from the initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at
the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit
nor taxable profit or loss; and

e in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries and associates, deferred tax assets
are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that the
temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and
taxable profit will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each
reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow
all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised
deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting period and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.
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POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the
liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and only
if the Group has a legally enforceable right exists to set off current
tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and
deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either the same taxable entity or different
taxable entities which intend either to settle current tax liabilities and
assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously, in each future period in which significant amounts
of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or
recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there is
reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all attaching
conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an
expense item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis over
the periods that the costs, for which it is intended to compensate,
are expensed.

Revenue recognition
Revenue from contracts with custormers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control
of goods or services is transferred to the customers at an amount
that reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount,
the amount of consideration is estimated to which the Group will
be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods or services to
the customer. The variable consideration is estimated at contract
inception and constrained until it is highly probable that a significant
revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised
will not occur when the associated uncertainty with the variable
consideration is subsequently resolved.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24T EGHBERME @

POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

When the contract contains a financing component which provides
the customer with a significant benefit of financing the transfer
of goods or services to the customer for more than one year,
revenue is measured at the present value of the amount receivable,
discounted using the discount rate that would be reflected in a
separate financing transaction between the Group and the customer
at contract inception. When the contract contains a financing
component which provides the Group with a significant financial
benefit for more than one year, revenue recognised under the
contract includes the interest expense accreted on the contract
liability under the effective interest method. For a contract where the
period between the payment by the customer and the transfer of the
promised goods or services is one year or less, the transaction price
is not adjusted for the effects of a significant financing component,
using the practical expedient in IFRS 15.

(@) Direct sales of merchandise and sales of properties

Revenue from the direct sales of merchandise and sales of
properties is recognised at the point in time when control of the
asset is transferred to the customer.

(b) Commissions from concessionaire sales

Commissions from concessionaire sales are recognised upon
the sale of merchandise by the relevant concessionaires, which
is taken to be the point in time when the control of the asset is
transferred to the customer.

(c) Management fee income from the operation of department
stores is recognised when management services are rendered.

(d) Administration and management fee income, promotion income
and credit card handling fees from suppliers and concessionaires
are recognised when services are rendered.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24T EGHBERHME @

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 F£E R %

POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)
Revenue from other sources

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis over the
lease terms. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index
or a rate are recognised as income in the accounting period in which
they are incurred.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of the financial
instrument or a shorter period, when appropriate, to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’ right to
receive payment has been established, it is probable that the
economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the Group
and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received or a
payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before the
Group transfers the related goods or services. Contract liabilities
are recognised as revenue when the Group performs under the
contract (i.e., transfers control of the related goods or services to the
customer).

Retirement benefits

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in Mainland
China are covered by government-regulated defined contribution
retirement benefit schemes under which the employees are entitled
to a monthly pension. The Group contributes to these retirement
benefit schemes on a monthly basis at a percentage of the
employees’ salaries. Under these schemes, the Group has no legal
obligation for retirement benefits beyond the contributions made.
Contributions to these schemes are expensed as incurred.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24T EGHBERME @

POLICIES (continued)

Other employee benefits
Defined benefit plan

The Group operates a defined benefit pension plan which requires
contributions to be made to a separately administered fund. The
benefits are unfunded. The cost of providing benefits under the
defined benefit plan is determined using the projected unit credit
actuarial valuation method.

Re-measurements arising from the defined benefit pension plan,
comprising actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling
(excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit
liability) and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts included
in net interest on the net defined benefit liability) are recognised
immediately in the consolidated statement of financial position with
a corresponding debit or credit to retained profits through other
comprehensive income in the period in which they occur. Re-
measurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent
periods.

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss at the earlier of:

e the date of the plan amendment or curtaiiment; and

e the date that the Group recognises restructuring-related costs
Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net
defined benefit liability or asset. The Group recognises the following
changes in the net defined benefit obligation under “employee
expenses”, “other operating expenses” and “finance costs” in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss by function:

e service costs comprising current service costs and past service
costs

e gains and losses on curtailments and non-routine settlements

e net interest expense or income
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Year ended 31 December 2022
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24T EGHBERHME @

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 F£E R %

POLICIES (continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation
of such borrowing costs ceases when the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned
on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing
costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the
period in which they are incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest
and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing
of funds.

Where funds have been borrowed generally, and used for the
purpose of obtaining qualifying assets, a capitalisation rate of 5.62%
has been applied to the expenditure on the individual assets.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are approved
by the shareholders in a general meeting. Proposed final dividends
are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared,
because the Company’s memorandum and articles of association
grant the directors the authority to declare interim dividends.
Consequently, interim dividends are recognised immediately as a
liability when they are proposed and declared.
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Year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12831HIEFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24T EGHBERME @

POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies

The Company and other investment holding subsidiaries
incorporated in the Cayman lIslands, the British Virgin Islands and
Hong Kong use the Hong Kong dollar (‘HK$”) as their functional
currency. The functional currency of the PRC subsidiaries is RMB. As
the Group mainly operates in Mainland China, RMB is used as the
presentation currency of the Group. Foreign currency transactions
recorded by the entities in the Group are initially recorded using
their respective functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of
the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency rates of
exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period. Differences arising
on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates
of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value
in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
date when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss arising on
translation of a non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated in
line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value of
the item (i.e., translation difference on the item whose fair value gain
or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss
is also recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss,
respectively).

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the related
asset, expense or income on the derecognition of a non-monetary
asset or non-monetary liability relating to an advance consideration,
the date of initial transaction is the date on which the Group initially
recognises the non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising
from the advance consideration. If there are multiple payments or
receipts in advance, the Group determines the transaction date for
each payment or receipt of the advance consideration.

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries are
currencies other than RMB. As at the end of the reporting period,
the assets and liabilities of these entities are translated into RMB
at the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period
and their statements of profit or loss are translated into RMB at
the exchange rates that approximate to those prevailing at the
dates of the transactions. The resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the
component of other comprehensive income relating to that particular
foreign operation is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24T EGHBERHME @

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 F£E R %

POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the
cash flows of subsidiaries outside Mainland China are translated into
RMB at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows.
Frequently recurring cash flows of subsidiaries outside Mainland
China which arise throughout the year are translated into RMB at the
weighted average exchange rates for the year.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s consolidated financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures,
and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could
require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets
or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, which have the
most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial
statements:

e Property lease classification — Group as lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property leases on
its investment property portfolio. The Group has determined,
based on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the
arrangements, such as the lease term not constituting a major
part of the economic life of the commercial property and the
present value of the minimum lease payments not amounting
to substantially all the fair value of the commercial property,
that it retains substantially all the significant risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of these properties which are leased out
and accounts for the contracts as operating leases.
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Year ended 31 December 2022
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND 3. EAgsHHERMLE @

ESTIMATES (continued)

Judgements (continued)

e (Classification between investment properties and owner-

occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an
investment property, and has developed criteria in making
that judgement. Investment property is a property held to earn
rentals or for capital appreciation or both. Therefore, the Group
considers whether a property generates cash flows largely
independently of the other assets held by the Group. Owner-
occupied properties generate cash flows that are attributable not
only to property but also to other assets used in the department
store operations. Some properties comprise a portion that is
held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation and another
portion that is held for use in the supply of goods or services
or for administrative purposes. If these portions could be sold
separately or leased out separately under a finance lease, the
Group accounts for the portions separately. If the portions could
not be sold separately, the property is an investment property
only if an insignificant portion is held for use in the supply of
goods or services or for administrative purposes. Judgement
is made on an individual property basis to determine whether
ancillary services are so significant that a property does not
qualify as an investment property.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are
described below. The Group based its assumptions and estimates
on parameters available when the consolidated financial statements
were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about
future developments, however, may change due to market changes
or circumstances arising beyond the control of the Group. Such
changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

o Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Group determines the estimated useful lives and related
depreciation charges for its property, plant and equipment. This
estimate is based on the historical experience of the actual
useful lives of property, plant and equipment of similar nature
and functions. Management will revise the depreciation charge
where useful lives are different to previously estimated, or will
write off or write down technically obsolete or non-strategic
assets that have been abandoned or sold.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 F£E R %

Impairment of gooawill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least
on an annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value
in use of the cash-generating units to which the goodwill is
allocated. Estimating the value in use requires the Group to
make an estimate of the expected future cash flows from the
cash-generating units and also to choose a suitable discount
rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash flows.
The carrying amount of goodwill at 31 December 2022 was
RMB1,270,349,000 (31 December 2021: RMB1,322,252,000).
Further details are given in note 20.

Provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables and
other receivables

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade
receivables and other receivables. The provision rates are based
on days past due for groupings of various customer segments
that have similar loss patterns (i.e., by geography, product type,
customer type and rating, and coverage by letters of credit and
other forms of credit insurance).

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group’s historical
observed default rates. The Group will calibrate the matrix to
adjust the historical credit loss experience with forward-looking
information. For instance, if forecast economic conditions (i.e.,
gross domestic product) are expected to deteriorate over the
next year which can lead to an increased number of defaults
in the manufacturing sector, the historical default rates are
adjusted. At each reporting date, the historical observed default
rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates
are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation among historical observed
default rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is a
significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes
in circumstances and forecast economic conditions. The Group’s
historical credit loss experience and forecast of economic
conditions may also not be representative of a customer’s actual
default in the future. The information about the ECLs on the
Group’s trade receivables and other receivables is disclosed in
note 28 and note 29 to the financial statements, respectively.
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Year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12831HIEFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Leases — Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit
in a lease, and therefore, it uses an incremental borrowing
rate (“IBR”) to measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of
interest that the Group would have to pay to borrow over a
similar term, and with a similar security, the funds necessary
to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset
in a similar economic environment. The IBR therefore reflects
what the Group “would have to pay”, which requires estimation
when no observable rates are available (such as for subsidiaries
that do not enter into financing transactions) or when it needs
to be adjusted to reflect the terms and conditions of the lease
(for example, when leases are not in the subsidiary’s functional
currency). The Group estimates the IBR using observable inputs
(such as market interest rates) when available and is required to
make certain entity-specific estimates (such as the subsidiary’s
stand-alone credit rating).

Estimation of fair value of investment properties

In the absence of current prices in an active market for similar
properties, the Group considers information from a variety of
sources, including:

(@) current prices in an active market for properties of a different
nature, condition or location, adjusted to reflect those
differences;

(b) recent prices of similar properties on less active markets,
with adjustments to reflect any changes in economic
conditions since the dates of the transactions that occurred
at those prices; and

(c) discounted cash flow projections based on reliable
estimates of future cash flows, supported by the terms of
any existing lease and other contracts and (when possible)
by external evidence such as current market rents for similar
properties in the same location and condition, and using
discount rates that reflect current market assessments of
the uncertainty in the amount and timing of the cash flows.

The carrying amount of investment properties at 31 December
2022 was RMB21,480,749,000 (31 December 2021:
RMB21,394,912,000). Further details, including the key
assumptions used for fair value measurement and a sensitivity
analysis, are given in note 18 to the financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AT R R EE

Year ended 31 December 2022
B ZE2022F12831HIEFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 F£E R %

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences and unused tax losses to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the losses can be utilised. Significant management
judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax
assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing
and level of future taxable profits together with future tax
planning strategies. The carrying value of deferred tax assets
relating to recognised tax losses at 31 December 2022 was
RMB147,783,000 (31 December 2021: RMB185,345,000). The
amount of unrecognised tax losses at 31 December 2022 was
RMB2,631,611,000 (31 December 2021: RMB2,791,151,000).
Further details are contained in note 25 to the financial
statements.

Net realisable value of inventories and completed properties held
for sale

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business, less estimated selling expenses.
Net realisable value of completed properties held for sale is
estimated by the directors based on the prevailing market prices.
These estimates are based on the current market conditions
and the historical experience of selling merchandise of a similar
nature. It could change significantly as a result of changes in
customer taste or competitor actions. The Group reassesses
these estimates at the end of the reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets (other than goodwill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for all non-financial assets (including the right-of-
use assets) at the end of each reporting period. Indefinite life
intangible assets are tested for impairment annually and at other
times when such an indicator exists. Other non-financial assets
are tested for impairment when there are indicators that the
carrying amounts may not be recoverable. An impairment exists
when the carrying value of an asset or a cash-generating unit
exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair
value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The calculation
of the fair value less costs of disposal is based on available data
from binding sales transactions in an arm’s length transaction
of similar assets or observable market prices less incremental
costs for disposing of the asset. When value in use calculations
are undertaken, management must estimate the expected
future cash flows from the asset or cash-generating unit and
choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present
value of those cash flows. Further details, including a sensitivity
analysis of key assumptions, are given in note 42 to the financial
statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR MIEE

Year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12831HIEFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
e Fair value of unlisted equity investments

The unlisted equity investments have been valued based on
a market-based valuation technique as detailed in note 41 to
the financial statements. The valuation requires the Group to
determine the comparable public companies (peers) and select
the price multiple. In addition, the Group makes estimates
about the discount for illiquidity and size differences. The Group
classifies the fair value of these investments as Level 3. The fair
value of the unlisted equity investments at 31 December 2022
was RMB545,815,000 (2021: RMB603,182,000). Further details
are included in note 24 to the financial statements.

e Recognition of deferred tax liabilities for withholding taxes

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for withholding tax levied
on dividends declared to foreign investors from the foreign
investment enterprise established in Mainland China. Significant
management judgement is required to determine the amount of
deferred tax liabilities that can be recognised, based upon the
likely dividends declared. Further details are contained in note 25
to the financial statements.

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into business
units based on the nature of their operations and their products and
services and has three reportable operating segments as follows:

(@ the operation of department stores segment comprises
concessionaire sales, direct sales of merchandise and the
leasing out of commercial properties for the operation of
department stores by third parties;

(b) the property development segment is principally engaged in the
development and sale of commercial and residential properties
as well as the leasing out of commercial properties other than for
the operation of department stores; and

(c) the “others” segment comprises, principally, operations of hotels,
and the provision of ancillary services.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating segments
separately for the purpose of making decisions about resource
allocation and performance assessment. Segment performance is
evaluated based on reportable segment profit/loss attributable to
owners of the parent.

162 MAOYE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED Bl R5 RA T

3. EXEFHIER &S @

st R EERER (@)

o JELEFHERKRENNAEE
ELrFHDEREENHREN
AFFEE MM T IGEEE M ET
B -ZtEERAERETIEL
BARNE (A7) REBEEREH
o REB MK IFREE S KR
BEENEMITE AEEBRZE
RENANABEDEAEZH -1
2022F 1283 1HMIE L HERKE
A REBEEAS ARK545,815,0007T
(20214 : AR M%603,182,0007T) °
E— LB BREN 240

AR IERY T & {8 51 3 5 A K e 5 3L
ZHEHRETERIIEREE D
RS PTEIR B FRIR IR IERE ST - B IE
BrEEr]EBELLREEENE
BERAENEROKRREMFHERKN
HE - E—THBEN Y HHREW
5250

REE D ERE K

mABEEE REBRNKEEFRBE
S B LU P 1 2 on 5 AR 75 A Al [P
EBBEM B REEEDIMHFE
BT

BEDBNEE ST EEN
“EmEHEUREHEERYEHR
=HEEREIE

@)

\

W I mH

b) MEZERDE TEREFHE K
EMREETYE -UAHEBA
MEMIFLEREIE ; &

© THft D& TEEFEEEEER
RMEEERE -

BEENAEERLEDMERDHIE
TEEELE R B M A TG 1R R
RoNBEMNEENBEBEN S A
RAEAZARED A, ERETT
flo

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 FE#R &



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AAFsER R MIEE

Year ended 31 December 2022
B ZE2022F12831HIEFE

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Intersegment revenue and transfers are transacted with reference
to the selling prices used for sales made to third parties at the then

prevailing market prices.

4. BEHWEH @

DBERANREEZ2RZERTED

BHEMF =IERNEBETN

Operation of

department Property
stores  development Others Total
EERENE MERR Hith it
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETRT ARETR ARETR ARETR
Year ended 31 December 2022 HE2022F12A31ALEE
Segment revenue: DEA :
Sales to external customers HEFINIER 3,267,599 895,179 186,912 4,349,690
Other income HiA 1,007,209 33,949 5,127 1,046,285
Cost of sales HEMA (1,396,342) (414,095) (40,513) (1,850,950)
Employee expenses EERZ (346,405) (36,065) (72,116) (454,586)
Depreciation and amortisation TERSH (833,599) (163,756) (51,805) (1,049,160)
Payments for short-term leases and leases of RRRERREEEERERS
low-value assets (5,096) (894) (738) (6,728)
Other operating expenses &gy (827,176) (129,978) (53,670) (1,010,824)
Other gains and losses Hita g 512,036 (24,891) (462) 486,683
Operating profit/(loss) TERB/ (58 1,378,226 159,449 (27,265) 1,510,410
Finance costs MEME (576,940) (473,370) = (1,050,310)
Share of profits and losses of associates and EhHENAR—BaEtEELE
a joint venture (17,990) (592) - (18,582)
Profit/(loss) before tax BRRAIFIE/ (518 783,296 (314,513) (27,265) 441,518
Income tax expense FisiifY (152,572) (82,434) (1,328) (236,334)
Profit/{loss) for the year TEFE/ (BB 630,724 (396,947) (28,593) 205,184
Attributable to: BUR ALY
Owners of the parent BAREHEEBA 589,580 (332,663) (28,824) 228,093
Non-controling interests BB EER 41,144 (64,284) 231 (22,909)
630,724 (396,947) (28,593) 205,184
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A T5 IR AR 5L

Year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12831HIEFE

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4, BEFEEE @

Operation of
department Property
stores  development Others Total

KEBRE NELR fth st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ABEBTR  ARETR  ARBTRT  ARETR

Other segment information: HttaHER
Impairment losses in the statement BaRPEINRESERE
of profit or loss, net (79,529) - - (79,529)

Impairment of completed properties held for sale BB EERMNERE - (8,468) - (8,468)

Impairment of investment in an associate R—EHE N BNRERE (24,382) - - (24,382)

Gains on deemed disposal of shares in an associate 1R EL & — BB & AT RMO UG 328,207 = = 328,207

Goodwill impairment HERE (51,903) - - (51,903)

Investment in an associate R—EBENTRE 362,833 - - 362,833

Capital expenditure® BrET (36,765) (804,064) (757) (841,586)

*  Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and equipment, * BAHZOEREYE BREREZE REY
investment properties, properties under development, other intangible assets E ERPYE -EMEEEEMRTAERED
and completed properties held for sale including assets from the acquisition of BERME HRBERE—ENEARNE
a subsidiary. Eo
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AAFsER R MIEE

Year ended 31 December 2022
B ZE2022F12831HIEFE

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Operation of

ERERE K @

department Property
stores development Others Total
KERER MEER Hth 45t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT AREFT NS AREFT
Year ended 31 December 2021 HE2021F12831BILEE
Segment revenue: SEBIA
Sales to external customers HEFIMPER 3,998,009 1,026,810 209,796 5,234,615
Other income =N 1,121,071 38,232 6,078 1,165,381
Cost of sales HEMAE (1,650,284) (476,266) (43,645) (2,170,195)
Employee expenses EER% (359,793) (41,202) (71,365) (472,360)
Depreciation and amortisation EREH (894,569) (156,161) (52,628) (1,103,358)
Payments for short-term leases and leases of CHHERAEEEERERS
low-value assets (4,190) (2,523) (1,252) (7,965)
Other operating expenses Hingmy (960,368) (110,646) (82,104) (1,153,118)
Other gains and losses HEita kg (138,254) 259,507 568 121,821
Operating profit/{loss) e/ (5B 1,111,622 537,751 (34,552) 1,614,821
Finance costs BEMA (733,091) (413,378) = (1,146,469)
Share of profits and losses of associates and EEHENAR—BAEbEER
a joint venture (25,484) (1,182) - (26,666)
Profit/(loss) before tax BRRERE, (518 353,047 123,191 (34,552) 441,686
Income tax expense BiKTitiisa (30,423) (300,573) 98) (331,094)
Profit/(oss) for the year KERE/ (58 322,624 (177,382) (34,650) 110,592
Attributable to: Wﬁ\ﬂ%‘\{ﬂ :
Owners of the parent NAERFBA 234,004 (134,052) (34,287) 65,685
Non-controling interests 3F?§Hyﬂ§$$¥ 88,600 (43,330) (363) 44,907
322,624 (177,382) (34,650) 110,592
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RAFsER R MIEE

Year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12831HIEFE

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

4. BEDHWEH @

Operation of

department Property
stores development Others Total
BERERE MEERE =] st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETFT AEETR ARETT
Other segment information: HitpEpERN -
Impairment losses reversed in the statement BarPEONRESERE
of profit or loss, net 26,376 - ) 26,381
Impairment of properties under development BETMERE S (2,872) S (2,872)
Impairment of investment in an associate R—EHE R ENRERNE (102,932) = = (102,932)
Loss on disposal of shares in an associate HER—BH=EATRMNESR 46,272) = = (46,272)
Goodwill impairment BEHE (38,870) = S (38,870)
Investments in associates REERERE 447,013 = S 447,013
Investment in a joint venture R—BaEbERE S 592 S 592
Capital expenditure* BARRS (123,823) (799,008) (1,970) (924,801)

Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and equipment,
investment properties, properties under development, other intangible assets
and completed properties held for sale including assets from the acquisition of
a subsidiary.

The Group’s entire revenue is attributable to the market in Mainland
China. No analysis of geographical information is therefore
presented.

The Group has a large number of customers. However, no sales

to a single customer amounted to 5% or more of the Group’s total
revenue.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AAFsER R MIEE

Year ended 31 December 2022

B ZE2022F12831HIEFE
5. REVENUE 5.
2021
20214
RMB’000
AREFT
Revenue from contracts with customers BEEEHWA
Commissions from concessionaire sales B EEHEE RS 714,034 1,051,808
Direct sales 1,502,247 1,768,471
Sale of properties 787,638 911,793
Revenue from other sources REHEMEBRIWA
Rental income from investment properties ~ BE Y EHEEUA 653,316 740,769
Rental income from the leasing of HiEmSIAEEW A
shop premises 505,543 551,978
Others 186,912 209,796
4,349,690 5,234,615
Revenue from contracts with customers EREHWA
()  Disaggregated revenue information () DITUAER
The Group’s entire revenue of goods and services transferred is AEEMEEERNEY RIRF UL
recognised at a point in time. No analysis of timing information is ARE—RERES it EE
therefore presented. SRS E R DT o
The following table shows the amount of revenue recognised in TRETGTABRSHISHNEEK
the current reporting period that was included in the contract R BEFARERNBASERAE
liabilities at the beginning of the reporting period and recognised RN AREAANN RPN A EEE
from performance obligations satisfied in previous periods:
2021
20214
RMB’000
ARETT
Revenue recognised that was included 5t A RS EAV &S X EEN
in contract liabilities at the beginning B -
of the reporting period:
Sale of completed properties HEBBIYE 325,933 378,928
325,933 378,928
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A T5 R M5t

Year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12831HIEFE

5. REVENUE (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)
(i) Performance obligations (i)

5. XA @)

EREKIWA @
BRIET

Information about the Group’s performance obligations is
summarised below:

Direct sales of merchandise and commissions from
concessionaire sales

The performance obligation is satisfied at the point in time when
control of the asset is transferred to the customers.

Sale of properties

For contracts entered into with customers on the sale of
properties, the Group does not have an enforceable right to
payment prior to transfer of the relevant properties to customers.
Revenue from the sale of properties is therefore recognised at
the point in time when the completed property is transferred
to customers, being at the point that the customer obtains the
control of the completed property and the Group has the present
right to payment and collection of the consideration is probable.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AAFsER R MIEE

Year ended 31 December 2022
B ZE2022F12831HIEFE

6. OTHER INCOME

6. HtA

2021
20214
RMB’000
ABETIT

Income from suppliers and concessionaires 78 B L FE & K 45 5F RIBAIWA

— Administration and —THATEBEIRA
management fee income 717,156 721,684
— Promotion income — e U A 178,719 250,801
— Credit card handling fees —EREFESE 85,131 126,206
Interest income FEUA 9,779 22 380
Others Hih 55,500 44,310
1,046,285 1,165,381
7. COST OF SALES 7.

2021
20214
RMB’000
ARETIT
Purchases of and changes in inventories BEEYMREFEES 1,396,342 1,650,284
Cost of properties sold BEEMEMRA 414,095 476,266
Others Hith 40,513 43,645
1,850,950 2,170,195
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A T5 IR AR 5L

Year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12831HIEFE

8. EMPLOYEE EXPENSES 8. EERMX

2022 2021
20224 20214F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ABR¥FT AREFT

Wages and salaries IT&EKFHE 406,378 418,601
Retirement benefits BB 45,696 49,201
Other employee benefits Hi2EEH] 2,512 4,558
454,586 472,360
Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year, disclosed FREERFETHRAENHFMBEL
pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1) (a), (b), (c) and (f) of the TRA ~ BB A TMEHIE383(1)(@) ~ (b) ~
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies C)RMEUKRRAE REEEFNHER)
(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is OISR IREWT ¢
as follows:

2022 2021
20224 20214F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ABR¥T T AREFT

Fees B 669 647
Other emoluments: Hiniis

Salaries and allowances K2R 1,144 1,200

Retirement benefits BRIKEF 45 39

1,189 1,239

1,858 1,886
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A TSR 5E

Year ended 31 December 2022
B ZE2022F12831HIEFE

8. EMPLOYEE EXPENSES (continued) 8. EER% @
(a) Independent non-executive directors (@) BWILIEMITES !
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors during the FRENBIFRTEENEEN
year were as follows: 1S5

Total

Fees remuneration

wE i BN 4R 51

RMB’000 RMB’000

ABBFT  ARBTR

Year ended 31 December 2022 HE2022F 128310 L EE
Mr. Pao Ping Wing IR LA 206 206
Mr. Rao Yong KA 309 309
Mr. Gao Yajun (ST e 154 154
669 669
Year ended 31 December 2021 HZE2021F12831HIEEE
Mr. Pao Ping Wing ISR A 199 199
Mr. Rao Yong ER e 299 299
Mr. Gao Yajun SoERLE 149 149
647 647
There were no other emoluments payable to the independent REZE2022F12831HIEEE i
non-executive directors for the year ended 31 December 2022 BEIYNHEMME TRIENITES
(2021: Nil). (2021€F 1 ) ©
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A T5 IR AR 5L

Year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12831HIEFE

8. lEERX @)

b) MITES —RIFRTEERERE
HITE

8. EMPLOYEE EXPENSES (continued)

(b) Executive directors, a non-executive director and
the chief executive

Total
remuneration
A 42 5t
RMB’000
AR®BTFT

Retirement
benefits
RIREER
RMB’000
AR%T

Salaries and
allowances

s B R
RMB’000
ARETT

Year ended 31 December 2022 & F20225F12H31H

IEEE
Executive directors: HITEE !
Mr. Zhong Pengyi BB LY 120 - 120
Ms. Lu Xiaojuan N Ch 664 45 709
Non-executive director: FEHITESE .
Mr. Wang Bin ks 240 - 240
Chief executive: BEHTE .
Mr. Huang Mao Ru =hab 120 - 120
1,144 45 1,189
Salaries and Retirement Total
allowances benefits remuneration
¥ SRRk BRIRTER] HrbNAB st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AER®ETIT AE®BTFT ARETIT
Year ended 31 December 2021 & E2021F12831H
LFE
Executive directors: HITESE
Mr. Zhong Pengyi izl S 120 - 120
Ms. Lu Xiaojuan EUN Cron 720 39 759
Non-executive director: FEHITEE .
Mr. Wang Bin BT 240 - 240
Chief executive: BEHTE .
Mr. Huang Mao Ru ‘mRWEE 120 - 120
1,200 39 1,239

HFE2022F12H31BLEFE &
EHEENELRBENETAEHMN
B2 HE (20214F © f®) o

There was no arrangement under which a director waived
or agreed to waive any remuneration for the year ended 31
December 2022 (2021: Nil).
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A TSR 5E

Year ended 31 December 2022
B ZE2022F12831HIEFE

9. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 9. A ESHES
The five highest paid employees during the year included one FRAAAReHEEBRE —RES
director (2021: one director), details of whose remuneration are set (2021 | —%EF) > HFMEN X
out in note 8 above. Details of the remuneration for the year of the MizE8 o FPN E MU (20214 | IO4) &
remaining four (2021: four) highest paid employees who are neither BHEE WIFARBDEETHFTETH
a director nor chief executive of the Company for the year are as AB) BEBNEBWT ¢
follows:

2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARETIT

Salaries and allowances i RoEEL 2,735 2,114
Retirement benefits RIRER) 165 117

2,900 2,231
The number of non-director highest paid employees whose FNBEUTEENIFEERESHEEA
remuneration fell within the following band is as follows: BT

Nil to HK$1,000,000 = Z=1,000,00078 7T 3 4
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 75 E 1,500,000 7T 1 -

4 4

10. PAYMENTS FOR SHORT-TERM LEASES AND 10. ;EHAfHE REEEEEHENX

LEASES OF LOW-VALUE ASSETS

2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT ARBBFIT

Payments for short-term leases and RHHEREEEEEHERS
leases of low-value assets 6,728 7,965
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A T5 IR AR 5L

Year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12831HIEFE

11. OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES 1. HtEEmx%

2022 2021
20225 20214
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 AR%TT AREBFT
Utility expenses YNBSSl 363,205 379,667
Promotion and advertising expenses B E&KESREY 25,301 71,106
Repair and maintenance expenses  4EzERIE 72,911 92,560
Entertainment expenses AFRX 3,744 4,898
Office expenses WA 44,656 55,259
Other tax expenses HMiRIEMRS 248,275 345,526
Professional service fees BHEREE 47,503 92,631
Auditors’ remuneration TZ B EMBN & 4,900 4,900
Bank charges RITFEE 43,706 55,732
Impairment/(reversal of impairment) of FEURE 5 IR IE,
trade receivables CRI{EB:[E) 28 1,378 (4,232)
Reversal of impairment of [ Wit 8} 2 75 =R IE R (B # [
amounts due from related parties 29 (1,439) (816)
Impairment/(reversal of impairment) of EfthEURFRIETR(E,~
other receivables CRIE#E[E]) 29 79,590 (21,833)
Impairment of a property under BRPYERE
development 27 - 2,872
Impairment of completed RHERECEMYERE
properties held for sale 8,468 -
Others Hh 68,626 74,348
1,010,824 1,153,118
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Year ended 31 December 2022
B ZE2022F12831HIEFE

12. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 12, Hithl = Rk E548

2021
20214
Notes RMB’000
B 5F AREFT
Gains on disposal of HEREMEBEBENKE
investment properties (i) 196,072 -
Losses/(gains) on disposal of HEME - BEMZEBEEEN
property, plant and equipment B8 (s (299) 89,869
Loss on disposal of shares in HEBZ QAT RMHH
an associate 518 = (46,272)
Foreign exchange (losses)/gains, net  9NEE (538) UN 5 348 (2,262) 1,055
Gain on deemed disposal of BIEHE M E R TR D
shares in an associate g 23 328,207 =
Fair value gains/(losses) on financial AR BETEEEEEFH A
assets at fair value through profit or TR EEAAEE
loss W (E518) 7,205 (17,567)
(Losses)/gains on disposal of HEMUARNBESTEEEED)
financial assets at fair value FFABENEMEE B8
through profit or loss /W s (1,449) 6,153
Fair value gains on KREMENRAEBE
investment properties I 18 114,703 302,390
Dividend incomes from KEUARNBETEEHES)
financial assets at fair value FABGEHNEMEEN
through profit or loss 2 B 2,309 1,563
Dividend incomes from equity REIEEAULANBEFEZER
investments designated HEgs szt \AEtE2mEmK=mn
at fair value through other R ERNREWA
comprehensive income 4,798 6,517
Impairment of goodwill EERE 20 (51,903) (38,870)
Impairment of investment R—ERE R NBNIRERE
in an associate 23 (24,382) (102,932)
Penalty accrued FEstEiE 32(b) (66,423) (63,144)
Provision for a litigation case —RAFEAR R (52,336) (55,028)
Others Eh 32,443 38,087
486,683 121,821
Notes: M3

(i)  As part of the construction plan of the Chengdu-Chongging Central Railway 0]

Line of the Chengdu Municipal Government of Sichuan Province, the
Jinniu District Government of Chengdu issued a notice of land resumption
to Chengshang Group. Chengshang Group and Chengdu Jinniu Guotou
Construction Co.,Ltd. signed the relocation compensation agreement for the
handling of the land, properties and facilities for relocation. According to the
agreement, Chengshang Group was compensated an aggregate amount
of approximately RMB415,703,000, which resulted in a gain on disposal of
investment properties of RMB196,072,000 for the Group.

YEZ PO pRER T BN AR P AR 2 e AR BB
—Z5 AT S ERFEMREEEEH
T R HEBUWR o R E B R E T R E%
BERARARDMRRHI M EEREHEES

WBHEDZ RIS EERERER
B4 AR #8415,703,0007T » B A EEER
HEREYEN I AR 1#196,072,0007T ©
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Year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12831HIEFE

13. FINANCE COSTS

14.

13. Rt E R 2~

2022 2021
20225 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%TT AREBFT
Interest on bank loans and IRTTEAREMERHE
other borrowings 988,095 1,047,298
Interest on lease liabilities HEaENE 143,560 159,471
Total interest expense on financial liabilites ~ JE¥ZA A BET AEBEH
not at fair value through profit or loss TREEN SRR 1,131,655 1,206,769
Less: Interest capitalised B BEAREHE (81,345) (60,300)
1,050,310 1,146,469
INCOME TAX EXPENSE 14. FRSMRHA>

The Group is subject to income tax on an entity basis on profits
arising in or derived from the jurisdictions in which members of the
Group are domiciled and operate.

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman lIslands as an
exempted company with limited liability under the Companies Law of
the Cayman Islands and accordingly, is exempt from the payment of
the Cayman lIslands income tax.

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the British Virgin Islands, the
Group is not subject to any tax in the British Virgin Islands.

The provision for Hong Kong profits tax was calculated at 16.5% of
the estimated assessable profits for the year ended 31 December
2022 (2021: 16.5%).
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(20214F : 16.5%) & o
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Year ended 31 December 2022
B ZE2022F12831HIEFE

14.INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

14. FRISMESZ @

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 F£E R %

Under the relevant income tax law, the PRC subsidiaries are subject
to corporate income tax (“‘CIT”) at a statutory rate of 25% (2021:
25%) of their respective taxable income, except for certain group
entities which are entitled to various concessionary tax rates or tax
exemptions and reliefs.

PRC Land Appreciation Tax (‘LAT”) is levied at progressive rates
ranging from 30% to 60% on the appreciation of land value, being
the proceeds from sales of properties less deductible expenditures
including land use rights, borrowing costs and all property
development expenditures. LAT of RMB41,122,000 was charged to
the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year ended 31
December 2022 (2021: RMB227,388,000).

RIBAERBAPTERE TENEBELRR
FLEARRI BRI UR A $225% (20214 :
25%) BEEMEXGMEEMMER (M1
EmRTBR) HEETEZAREBRERE
WIRE R BV EBBEREFRIN o

FRER 4 g E AR (T i (ERR ) 1230% =
60% F 1 REM X ft T B EIGEZ D
(B2 EFTERIE R EE T (A
BB BEYEERASZEN
TR ) B - AR 141,122,000
TR T IR ERE R E E2022F 12831
HiItFEBiFaEBmaxmAkk (20214 :
AR #227,388,0007T) ©

2022 2021
20224 20214

RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFT AREFT

Current - CIT BHE— 1R EFT1ETR 135,585 260,220
Current — LAT ENEA— - #3%(E R 41,122 227,388
Deferred (note 25) IRIE (F¥5E25) 59,627 (156,514)
Total tax charge for the year FRRFEHZ4E%E 236,334 331,094
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Year ended 31 December 2022

HZE2022F12831HIEFE
14. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 14. FR1ISMEASZ @
A reconciliation of the income tax expense applicable to profit or BARBIREFENBABFFMENEE
loss before tax at the statutory rates for the jurisdictions in which the HEEEMREFE ZBRRAIFIEIEE
Company and the majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled to the EREMERETHBRERMERMER
income tax expense at the effective tax rates, and a reconciliation of BEREINER REAEREHE
the statutory tax rates to the effective rates, are as follows: BRRENHEOT :
2022 20205 Cayman Islands BvI Hong Kong Mainland China Total
REHE HRGERTHEE iy HEIARE it
RMB'000 % RMB'000 %  RMB'000 % RMB'000 % RMB'000
AEBTT ARBTT ARBTT AEBTT ARBTR
(Loss)/proft before tax Al B8) /7 @1 9 112,324 331,014 441,518

Tax at the statutory tax rate BAEREHEN
el - - - - 18,533 16.5 82,979 25 101,512 PA]
ffect of withholding tax at 5% on - ZEEHEIH AT
the distrioutable profits of the ~~ SERI AT HRER
Group’s PRC subsidlaries SHRERLR

HEELNZE - - - - 15588 14 - - 15588 4
Lower tax rates for specific BEHENEERE
distits - - - - 54 0 @37 (M) (1,98) 0

Profits and losses attibutableto  BEAFR—HAE
associates and ajoint venture  REFRERAIER

BB - - - - - - 4646 1 4,646 1
Income not subject to tax EREDROMA - - - - - - 1,79 M (1,729 1)
Bxpenses not deductible for tax RIS - - - - - - 5179 16 51,79 12
Tax losses not recognised RERDNRERE - - - - - - 5442 15 51442 12
LAT THIEER - - - - - - 41,122 12 41,122 9
Tax effect of LAT THIEERN

hege - - - - - - (10,21) @ (10,281) @
Others Eft - - - - (565 () (175) ) 682 1)

Tax charge at the Group’s eflective HAEEERRE
tax rate STERRERR - - - - 1892 17 2147418 64 236,334 54
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EF2022F12831HILEE
14.INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 14. RSB @
2021 0215 CGayman lslands BVI Hong Kong Mainland China Total
HEHE EEEAREE &k HE AR it
RMB'000 % RMB000 % RMB000 % RMB000 % RMB000 %
AEBTT ARBTT ARETR ARETR ARETR

(Loss)profit before tax e (B8 /5B (23,495 (16) (21,299) 486,490 441,686
Tax at the statutory tax rate BrEREHEHRE - - - - (513 185 121623 2% 118110 7
Effect of withholding tax at 5% on the  AEEHENBARH

distributable profits of the Group's AT TRAI TR IB5%E0

PRC subsidiaries REBRNEELNTE - - - - 17080 (80) - - 17060 4
Lower tax rates for specfic districts 15 &t BAIEERE - - - - 1,384 6 @691 1 @30 )
Profits and losses attrbutable to -~ B ARR—HAELE

associates and a joint venture b MAEREE - - - - - - 6667 1 6667 2
Income not subject to tax ERBEHENRA - - = = S - (317 (1 8179 ()
Expenses not deductible fortax Rl - - - - - - 76423 16 76423 17
Tax losses not recognised RERINHRIESE - - - - - - 93,201 19 93,201 21
LAT THIEER - - - - - - 207388 47 207388 51
Tax effect of LAT THEERNRESE = = = S = - (66.847) (12 (o6,847) (13)
Others Hft - - - - - - (144516) (30) (144,516) (33)
Tax charge at the Groups effective  RAEEEBHEE

tax rate HERT - - - - 14931 (70) 316,163 B4 331,004 74
The share of tax attributable to associates amounting to BEANBDMENMRNETEAS AR
RMB562,000 (2021: RMB4,296,000) is included in “Share of profits 562,000z (20214 @ AR #4,296,000
and losses of associates” in the consolidated statement of profit or TT) iR ERRTERE EMEE
loss. NEJEBE H e
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Year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12831HIEFE

15. DIVIDENDS 15. iR S

2022 2021
20224 20214F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ABR¥FT AREFT

Proposed final EREERBERERBRKE

- HK1.02 cents —1.0271

(2021: Nil) per ordinary share (20214 : #®) 45,619 -
The proposed final dividend for the year ended of 2022 is subject HE022F IFFENREZERPKREEF
to the approval of the Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming AABRRPREREREEFAS LibE
annual general meeting. BAAIEE-

16. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO 16. AT B EEEFHAEARLER
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT bl
The calculation of the basic earnings per share amounts is based EREABANDEREABIEBEGR
on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of BAELERTEARK228,093,000
the parent of RMB228,093,000 (2021: RMB65,685,000) and the 7t (20215 ¢ AR#65,685,0007T)
weighted average number of ordinary shares of 5,140,326,000 ERENBEZETEARNMETHH
(2021: 5,140,326,000) in issue during the year. 5,140,326,0000% (20214 : 5,140,326,000
iR 5t &

The Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in issue during AREBRE E2022F K%20215F12831H
the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021. FFEUEESETETEHSETER-
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B ZE2022F12831HIEFE
17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17. 9% - BER=ZE
Furniture,
Machinery fittings and
Land and and Motor other  Leasehold Construction
buildings  equipment vehicles  equipment improvements i progress Total
Fi%ER  HENE
IHREF BERRE RE HftRe i HRIE L
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEBTR ARETR AR%TR ARETR ARETRT ARETR ARETR
31 December 2022 2022F128310
At 31 December 2021 and R2021£12B31H R
at 1 January 2022: pirzaalzil= i
Cost B 9,852,991 568,641 16,508 202,334 1,860,420 478250 12,979,644
Accumulated depreciation and impaiment ~ REHTERHE (8,136,519) (357,004) (1,365) (201,239) (979,205) (6,608)  (4,681,040)
Net carrying amount REFE 6,716,472 211,637 15,143 1,595 881,215 471,642 8,207,704
At 1 January 2022, net of accumulated 1202241810
depreciation and impaiment (IRRHTERAE) 6,716,472 211,637 15,143 1,595 881,215 471642 8,207,704
Additions HE 7,183 2,839 348 2,484 34,076 101,992 149,522
Disposals HE (12,173) (349) (214) (667) (10) - (13,413)
Depreciation provided during the year ERiTERE (402,838) (17,779 (1,125) (2,746) (128,080) - (552,568)
Transfer to investment properties (note 18) ~ EEEREYE (¥5H18) (16,208) - - - - - (16,208)
Transfer from investment propertiesinote 18 EREBNEEA (H5£18) 19,552 - - - - - 19,552
Transfer from construction in progress fthRIREA - 34 - 19 49,934 (49,987) -
Transfer from properties under development A EBRIEEA
(note 27) (Fzk) 41,681 - - - - - 41,681
Fxchange realignment ERHEL 2,491 - - 2 - - 2523

At 31 December 2022, net of accumulated 12022 12A31H

depreciation and impaiment (BRHTERAE) 6,356,670 196,382 14,152 "1 837,135 523,647 7,928,703
At 31 December 2022: 2000128318

Cost [ 9,876,132 569,336 10,014 194,158 1,935,222 530,255 18,115,117

Accumulated depreciation and impaiment ~ REHTERHE (8,519,462) (872,954) 4,138 (193,441)  (1,098,087) (6,608 (5,186,414)

Net carrying amount REFE 6,356,670 196,382 14,152 7 837,135 523,647 7,928,703

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 EE#H% MAOYE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED S BEEZERERAT 181



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A T5 IR AR 5L

Year ended 31 December 2022

HZE2022F12831HIEFE
17.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 17. % - BE R E @
Furniture,
Machinery fittings and
Land and and Motor other Leasehold  Construction
buldings equipment vehicles equipment  improvements in progress Total
R EER HEnE
THEEF  BERRE RE AftRt £ fRIR st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEETE  ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR AR%TR
31 December 2021 20215128310
At 31 December 2020 and at R2020E12831 B R
1 January 2021: 02151818
Cost [ 9,736,563 573,183 13932 208,988 1,721,494 393879 12,648,039
Accumulated depreciation and impaiment ~ REHTERHE (2,831,739) (350977) (1,736) (198,556) (865,512) (6,609 (4255129
Net carrying amount BEFE 6,904,824 222,206 12,19 10432 855,982 7270 8392910
At 1 January 2021, net of accumulated 1202151818
depreciation and impairment (BRHTERAR) 6,904,824 222,206 12,19 10432 855,982 B7210 8,392,910
Additions HE 151 3,163 4256 4,724 92,352 137,488 242,134
Disposals tE (5,108) (1,529) (893) ] (©16) = [9.217)
Depreciation provided during the year FRiTERE (435,959) (16,829) (416) (13,136) (114,362) = (580,702)
Reversal of impairment HERD - 5 - 2 - = o7
Transfer to investment properties note 18)  EEZHEME (f5£18) (536,482) 5 5 = 5 = (536,482)
Transfer from construction in progress (note 18) R TRE (Hfst18) - 4,601 5 33 48,159 (53,116) S
Transer from properties under development AR ERNEEA
(note 27) (H3E27) 779,548 - - - - - 779548
Acqisition of a subsidiary WE-EHEAR 10445 - - - - - 10,445
Exchange realignment ERHE %47) - - (12) - - (959)
At 31 December 2021, net of accumulated ~ F2021F128318
depreciation and impairment (NBEMERAE) 6,716,472 211,637 15,143 159 881,215 471642 8207704
At 31 December 2021: R021E128318
Cost A 9,852,991 568,641 16,508 202,834 1,860,420 478,250 12,979,644
Accumulated depreciation and impaiment Bt TERIE (3,136,519 (357,004) (1,365) (201,239 (979,205 (6,008)  (4,681940)
Net carrying amount REFE 6,716,472 211,637 15,143 1,995 881,215 471,642 8,297,704
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B ZE2022F12831HIEFE

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

Amortisation of land lease payments of approximately
RMB3,397,000 as at 31 December 2022 (31 December 2021:
RMB3,397,000) during the construction period was capitalised
as part of the construction cost of the department stores under
construction of the Group, and was included in the above additions.

The Group’s land and buildings are held under medium term leases
and are situated in Mainland China. Details of the Group’s land and
buildings pledged to secure the Group’s interest-bearing bank loans

are set out in note 33.

Certificates of ownership in respect of certain buildings of the Group
with a net carrying amount of approximately RMB150,583,000 as
at 31 December 2022 (31 December 2021: RMB168,779,000) have
not yet been issued by the relevant PRC authorities. The Group is in

the process of obtaining the relevant certificates.

17. 9% BB Kkt @

12022F12831H  BEHE EE AL
BYTET L3t FE & g iH A K 13,397,000
7t (2021128318 : AR #3,397,000
o) Bt ASEREEEEENESER
KoBEELMAREF

IS L

/%\ EE 'f—_l— =N

BN RRE

AEBR T REFHIREPHBLORE
B WAL REIRRE - A EE S EIS H 5
MEE IR L R IBFEF1B

FEBEENETETNREESNRR
B RAISFIETS » KEB (I IEME
RAEEN T4 HERE FEM2022F12
H31H4 A AR #150,583,0007T (2021
F12831H : AR#§168,779,0007T) °

18.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 18. B
2022 20226F
Investment
Completed properties
investment under
properties at construction
fair value at fair value Total
BT i
BEME BB
(RAREE) (RAREE) Wt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBTT ARBTT
Carrying amount at 1 January 2022 20221 B 1B EREE 16,342,019 5,052,893 21,394,912
Transfer from property, plant and whE - -BERREEA
equipment (note 17) (P5E17) 16,298 - 16,298
Recognition of change in fair value of ERERERENEN
property, plant and equipment upon M2 BB KR EN
transfer to investment properties NABEEES) 118,136 - 118,136
Transfer from prepaid land lease payments #EFE{t £ #h78 & T IEE A
(note 19 (a)) (PI5E19(a)) 614 - 614
Transfer to property, plant and equipment B EME BB R B H
(note 17) (Fx17) (19,552) - (19,552)
Transfer to prepaid land lease payments & =B LA SIE
(note 19 (a)) (Fi5E19(a)) (3,496) - (3,496)
Disposal HE (140,866) - (140,866)
Net gain from fair value adjustment NABERR RS
(note 12) (PFzE12) 67,218 47,485 114,703
Carrying amount at 31 December 2022 7220221283101
fREME 16,380,371 5,100,378 21,480,749
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Year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12831HIEFE

18.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 18. REME @
2021 20214
Investment
Completed properties
investment under
properties at construction
fair value at fair value Total
BT e
REME REME
BRNEE) BAREE) weEt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETT AREBTT
Carrying amount at 1 January 2021 P01 1 B1HEREE 14,466,881 4,974,272 19,441,153
Transfer from property, NE - BERREEA
plant and equipment (note 17) (FizE17) 536,482 - 536,482
Recognition of change in fair value of REEELEMEN
property, plant and equipment upon ME-BREREREN
transfer to investment properties NABEESH 1,053,595 = 1,053,595
Transfer from prepaid land lease WM LA ERIBEEA
payments (note 19 (a)) (PI5E19(a)) 11,006 - 11,006
Transfer from completed properties REEHENEERYE
held for sale A 50,286 - 50,286
Net gain from fair value adjustment NABEEAE SRR
(note 12) (HH3£12) 203,769 78,621 302,390
Carrying amount at 31 December 2021 7202141283181
REE 16,342,019 5,052,893 21,394,912

The Group’s investment properties consist of commercial properties
in Mainland China. The directors of the Company have determined
that the investment properties consist of one class of assets, i.e.,
commercial properties, based on the nature, characteristics and risk
of each property. The Group’s investment properties were revalued
on 31 December 2022 based on valuations performed by Shenzhen
Guoyu Assets Appraisal and Xiamen Academic Practice Valuer,
two independent professionally qualified valuers, at approximately
RMB21,480,749,000. Each year, the Group’s management decides
to appoint which external valuer to be responsible for the external
valuation of the Group’s properties. Selection criteria include market
knowledge, reputation, independence and whether professional
standards are maintained. The Group’s management has discussions
with the valuer on the valuation assumptions and valuation results
once a year when the valuation is performed for annual financial
reporting.

The investment properties are leased to third parties under operating

leases, further summary details of which are included in note 19 to
the financial statements.
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Year ended 31 December 2022
B ZE2022F12831HIEFE

18.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

The Group’s investment properties are held under medium term
leases and are situated in Mainland China. Details of the Group’s
investment properties pledged to secure the Group’s interest-bearing
bank loans are set out in note 33.

Certificates of ownership in respect of certain investment properties
of the Group with a net carrying amount of approximately
RMB1,880,349,000 as at 31 December 2022 (31 December 2021:
RMB3,082,178,000) have not yet been issued by the relevant PRC
authorities. The Group is in the process of obtaining the relevant

certificates.

Fair value hierarchy

The following table illustrates the fair value measurement hierarchy of

the Group’s investment properties:

18. IR EYE @

AEENKREYEREDHELRE
B WAIRPBEARE AEBAEEIR
TEFFIRRNEERREYENGES
BN

AEBEBANETREYENREA
BEMARTEBRAIBPERE &
BENEREABAESNFTFE HIRE
FEN2022F12B31HAA AR
1,880,349,0007¢ (2021128310 : A
R #3,082,178,0007T) ©

AREEER

FEBIKRENEN R ABERRIIT
LI

Fair value measurement as at 31 December 2022 using
2022 F12AH AR EEHE

Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
GRS AR RAHRMN
HwE EXBAE EXBAE
(B—4) (E=H) (B=4) szt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ETT AR®ETT ARETT ARBTT
Commercial properties M E = - 21,480,749 21,480,749
Fair value measurement as at 31 December 2021 using
2021512831 B AR EBEFE
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
EET5 TREN RAEREN
RE BABAE BABAE
(E—R) B (BE=%H) Bt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFTT AREFTT ARBFT AREEFTT
Commercial properties B E = - 21,394,912 21,394,912

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements
between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3

(2021: Nil).
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18.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Below is a summary of the valuation techniques used and the key
inputs to the valuation of investment properties:

18. REME @

DAREEER @

UTHHREYEETEEMRBEER
TR RS E A ENHE

Valuation techniques Significant unobservable inputs Range
B BERRTHENHAE #E
2021
20215
Commercial properties Discounted Estimated rental value RMB12-RMB268 RMB12-RMB270
5 i E cash flow method (per sg.m. and per month) AR#12T— AR#127T—
ERFEREZE hEtE (BEAK/SA) AE¥2687T ANERE2707T
Rent growth (p.a.) 2%-5% 1%-6%
HEFERX
Long-term vacancy rate 1%-15% 2%-15%
RHRZEEX
Discount rate 5%-7% 6%-7%
AR

Residual method

HexBEE

Comparison method

LA

Budgeted construction cost

to be incurred (per sg.m.)
BELNEAEZRA (BTHK
Remaining percentage to completion
FemIantt

Ant|0|pated developer’s profit margin

LEBESNER

Market unit sale rate

(per sq.m)
THEMNER (BYHXR

RMB13-RMB426
AR¥13T—
AR#4267T
7%-57%

10%-15%

RMB9,200-
RMB44,900
AR #9,20075—
AR #44,9007T

RMB13-RMB352
AR#137T—
AR3527
3%-53%

10%-35%

RMB9,090-
RMB49,200

AR 19,0907t —
AR #49,2007T

Under the discounted cash flow method, fair value is estimated
using assumptions regarding the benefits and liabilities of ownership
over the asset’s life including an exit or terminal value. This method
involves the projection of a series of cash flows on a property
interest. A market-derived discount rate is applied to the projected
cash flow in order to establish the present value of the income
stream associated with the asset. The exit yield is normally separately
determined and differs from the discount rate.
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18.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 18. R EME @

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 F£E R %

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

The duration of the cash flows and the specific timing of inflows
and outflows are determined by events such as rent reviews, lease
renewal and related reletting, redevelopment or refurbishment.
The appropriate duration is driven by market behaviour that is a
characteristic of the class of property. The periodic cash flow is
estimated as gross income less vacancy, non-recoverable expenses,
collection losses, lease incentives, maintenance costs, agent and
commission costs and other operating and management expenses.
The series of periodic net operating income, along with an estimate
of the terminal value anticipated at the end of the projection period, is
then discounted.

A significant increase (decrease) in the estimated rent growth rate
and market rent growth rate per annum in isolation would result in
a significant increase (decrease) in the fair value of the investment
properties. A significant increase (decrease) in the long term vacancy
rate and the discount rate in isolation would result in a significant
decrease (increase) in the fair value of the investment properties.
Generally, a change in the assumption made for the estimated rental
value is accompanied by a directionally similar change in the rent
growth per annum and the discount rate and an opposite change in
the long-term vacancy rate.

The residual method of valuation is commonly used in valuing
development sites by establishing the market value of the properties
on an “as-if” completed basis with appropriate deduction on
construction costs, professional fees, contingency, marketing
and legal cost, and interest payments to be incurred, anticipated
developer’s profits, as well as land acquisition costs, interest
payment and profit on land.

The fair values of investment properties are determined using the
comparison method by referring to comparable sales evidence as
available in the relevant market. Comparable properties of similar
size, characteristics and location are analysed and selected for each
investment property in order to arrive at a fair comparison of their
fair values. The fair value measurement is positively correlated to the
market unit sale rate.

DAREEER @

R MEBNFERREAORAN MR
RRRE D RES®E  HOEHE KA
BE BERRBMEEMRE - BENT
BREBEHHTR (RYMEERN—E
1) PR 2 - ERIR S REMBU A
FRZEE AR RO RS~ W ENES 1R ~ T
B EER NENASERRAEM
MEMEEM s - Z—RIEME
EUWRA R BRMES N RAREER
WERKBEMTTE MWRERE

At AEFERXNTEHEETFRER
BIRARIEM (BL) EERNKREYER
AEBEAEEM L) - RRAZEXKR
FRIRREJ/AMEBIEM (L) EEHRE
MERRBEKERLD (G - —/&M
S A EESFHRRNESHTE
B FRERREBRBIBELUL O
BHRENRATERNRERAZE-

fEHE S R AU B —RRBREEE
HEE BBRE M B TYENT
BEE BENRREENERRE E
RER WRER EHRERRA UK
FBAR SR TES A L MURER
FFBAR R LA EEE
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HZE2022F12831HIEFE
19. LEASES 19.7HE
The Group as a lessee TEBEEAEATEA
The Group has lease contracts for various items of land use right and AEBERANEERSEN T MERE

RISFSEERNAE AL DIRAE
H— JR f (R DL 0 2 2 UG B AR £
HEA20E30%  MREZ % L 10 &
MR SR GBS (HEAIRE - 18T
TR AOE 154 o — R S A
Exgﬁxﬁsu%Atﬁg&ﬁmﬁ
BEE.

buildings used in its operations. Lump sum payments were made
upfront to acquire the leased land from the owners with lease periods
of 20 to 30 years, and no ongoing payments will be made under the
terms of these land leases. Leases of buildings generally have lease
terms between 3 and 15 years. Generally, the Group is restricted
from assigning and subleasing the leased asset outside the Group.

@) EREE
AEBERERREENRAER
BT :

(@) Right-of-use assets

The carrying amounts of the Group’s right-of-use assets and the
movements during the year are as follows:

Land use right Buildings Total
It E R &= Mzt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETTT ARBTT
As at 1 January 2021 R2021FE181H 3,773,178 2,561,830 6,335,008
Additions wE 567 13,383 13,950
Disposal HE (466) - (466)
Depreciation charge TERX (167,460) (350,410) (517,870)
Transfer to investment properties EREREYE
(note 18) (ffzx18) (11,006) - (11,006)
Transfer from properties under RERPMEEA
development (note 27) (Fzx27) 74,656 - 74,656
Covid-19-related rent concessions & B H#H A #yCovid-19
from lessors ERAEEESE - (10,342) (10,342)
Other lease modifications HthEEE:T - 62,086 62,086
As at 31 December 2021 and 2021128318 K
1 January 2022 2022%181H 3,669,469 2,276,547 5,946,016
Additions B - 1,816 1,816
Depreciation charge ERS (167,239) (320,185) (487,424)
Transfer to investment properties BIRELEY X
(note 18) (Fzx18) (614) - (614)
Transfer from properties under wERRYEEA
development (note 27) (ffz¥27) 12,513 - 12,513
Transfer from investment properties  #EI& BY) & A
(note 18) (MFE18) 3,496 - 3,496
Covid-19-related rent concessions ~ #& B H 8 A ACovid-19
from lessors HEESER - (11,469) (11,469)
Other lease modifications HthBEE&:T (7,828) 50,846 43,018
As at 31 December 2022 20224 12831H 3,509,797 1,997,555 5,507,352
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B ZE2022F12831HIEFE

19. LEASES (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)
(b) Lease liabilities

The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the movements

during the year are as follows:

19 HHE @
FEEFAEEA @
) HEERE

FREEaEMNREEREFNT:

2022 2021
20225 20214F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T JEUNSEESE
Carrying amount at 1 January R1BE1EEREE 2,377,138 2,596,177
New leases wiEE 1,816 13,383
Accretion of interest recognised FRBEERF SIL
during the year 143,560 159,471
Covid-19-related rent concessions 5 HE A BICovid-19
from lessors EREESESR (11,469) (10,342)
Other lease modifications HiBEE:] 43,018 62,086
Payments NES (428,193) (443,637)
Carrying amount at 31 December R12H31 HEREE 2,125,870 2,377,138
Analysed into: DA
Current portion RENER D 318,115 276,666
Non-current portion JERENEL 1,807,755 2,100,472

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in note 42 to

the financial statements.
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HZE2022F12831HIEFE

19. LEASES (continued) 19 fiE @

The Group as a lessee (continued)
(c) The amounts recognised in profit or l0ss in relation to leases are

FEEFAFEEA @
(c) FiRm PIERBITHEEA BT -

as follows:
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREEFIT
Interest on lease liabilities HESGENE 143,560 159,471
Depreciation charge of right-of-use FREEETERS
assets 487,424 517,870
Expense relating to short-term leases B ERE E BN 6,508 7,733
Expense relating to leases of BEREEEENERRMEX
low-value assets 220 232
Total amount recognised in profit or loss 87 M FE SRR IE 48 &8 637,712 685,306

(d) The total cash outflows for leases and future cash outflows
relating to leases that have not yet commenced are disclosed in
notes 37(c) and 38, respectively, to the financial statements.

The Group as a lessor

The Group leases its investment properties (note 18) consisting
of commercial properties and shop premises in Mainland
China under operating lease arrangements. The terms of the
leases generally require the tenants to pay security deposits
and provide for periodic rent adjustments according to the
then prevailing market conditions. Rental income recognised
by the Group during the year was RMB1,158,859,000 (2021:
RMB1,292,747,000), details of which are included in note 5 to
the financial statements.

As at 31 December 2022, the undiscounted lease payments
receivable by the Group in the future periods under non-
cancellable operating leases with its tenants are as follows:

@ BREESXNIRGSMEEEEKRAD
AEBNEEEBENRKIESR
RN RN RSB IR S M E37(c)
2381 &2 o

FEBEBLEA

AEBRBELEHEZHHAEKREY
¥ (fs£18) » BIEN T EAMMMNEEY
EREHEFM ZSHEENERTFEX
A EFEFRSTREERNIRTS
NETEHESHAER - RERNKTEEN
ERRHEEWA S ARK1,158,859,000
7T (20214 © AR #51,292,747,0007T) »
B EH N R RERMIEES o

R2022F12H331H  HEAERIREH
HE P 2 o] BN AS 250 & a9 FE I ok BY
BEEEEHREBENT :

2022 2021
20224 20214F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ABR¥TFT AREFT

Within one year —FRN 884,961 880,734
In the second to fifth years, inclusive E_EFRF (BEEEN) 1,346,123 1,473,814
After five years LE® 616,997 676,260

2,848,081 3,030,808
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EF2022F12831HILEE
20. GOODWILL 20. HE
2021
20214
Notes RMB’000
B 5F AREFT
At 1 January: R1B18 :
Cost D% 1,769,920 1,769,920
Accumulated impairment RETRE (447,668) (408,798)
Net carrying amount R E 1,322,252 1,361,122
Cost at 1 January, net of R1BE1HBI A
accumulated impairment (NErEHHE) 1,322,252 1,361,122
Impairment provided during the year £ PR {E & 12 (51,903) (38,870)
Cost and net carrying amount R12H31HB A K
at 31 December IR E 1,270,349 1,322,252
At 31 December; 128318 :
Cost D% 1,769,920 1,769,920
Accumulated impairment RETRE (499,571) (447,668)
Net carrying amount RmEFE 1,270,349 1,322,252
Impairment testing of goodwill EHEMRERE

Goodwill acquired through business combinations is allocated to the
following cash-generating units (‘CGUs”) for impairment testing:

e operation of department stores
e property development

e others
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20. GOODWILL (continued)

20. HE @

Impairment testing of goodwill (continued)

The recoverable amount of each CGU has been determined based
on a value in use calculation using cash flow projections based
on financial budgets covering a five-year period approved by
management. The discount rates applied to the cash flow projections
ranged from 11% to 14% (2021: 12% to 14%). Cash flows beyond
the five-year period are extrapolated using the estimated growth rate
of 3% (2021: 3%). The key assumptions adopted on growth rates
and discount rates used in the value in use calculations are based on
management’s best estimates.

In the opinion of the Company’s directors, a decrease in the growth
rate by 10% to 15% would cause the carrying amount of the cash-
generating unit to be under its recoverable amount by approximately
RMB195,331,000 to RMB260,588,000, and any reasonably possible
change in the other key assumptions on which the recoverable
amount is based would not cause the cash-generating unit’s carrying
amount to exceed its recoverable amount.

The carrying amounts of goodwill allocated to each of the CGUs are
as follows:

Operation of

EENRERNS @
BEREEFEMNOWEERERZERAEB
{ED+§/£EEE°;ZD+§/£T§)EHL/{ IR =
HEABEFNMBEREARENR
fébu%%é\ﬁu \%ﬁﬁﬁi\fﬁiuu§$ﬁ EIJE’JHS
WENMR11%E14% (20214F 1 12%F
14%) « AFEM FIRERERAETIE
REWHEE (20214 1 3%) 5t HFERE
BERFTAEREXERMIBEMRANEE
REDENEEBNREMET -

KANBEEDRA EBEETHEIONE
156% OJEEFRREETELEEMDN
EEEERETKBESTENARE
195,331,0007c & A R #260,588,0007T »
K AT U ol & 38 P ik 5 A9 B = R Y
FERGETEEHIFEHERREEELS
I EREEBAE AN EERE

PETFEREELEUNBEREEN
T

department Property
stores  development Others Total
BEERE MERR Hith st
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARETT
At 31 December 2021 120216128311 1,236,752 83,947 1,553 1,322,252
At 31 December 2022 120225128315 1,184,849 83,947 1,553 1,270,349

Assumptions were used in the value in use calculation of the CGUs
for 31 December 2022 and 2021. The following describes each
key assumption on which management has based its cash flow
projections to undertake impairment testing of goodwill:

Budgeted gross margins — Management has determined the
budgeted gross margins based on past performance and its
expectations for market development.

Discount rates — The discount rates used are after tax and reflect
specific risks relating to the respective units.

FPurchase price inflation — Management has considered the possibility
of increases in purchase price inflation ranging from nil to 5% (2021:
nil to 5%).
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Year ended 31 December 2022

B ZE2022F12831HIEFE
20. GOODWILL (continued) 20. 2 @)
Impairment testing of goodwill (continued) HERRERS @)
The values assigned to the key assumption on market development HREELFBUNTHEER BBEEXERK
of CGUs, discount rates and purchase price inflation are consistent EEEBRNEERFZATAEMENINE
with external information sources. BRRRE— e
Management performed impairment testing of goodwill annually EEEEFETHERENE N H
or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate REHHIBEREE) B RIREERSER
that the carrying value may be impaired. During the year ended 31 ERREREEMET R & E2022
December 2022, due to the operating performance decline among F12B31BLEFEE > TyHEREFKBUN
business units which affected the recoverable amounts of the cash- WERRPEE > FERICNERRAE
generating units of Chengdu Renhe Spring and Victory Commercial, SHNIRETELEBUZIINEIEEE ]
goodwill of approximately RMB21,060,000 and RMB30,843,000 was A AR 121,060,0007T RAI AR I
impaired, respectively. 30,843,000 P B4 E & ©
21.OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS 2. HithmpzEE
Computer software
TERER G
2022 2021
20225 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARBEFT
Cost at 1 January, net of 1 B1E M2
accumulated amortisation (0P RetiEH) 37,446 41,589
Additions NE 56 643
Amortisation provided during the year £ P65 5 5 (4,907) (4,7806)
At 31 December R12831H 32,595 37,446
At 31 December: R12A318 :
Cost FR K 110,983 110,927
Accumulated amortisation RETEY (78,388) (73,481)
Net carrying amount RmEFE 32,595 37,446
Computer software is amortised on the straight-line basis over five to FERRGRESEITAETFERTY
ten years. Y o
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Year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12831HIEFE

22.INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE

2 NEETENRE

31 December 31 December
2022 2021
220224 20214
12831H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AER®BTFT

Share of net assets e & E R E - 592
- 592
Particulars of the Group’s joint venture are as follows: KEFEGELEFBITRUOT -
Percentage
of ownership
Place of interest
Particulars of registration attributable Principal
Name issued shares held and business  to the Group activities
TEBE
FAENBRT R FRE D
AGIEE R fns¥ls iR B TEEH
Jiangsu Qinghehong Beverage Ordinary shares of PRC/ 50% Beverage industry
Management Co., Ltd. (“Qinghehong Beverage”) RMBH1 each Mainland China
IHENARREEERASE (TENALIRS) AR/ EEKR B/ PEARE 50% BT

23.INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATE

2. KB ERTNRE

31 December 31 December
2022 2021
120224 20214
12H31H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTFT ARETF T

Share of net assets FEIEEE S E 232,361 264,818

Goodwill on acquisition W R &
(less cumulative impairment) (RESHRE) 130,472 182,195
362,833 447,013

During the year, Commercial City issued 53,436,000 shares to
Shenzhen Leading Semiconductor Industry Investment Co., Ltd.
Following the issue, the Group’s shareholding in Commercial City
was diluted from 24.22% to 18.63%. On 31 October 2022, the
Group’s representatives on the board of Commercial City resigned as
directors of Commercial City and the Group no longer has significant
influence over Commercial City. The Group’s remaining interest in
Commercial City was reclassified to equity investments designated at
fair value through other comprehensive income, resulting in a gain on
deemed disposal of an associate of RMB328,207,000 (Note 12).
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Year ended 31 December 2022

B ZE2022F12831HIEFE
23.INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATE (continued) 23. REHERTINRE (@)
Particulars of the material associates are as follows: EEBE QB RIIRAOT
Percentage
of ownership
Place of interest
Particulars of  registration and attributable Principal
Name issued shares held business to the Group activities
FEEERL
HENERT PR R
REIATE RRFE  EMRSEME Epals TEER
Shenzhen UGO E-Commerce Co., Ltd. (‘UGO”) Ordinary shares of PRC/ 61.45% Electronic
RMB1 each Mainland China commerce
FNERBEFHBEERLAR (MBKE) AR /8K PE/HEAE 61.45% BT
(i) UGO () Bk
UGO is a strategic partner of the Group engaged in the BREATEENSEDTENS
electronic commerce industry. During the year, an impairment of BB FR REBRBENKERE
RMB24,382,000 (2021: Nil) was provided for the investment in Bt AR 1524,382,0007T (20214
UGO. ) o
There is no change in the composition of the board of directors HZE2022F12831HILEE EF
of UGO for the year ended 31 December 2022. Management gWARSERELC SEEREALR
determines that the Group does not have control over UGO. EEEBRBI MR
UGO is still considered an associate of the Group and was BRBDHEEARNEBENERZ A
accounted for using the equity method. B R mIAE AR
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Year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12831HIEFE

23.INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATE (continued)

(i) UGO (continued) (i)
The following table illustrates the summarised financial
information in respect of UGO adjusted for any differences in
accounting policies and reconciled to the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements:

BikEE @

23. R E AR E @)

TRIVTEBXRBEM G HERME
WERRBEEMBRENEKREE
HERFHARRNMBERE

31 December

31 December

2022 2021
#2022 Kr20214F
12831H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT AEFT
Current assets MENEE 218,939 281,575
Non-current assets EREEE 203,529 221,067
Current liabilities mEIEE (41,372 (118,807)
Non-current liabilities ERBEE (2,965) (2,737)
Net assets BEFE 378,131 381,098
Net assets, excluding goodwill BEEZE TEEHE 378,131 381,098
Reconciliation to the Group’s interest in BAREENBER
the associate: HERETHIR .
Proportion of the Group’s ownership AE B FThFT A L F) 61.45% 58.83%
Group’s share of net assets of REBREGHEARDEE
the associate, excluding goodwill FE TEIEE 232,361 224,200
Goodwill on acquisition W HER 2
(less cumulative impairment) (AR RE) 130,472 149,783
Carrying amount of the investment KRENREE 362,833 373,983
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Year ended 31 December 2022
B ZE2022F12831HIEFE

23.INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATE (continued) 23. REEATINRE @)
() UGO (continued) () B @

2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFTT AR®FT

Revenue A 62,415 129,658
(Loss)/profit for the year RE (E518) /FIH8 (2,553) 19,806
Total comprehensive (loss)/income 2@ (B18) /WmiEEa (2,553) 19,806
Carrying amount of the Group's KEFRHESAEREN
investment in the associate BREE 362,833 373,983
24. FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS 24. SRR E

31 December 31 December

2022 2021

120224 20214

12H31H 12831H

Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B EE ARBTT ARETIT

Equity investments designated BEAURAREESEZEH
at fair value through other gt AEMEEmWEN
comprehensive income: HEEE
Listed equity investments hEERE 0] 555,705 751,553
Unlisted equity investments JEEMEREE 0] 545,815 603,182
1,101,520 1,354,735
Financial assets at fair value through MU A A BETEBEEHTA
profit or loss: BEmEMEE !
Listed equity investments hEERE (ii) 25,425 277,054
Other unlisted investments HiIE EMEE (i) 19,654 149,474
45,079 426,528
1,146,599 1,781,263
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HZE2022F12831HIEFE

24. FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS (continued)

Notes:

M

(i)

(i)

The equity investments were irrevocably designated at fair value through
other comprehensive income as the Group considers these investments to
be strategic in nature. During the year, the Group sold its equity interest in
certain investment as this investment no longer coincided with the Group’s
investment strategy. The fair value on the date of sale was RMB524,631,000
and the accumulated gain recognised in other comprehensive income of
RMB243,866,000 was transferred to retained earnings.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group received dividends
in the amounts of RMB4,798,000 (2021: RMB6,517,000) from invested
companies.

As at 31 December 2022, none of the Group’s unlisted equity investment
(2021: Nil) was pledged as security for the Group’s bank loans as further
detailed in note 383.

The above equity investments were classified as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss as they were held for trading.

The unlisted investments at 31 December 2022 were wealth management
products and precious metal products purchased from banks in Mainland
China. They were mandatorily classified as financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss as their contractual cash flows are not solely payments of
principal and interest.
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24. TR E @
MisE

0

(i)

il

AR AEERAZSREBNREELRE
AR E T o HE I D & IE R S IR E i
EEAUAABESEREEH T AHMS
mRE FR FEBHEERETREN
B SRR ISR S EAERNIRERRE
TH—H -RHERPENAABEAARKE
524,631,00070 > Mt Hh 2 EU R R R
EHzE A R 15243,866,00070 BB E L E R
o

HZE2022F12831HIEEE  AEBBBER
ENBUWERRE AR 154,798,0007T (20214 :
AR #£6,517,0007T) °

R2022F 128318 AEE W EMIF EiEnm
5 (20214 | 1) {EA AL IRITERIVIEHR
(BB 52333 — 2 5%l) ©

PlERRENFIFEER MO BRUAR
BESBEHSHH ABENSREE-

2022512831 BHIE L E AP EARE
HIR{TREZIBMERRESBES -HI
HENRESRETEEASI VRS RFE
Rt ZE R EWRGFEAUANBENE
BHEHESH A ABRHNESMEE-
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AAFsER R MIEE

Year ended 31 December 2022

B ZE2022F12831HIEFE
25. DEFERRED TAX 25 IRFEFRIE
Movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets during the year are UTRERNEEREBEEBEREENED
as follows: 155
Deferred tax liabilities RERIBEAE
Deemed
Revaluation disposal of
of equity equity
Fair value investments investments
adjustment at fair value at fair value Amortisation
arisingfrom ~ through other  Revaluationof ~ through other Deemed Deemed  of prepaid land Capitalisation
acquisition o comprehensive investment  comprehensive disposal of disposal lease Withholding of borrowing Government
a subsidiary income properties income asubsidiary  of an associate payments taxes costs grant Total
&y
AN ]
fBEER WA EEHE
WERELT HEHA BHEEHA
BN HftRENE At 2ERER Rk fiRiRE Bfith gt
DARERE  MEGRE  EtRENE EakE HELR VG L BiA G BRRS a3t
RMB000 RVBI000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMBI000 RMBI000 RMB000 RMB000 RMBI000 RVBI000 RMB000
AEETR AEETR \EETR ABETR AEETR NEETR ABETR AEETR AEETT \EETR ABETR
At January 2021 REAR 1,284,953 263 209,990 7380 9,769 6,707 530 14282 456400 - 4110375
Defere tax chargedcredted) o A%/ ()
equity during the year ERNELHE - (20982 260644 - - - - - - - 241,662
Defered tax chargedi(credied) o EARGAERR
the consoldeted satementof 1%/ (5 49
ot orloss durng the e ETRE
note 14) (H3k14) 65,531) - 72549 - (9,769) (1,708 - 17,059 546 2864 (509%0)
A3t December 2021 and RO021E12A31ER
1 January 2022 N2E1R1E 1,219422 1,682 2431,183 7,380 - 4999 25310 131,201 456,46 2,864 401,047
Defere tax chargedcreated) o EA1%/ (3t )
equity during the year ERMELIE - (1,659) 254 - - - - - - - 27,882
Defened tax cherged(credied) to EABSARER
the consolcated statementof 115/ GHA) M0
poftorloss durng theyear  ETERE
(note 14) (iizka) ) - 2,63 - 3,361 (1,178) - 15,568 8,355 710 11,160
At 31 December 2022 RE12RsIE 1,147,701 - 2490352 7,380 3361 3621 25310 146,879 465,301 49,984 4,340,089
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RAFsER R MIEE

Year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12831HIEFE

25. DEFERRED TAX (continued) 25 IRFEFLIE (@)
Deferred tax assets RIEIRIRE =
Revaluation of
equity
Losses investments
available for Unrealised at fair value
Provisionfor  Impairment offsetting  intercompany through other
Provisions retirement of current Lease against future transaction ~Advance from comprehensive
and accruals benefits assets liabilities taxable profits profit customers income Total
EftiEEA
NRAEE
AR HEEHEE
BER BIER pit)I={:3 FRERR FER FARMRE
BRER B& e 886 WANER ADHENR BRER WangERE gt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEETR  ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR
At 1 January 2021 R202151518 97,640 1,634 47454 51,585 103,049 319,579 19590 - 640,401
Deferred tax credited/(charged) o ERREREEER
the consoidated statementof 5t/ (11B3) B0
proft or loss during the year BiLhE
(note 14) (fzE14) 1676 (22) (6243 16,168 82,29 (10,118) 21,767 - 105,524
At 31 December 2021 and R0 FE12831H R
1 January 2022 02E1818 99,316 1,512 4,211 67,123 185,345 309,461 41,357 - 745,925
Deferred tax credited/(charged) o ERREREEER
the consoidated statementof 5t/ (11B3) B0
proft or loss during the year BiLhE
(note 14) (fzE14) (65,767) (142) 22,552 13,122 (37,562) 14,042 5,288 - (48,467)
Deferred tax credited to FRaARENELRE
equity during the year - - - - - - - 10,623 10,623
At 31 December 2022 1R2022F12531H 33,549 1,370 63,763 80,845 147,783 323,508 46,645 10,623 708,081

The Group had tax losses of approximately RMB3,227,239,000 as
at 31 December 2022 (31 December 2021: RMB3,532,531,000),
that will expire in one to five years for offsetting against future taxable
profits.
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AEEP2022FE12H31HIFEHN AR
3,227,239,0007T (2021128310 : A
R #3,532,531,00070) iR IER 18 » %%
PR R R 2R FE SR IR A B R IR TE S 4B 15

R—EhFREm-

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 FE#R &
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Year ended 31 December 2022
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B ZE2022F12831HIEFE

25. DEFERRED TAX (continued) 25, IRIEIA (48)
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the FIEMRMIBEE WAL T IEE EITHE
following items: Eoa

31 December

31 December

MIAR A

Tax losses

2022 2021
20224 20214
12H31H 12831H
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T AERBKEEFIT
2,631,611 2,791,151

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of these
losses as they have arisen in subsidiaries that have been loss-making
for some time and it is not considered probable that taxable profits
will be available against which the tax losses can be utilised.

The Group has recognised deferred tax assets in respect
of tax losses of approximately RMB529,000 in 2022 (2021:
RMB104,011,000), the utilisation of which is dependent on future
taxable profits in excess of the profits arising from the reversal of
existing taxable temporary differences. The amount of deferred tax
assets is based on the profit forecast approved by the management
of the Group.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10% withholding
tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign investors from the
foreign investment enterprises established in Mainland China.
The requirement is effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to
earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate may
be applied if there is a tax treaty between Mainland China and the
jurisdiction of the foreign investors. For the Group, the application
rate is 5%. The Group is therefore liable for withholding taxes on
dividends distributed by those subsidiaries established in Mainland
China in respect of earnings generated from 1 January 2008.

As at 31 December 2022, the deferred tax liabilities of undistributed
profits not provided for amounted to RMB598,808,000 (31
December 2021: RMB562,437,000).

WERZEBREDELERBEEE )
HEEBEENME RS CEE —KRE
B WD N APIAEE ELBHBIER
MAELURHIRER IR -

REE 2022 FE MR BB SDIEIER
55 E4 AR 1529,0007T (20214 : A
R #104,011,0007T) @ sZiELERIEE E
EREEAEURAR RN ERRFEBE
RENERRYEREEELFESENT
o RIERIBEENSRBENKAER
BEBHENEFTENE-

RIEDBECEMRERE IEREER
MR FEAENINERETCEESHR
EERB10%NREXHWTERER
ZRTER2008F1B1HEER  BER
200712831 HEMEF] o im0 B B AT
BZINEREEFTRE R A B FEERI
WE A BEARBTERFAERHRE &
EHEARELS% AL ZEBRHE
KB B L BI B B A Bl BL A 2008E1 51 H
ZREENRI DK SR EMNTER
Fig#a o

R2022F12H31H ket &EHEH
AOEMBRIEREBESEAARE
598,808,0007% (2021128310 : AR
#562,437,0007T) ©
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A T5 IR AR 5L

Year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12831HIEFE

26.INVENTORIES 26. %78

31 December 31 December
2022 2021
220224 20214
12831H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AER®BTFT

Merchandise for resale PIEE R @ 358,086 339,573

Provision against slow-moving inventories FEEERE (5,599) (5,599)
352,487 333,974

Movements in the provision against slow-moving inventories are as FENBEREBEEHUT !

follows:

2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARKF T

At 1 January M1A1E8 5,599 5,599
Amount written off during the year FERIZIE - _
At 31 December R12831H 5,599 5,599
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A TSR 5E

Year ended 31 December 2022

B ZE2022F12831HIEFE
27.PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT 27. BRPME
2021
20214
Notes RMB’000
= AREFT
Land lease prepayments, at cost TR E AT G2 EAR)
At 1 January M1A1H 2,931,882 2,922,961
Additions NE - 100,364
Transfer to right-of-use assets EREFREEE 19(a) (12,513) (74,656)
Transfer to completed properties held BREFEEES
for sale (S5 -3p%/ES (16,481) (16,787)
At 31 December R12831H 2,902,888 2,931,882
Development expenditure, at cost FREESE H (R AS)
At 1 January =R E=] 2,382,195 2,847,851
Additions wE 730,966 513,081
Transfer to property, plant and equipment B EY) % i 7= SR 17 (41,681) (779,548)
Transfer to completed properties EBEREESAEEE
held for sale [=H-3%7/ES (487,637) (196,317)
Impairment BE 11 - (2,872)
At 31 December M12H31H 2,583,843 2,382,195
5,486,731 5,314,077
The Group’s properties under development are held under medium KREBNERERPYETLRBEPHALT
term leases and are situated in Mainland China. B WAL PR ARE -
Details of the Group’s properties under development pledged to REBAHFERTERFERIFNEE
secure the Group’s interest-bearing bank loans are set out in note FERPYENEE BRI MIEEI3
38.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A T5 IR AR 5L

Year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12831HIEFE

28. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 28. BB G RIEREE

31 December

31 December

2022 2021

120224 20214

12H31H 12H31H

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T AR®FT

Trade and bills receivables FEUR & 57 718 45,088 29,523
Impairment A (16,757) (15,379)
28,331 14,144

The Group’s revenue from the direct sales of merchandise are
mainly on a cash basis. The credit terms offered to customers of
the Group’s sale of properties are generally three months to one
year. Each customer has a maximum credit limit. The Group seeks
to maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables and
has a credit control department to minimise credit risk. Overdue
balances are reviewed regularly by senior management. In view of
the aforementioned and the fact that the Group’s trade and bills
receivables relate to a large number of diversified customers, there is
no significant concentration of credit risk. The Group does not hold
any collateral or other credit enhancements over its trade and bills
receivable balances. Trade and bills receivables are non-interest-
bearing.

An ageing analysis of the trade and bills receivables as at the end of
the reporting period, based on the invoice dates, is as follows:

AEEERFEEFMIBATELURS
REE AEENYEHERH®TER
NEER—RA=ZERE—F -B8UK
FHERBEEREE AEBESKER
BEEBUERRIRIT BB ES > LRAE
BERIEPURBEEERR SHREE
B ERRERGRR  BH LAt
RAEBRBKEZRERREIRAE
SHRIEEPNEE HABEAREDE
B R AL B E BN E 5B R
DEEFEFRT A TR M E MR8
EEER -BUEBZRERRERTE -

REBEMR BRBZMEARRELE
FEEREREDTWT ¢

31 December

31 December

2022 2021

120224 20214

12831H 12H31H

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR% Tt AREFTT

Within 60 days 60H A 15,534 5,992
61 to 90 days 61ZE90H 1,045 488
91 to 180 days 91E180H 394 223
181 to 270 days 181F270H 1,418 1,010
271 to 360 days 271%E360H 4,613 349
Over 360 days #B48360H 22,084 21,461
45,088 29,523
Impairment HE (16,757) (15,379)
28,331 14,144
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AAFsER R MIEE

Year ended 31 December 2022
B ZE2022F12831HIEFE

28.TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued)

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of trade
receivables are as follows:

28. BB ZRIERTEE (B)

BB Z RN REGEEEEZSHU
T

2022 2021
20224 20214

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARETIT

At 1 January M1A1H 15,379 19,611
Impairment losses, net (note 11) BERERE (T5E11) 1,378 (4,232)
At 31 December M12H31H 16,757 15,379

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date using a
provision matrix to measure expected credit losses. The provision
rates are based on days past due for groupings of various customer
segments with similar loss patterns (i.e., by product type and
customer type and rating). The calculation reflects the reasonable
and supportable information that is available at the reporting date
about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future
economic conditions.

Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure on the
Group’s trade receivables using a provision matrix:

As at 31 December 2022

REWRES AR BAEEERETHE
D Ut ETRIEEHER - BEXRLE
REAEUBEBEANZEZR DD
A8 (BN EmiER ~ & R KRsT4R) BYE
HHBGE B - ZstE RIS BT
SHBBBEEMN  EA0R M R R
BRRBRANGERIEER

TXEIEAAERRBEEERESE
MW E ZRENEERRER

142022%12831H

Past due
oL
1t06 6 months 1 year
months to1year to3years
1£6f8 6EAEIFE 1FEEF
Expected credit loss rate BHEEEBENE 0.1% 0.2% 0.5% 100%
Gross carrying amount (RMB’000) REAE (ARETT 16,973 6,031 5,385 16,699 45,088
Expected credit losses (RMB'000) BHEERE ARETT) 17 13 28 16,699 16,757
As at 31 December 2021 2021512831H
Past due
paks
1t06 6 months 1 year Over
months to 1 year to 3 years 3 years Total
1E6f@8 6EBZEIFE 1EE3F HBIB3E 18t
Expected credit loss rate BHREEBEBENZE 0.1% 0.2% 0.5% 100%
Gross carrying amount (RMB'000)  BREHE (AR F ) 6,703 1,359 6,123 15,338 29,523
Expected credit losses (RMB'000)  TEEAEEEE (ARET ) 7 3 31 15,338 15,379
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RAFsER R MIEE

Year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12831HIEFE

29. PREPAYMENTS, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND

29. FA{IRIE ~ H KRR IE R H At

OTHER ASSETS BE
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
20224 20216
12831H 12831H
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B 55 AR¥T T AE®FT
Non-current assets ERBEE
Prepayments TENRRIE 115,042 134,074
Current assets MENEE
Prepayments TE(IRRIE 284,303 325,679
Deposits and other receivables from REFFFEBABDNERER
non-related companies HhpEW A 0] 1,978,098 1,507,405
Deposits and other receivables from RERBATNEE R
related companies HhpE k1A 661,865 805,668
2,924,266 2,638,752
Impairment of other receivables from REIERAHE A B
non-related companies HuhpEu g/ & (117,249) (40,141)
Impairment of other receivables from REREEA BN
related companies HhfEWEIERE (85,234) (86,673)
(202,483) (126,814)
2,721,783 2,511,938

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of other

receivables are as follows:

HEWRIE R EEREFHEEEINT ¢

2022 2021
20224 20214

RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFT AR®FT

At 1 January »1B18 126,814 149,983
Impairment losses, net (note 11) BERERE (MYEE11) 78,151 (21,833)
Amount written off as uncollectible AR W[ E BEiZ (2,482) (1,336)
At 31 December ®12831H 202,483 126,814
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A TSR 5E

Year ended 31 December 2022

EF2022F12831HILEE
29. PREPAYMENTS, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 29. JA{IFRIE ~ HMM U FRIE R HAth
OTHER ASSETS (continued) BE®
The balances due from related companies included in the above are X FrE WM A SSRUT
as follows:
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
20224 FR20214
12H31H 12H31H
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B sE AR®BTFT ARETFIT
Associates /NS 0] - 146,945
Immediate holding company BEERAT 27,599 25,485
Fellow subsidiaries EEN NZYNE] 118,255 117,227
A company significantly influenced by —RRKRRBEER
a director of the Company BEAREENAT 516,011 516,011
Impairment of other receivables from KERHMATN
related companies HihEWRIE R E (85,234) (86,673)
576,631 718,995
()  Included in other receivables as at 31 December 2022 is an amount due () 20225128318 EMEWEIET BIERE
from Commercial City of RMB162,124,000, which includes the loans, related U I FUE A R #162,124,00070 » 6
interest receivable and total interest penalty income. The amount as at 31 FEER - EWARRF B2 &F Bl
December 2021 was RMB136,923,000 which was classified as due from an 4AEE FA20214FE 12831 H 22 BEA AR
associate prior to the reclassification of the Group's investment in Commercial 136,923,00070 > RAEBN A E WML ESE
City to equity investments at fair value through other comprehensive income MREARANEESEEEEEH A M
(Note 28). The loans bear interest at 6.5% to 10% per annum. The loans EENEMNREIRE 2 AIDEAREK—EK
are repayable in one year. During the year, interest income and total interest ERBIFIE ([5123) - ERIREFZEE.5%E
penalty income from the loans were RMB5,228,000 and RMB19,658,000 10%st R BRAR—FERNEE - FER B
respectively (2021: RMB8,265,000 and RMB17,225,000 respectively). HHFEWA KM ESIE W RBED B AAR
&5,228,00070 K& A B #619,658,0007% (2021
F 93 ABARKS, 265000t R AR
17,225,0007T) °
The remaining balances due from other related companies are FEWEMBEB AT NIENEG TN AE
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. IR - ERRNERFER

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 F£E R % MAOYE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED ZZBIBEZERERAT 207



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A T5 IR AR 5L

Year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12831HIEFE

29. PREPAYMENTS, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND

OTHER ASSETS (continued)

As at 31 December 2022, financial assets included in prepayments,
other receivables and other assets were in Stage 1, and a provision
for impairment of RMB202,483,000 was provided. Details of
impairment assessment of financial assets included in prepayments,
other receivables and other assets for the year ended 31 December
2022 are set out in note 42.

The impairment of other receivables from related companies
amounted to RMB85,234,000 at 31 December 2022 (31 December
2021: RMB86,673,000), which includes the impairment of the
balances due from Shenyang Maoye Property Co., Ltd., Shenzhen
Demao Investment Enterprises and Shenzhen Hezhengmao
Investment Enterprise in the amounts of RMB55,457,000,
RMB20,626,000 and RMB8,248,000 (31 December 2021:
RMB55,457,000, RMB20,626,000 and RMB8,248,000), respectively.

zagﬁ%ﬁxEM%W%E&E@

= (@

2022128310 st ATANRIEH
HERAEREMEENERE EE
RE—EE EstiRABEEREEBEARE
202,483,0007T ° & B & E20224 12 H 31
HiEEEst ATESRIE  HithE R FIE
REMEENSRE ENRETGES
R MIEE420

R2022FE12831H  RERAB AT NE
fhFE W R IB B A A R 1585,234,0007T
(20214128318 : AR 86,673,000
7o) BIEREERREBERRAT
FIEREELERFIEGERKRED
(BB R D A AR 55,457,000
T ARM20,626,0007T & A R
8,248,0007T (20214128310 : ARE

55,457,0007T ~ A & #£20,626,00071 5 A
R 8,248,0007T) ©

AR IB RTINS R (B BT &R EL At FE WO IR BR

EEEEEMARNBERERNARE
BHABR-

30. & RIRE FEYUABRARRER

The carrying amounts of the remaining other receivables that were
neither past due nor impaired relate to other debtors for whom there
was no recent history of default.

30. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND PLEDGED

DEPOSITS
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
20224 20214
12H831H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%F AREFT
Cash and bank balances RE KIRITHRR 556,293 1,197,116
Pledged deposits EHIFER 368,728 147,114
925,021 1,344,230
Less: Pledged bank balances for B RTEIEEFNERITER
construction in progress (283,351) (119,926)
Pledged bank balances for mortgages LB IR AV IRIT A5 BR (21,276) (17,321)
Pledged time deposits for BRIERLBEERITFN
housing fund loans EHER (52) (52)
Pledged bank balances for bank loans AIRTTERUIRIR IR TAER - (414)
Frozen bank deposits BERAEIRITER (60,725) (5,403)
Pledged time deposit for bank #IRTT AR RBIEIRN
acceptance bills EHRER (1,880) (3,773)
Others Hth (1,444) (225)
Cash and cash equivalents ReRIREEEY 556,293 1,197,116
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AAFsER R MIEE

Year ended 31 December 2022
B ZE2022F12831HIEFE

30. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND PLEDGED

DEPOSITS (continued)

The Group’s cash and cash equivalents and pledged deposits were

denominated in the following currencies:

&)

T LU B R -

31 December

30. R MR FEVURIRIFER

AEBENRE MBS FEYLURIRRT

31 December

2022 2021

20224 1220214

12H31H 12H31H

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR%TFT AREFT

RMB AR 920,710 1,339,893
Hong Kong dollar BT 3,936 3,734
United States dollar ET 346 574
Euro BT 1 1
Great British pound H§E 9 10
Singapore dollar Hr Nz T 19 18
925,021 1,344,230

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 F£E R %

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank balances of
the Group denominated in RMB amounted to RMB925,021,000
(81 December 2021: RMB1,344,230,000). The RMB is not freely
convertible into other currencies, however, under Mainland China’s
Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of
Settlement, and Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations,
the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies
through banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates. Time deposits are made for varying periods of
between one month and six months depending on the immediate
cash requirements of the Group, and earn interest at the respective
time deposit rates. The bank balances and bank deposits are
deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.

HERSHPER AEBUAREEDN
R KMIRTTHE R A AR 1§925,021,0007T
(20215128318 : AR #1,344,230,000
7T cRmARBEIEHRRSBREMNES
s SR > AR5 AP B A B (O EE B IR AR B )
RGEE -EERMESERE) ~ER
BRI EETINEXFNIRTTHE
AREBRBAHEME

RITIREHRE B IRITERF KB
HHE - EHMERHRNF—E/XMEA
RE > R REEBYRNRER & FKMIE
A LUAR FE B9 E HA 77 R M R BR A B < 3R
ITRBMIRTEMEF ALY EHER
SEEEREFMRITH
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RAFsER R MIEE

Year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12831HIEFE

31.TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

An ageing analysis of the trade and bills payables as at the end of the
reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

1. BN EZRERER

BNESRERBREERSHRZER
HBUERES DATUT :

31 December 31 December
2022 2021
120224 R20214E
12H31H 12831H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT ARETF T

Within 90 days 90H™W 1,136,461 1,281,165
91 to 180 days 91%E180H 54,445 92,249
181 to 360 days 181E360H 69,252 82,567
Over 360 days 360H U L 340,462 436,931

1,600,620 1,892,912

The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are normally settled
within 90 days.

The Group’s bills payable amounted to RMB28,464,000 as at 31
December 2022 (31 December 2021: RMB70,814,000).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A TSR 5E

Year ended 31 December 2022

HE2022F12H31HIEEE
32. CONTRACT LIABILITIES, DEPOSITS RECEIVED, 2.8 8E u&#&% FEst &R K
ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES H{h R
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
#20224F 20214
12831H 12H31H
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
g4 ARBTT ABEBT T
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Loans from fellow subsidiaries KERRNBABNER (o) 4,115,960 3,858,460
Other payables HAt T FRIE 212 162
4,116,172 3,858,622
Current liabilities nEARE
Contract liabilities EHEE (@) 1,758,677 1,809,627
Deferred revenue I A 108,684 111,463
Deposits received BlizE 730,379 694,472
Accrued operating lease rental expenses ~ FAIRASE SRS 126,643 80,063
Accrued utilities TEIR A R MR 2 46,927 37,753
Accrued liabilities TEIRE 210,303 216,516
Accrued staff costs EiREEMRX 47,978 48,926
Provision for coupon liabilities milsaEEE 66,639 70,358
Value-added tax and other tax payables IBER R EMESRIE 367,629 385,109
Payables for construction BN ITREENTUE 1,931,981 1,978,059
Loans from the immediate holding company ;ls 5 HEERABNER (b) 535,482 468,121
Loans from fellow subsidiaries REBERNBRBRNER (b) 634,786 431,365
Loan from a company significantly KERAANE %%%ﬂ(@ £
influenced by a director of the Company ~ FIATIRER (b) 838,841 749,577
Claim provisions RIERE 62,209 80,337
Other payables HAt TR © 1,000,342 1,155,282
8,467,500 8,317,028
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A T5 IR AR 5L

Year ended 31 December 2022

HZE2022F12831HIEFE
32. CONTRACT LIABILITIES, DEPOSITS RECEIVED, R2.5MaE - BliRE B ERR
ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued) Eﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁ'ﬁ\ﬁ (&)
Notes: M3
(@) Detalils of contract liabilities are as follows: @ BHNaEFENT:
31 December 31 December 1 January
2022 2021 2021
2022%F12H31H 2021128318 2021F181H
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFTT ARHEFT
Sale of properties MIEHE 630,294 703,073 1,077,973
Sale of prepaid cards HEFEMF 1,128,383 1,106,554 1,123,256
Total contract liabilities BRaEBE 1,758,677 1,809,627 2,201,229
Contract liabilities include advances received to deliver properties and presale BHEE &?E?ffiﬁ%¥&ﬁ§ﬁﬁ‘fzuﬁlﬁﬂ
of prepaid cards. The decrease in contract liabilities in 2022 and 2021 was BYEARR 0 20225 K201 E B A ER /D E
mainly due to the decrease in short-term advances received from customers in HRFRMHEMERENE R EH%—&%ADZ
relation to the sale of properties at the end of the year. /o
(o) The balances due to related companies included in the above are as follows: b FFALXMENREBARGSERAT
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
1$20225F 20214
12A31H 12831H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARHEFT
Associates & QT - 3,246
The immediate holding company ET&?"H"/\ 543,828 475,828
Fellow subsidiaries EEN YN 4,781,691 4,490,937
Companies significantly influenced by xﬂS@j%%%ﬂ(%% EVANE]
a director of the Company 838,841 749,577
6,164,360 5,719,588
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AAFsER R MIEE

Year ended 31 December 2022
B ZE2022F12831HIEFE

32. CONTRACT LIABILITIES, DEPOSITS RECEIVED,
ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(b)

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 F£E R %

(continued)

Included in the balance due to the immediate holding company is an
amount of RMB535,482,000 (31 December 2021: RMB468,121,000) which
includes the loan from Maoye Department Store Investment Limited of
RMB405,339,000 and the related interest at 7.00% per annum.

Included in the balances due to fellow subsidiaries is an amount of
RMB4,750,746,000 (31 December 2021: RMB4,289,825,000) which
includes the loan from Shenzhen Maoye (Group) Co., Ltd. (“Shenzhen
Maoye Group”) of RMB3,907,460,000 and the related interest payable,
the loan from Chongde Property Management (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. of
RMB208,500,000 and the related interest payable, the loan from Maoye
Group Limited of RMB145,159,050 and the related interest payable. The
loan of RMB3,907,460,000 bears interest at 4.75% per annum, the loan
of RMB208,500,000 bears interest at 3.85% per annum, and the loan of
RMB145,159,050 bears interest at 7.00% per annum.

The loans from Shenzhen Maoye Group of RMB3,907,460,000 and from
Chongde Property Management (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. of RMB208,500,000
are due in 2 years and included in other non-current liabilities. The other loans
mentioned above are all repayable in one year.

During the year, the loan interest expenses mentioned above amounted to
RMB221,536,000 (2021: RMB209,258,000).

Included in the balance due to companies significantly influenced by a director
of the Company is an amount of RMB838,841,000 (31 December 2021:
RMB749,577,000) which includes a loan amounting to RMB200,000,000 and
the related interest and penalty payable. The loan bears interest at 8.79% per
annum and an interest penalty at 0.05% per day. During the year, the loan
interest and penalty expenses were RMB17,833,000 and RMB61,932,000
(2021: RMB17,833,000 and RMB58,653,000), respectively.

The remaining balances due to related companies are unsecured, interest-free
and repayable on demand.

The other payables are non-interest-bearing and will generally mature within
one year.

32. E@E1ﬂ BlEE Bt ERAK

FE{T=RIE (@
izt (@
b @&

EAEZERARGHRTEE—ZARE
535,482,0007T (2021812831H : AR
468,121,0007t) B9& %8 815K EMaoye
Department Store Investment LimitedB9 & A
R #405,339,00070 K R FFZ7.00% 5T HHY
HEREFIR

ENRANBARGHRTEE—ZARE
4,750,746,0007T (202146128318 : AR
4,289,825,0007T) » BIHEZR BFRIRE (E)
BRMAERAT (MRIIZEER)) WARKE
3,907,460,0007c & =B EERE (R AR
ATIK AR 1208,500,0007 A Kz 48 B8 FE 1
MNEUREEREERERATHNERA
R #5145,150,0507t S ABRAFE S B o AR
3,907,460,0007c N E RIS 24, 75% 51 B~
A R #208,500,00009 & 7% £ ) %3.85% 51
B mAR145,159,05070 9 & Rz £ 5] =X
7.00%5T 8 ©

RERYIZE EBE) ROBRATNVERA
R #3,907,460,0007 K& ==Y £ B2 G
BIRABNE AR #208,500,0007TH M4
REIRR WAAIERB & & - L E SR
—FEREER

FR> LERAEREX A ARK221,536,000
7T (20214F © AR 1209,258,0007T) ©

EESAADETEAFENADEHTE
& AR 1838,841,0007T (20214128318 :
ANE#749,577,0007T) » ZEBEBIEERA
£ #%200,000,0007T K FET 1B RAF) B K £ <& ©
BRUREF]FR8.79%5 B K 5 X0.05%H9 5]
EoFER BRFBEIETHARNBARKE
17,833,00070 % A R #£61,932,0007T (20214 :
AN #517,833,0007t 52 A & #558,653,0007T) ©

FEFIRAR A BB ERBIER T 30 B EIRIF
B REREEE-

HitnERIERRE  —RI—FANEIE -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RAFsER R MIEE

Year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12831HIEFE

33.INTEREST-BEARING BANK LOANS AND OTHER 33. st RIRITEMREMER
BORROWINGS
2022 2021
20225 2021
Effective Effective
interest rate interest rate
(%)  Matuity  RMB'000 %)  Mauity  RMBI000
BERIZE%) HHE  AR¥ETT BELSlESE) 8B ARETR
Current K
Interest-bearing bank loans - secured 5t 8 SETEH -k H 4.36-6.50 2023 3,699,000  4.68-6.09 202 2,970,000
Current portion of long term REHERTERN
interest-bearing bank loans IR
- secured -l 4,55-6.60 2023 2,904,271 3.96-6.60 2022 3,143,617
Current portion of a corporate bond AT EX N A
— unsecured (a) —EE () 4.94 2023 299,501 479 2022 299,270
6,902,772 6,412,887
Non-current E[I
Non-current portion of HERTERN
interest-bearing bank loans IR
- secured ~BiEH 435-6.60  2024-2035 5,961,510 490-6.60  2023-2035 7,603,299
Corporate bonds - unsecured () AREF-EERQ - 494 2023 298,683
5,961,510 7,901,982
12,864,282 14,314,869
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
20224 Hr20214F
12831H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR% Tt AE®BTT
Analysed into: DITWF
Bank and other loans repayable: RITREMEEESER
Within one year —FRN 6,902,772 6,412,887
In the second year RE_F 3,184,100 3,132,372
In the third to fifth years, inclusive RE=ZFFEFHF
(GEEMEEN) 800,250 2,433,230
Beyond five years BREM 1,977,160 2,336,380
12,864,282 14,314,869
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AAFsER R MIEE

Year ended 31 December 2022
B ZE2022F12831HIEFE

33.INTEREST-BEARING BANK LOANS AND OTHER
BORROWINGS (continued)

Notes:

(@

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 F£E R %

On 4 August 2020, Shenzhen Maoye Shangsha completed the issuance of
bonds with a total principal amount of RMB600,000,000 on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange of the PRC. The corporate bonds were issued in two
categories. Category 1 carries interest at 4.79% per annum, payable annually
on 4 August in arrears, and has a term of up to 2 years at maximum. Category
2 carries interest at 4.94% per annum, payable annually on 4 August in
arrears, and has a term of up to 3 years at maximum. Category 1 was repaid
on 1 August 2022, and category 2 will be matured on 4 August 2023.

The carrying amount of the corporate bonds as at 31 December 2022 was
RMB299,501,000.

Certain of the Group’s bank loans are secured by:

()  certain land and buildings of the Group with a net carrying amount
of approximately RMB3,699,504,000 (31 December 2021:
RMB4,370,165,000);

(i)  certain investment properties of the Group with a net carrying
amount of approximately RMB9,059,790,000 (31 December 2021:
RMB8,422,086,000);

(i) certain right-of-use assets of the Group with a net carrying
amount of approximately RMB233,379,000 (831 December 2021:
RMB158,728,000);

(iv) certain properties under development of the Group with a net carrying
amount of approximately RMB1,929,583,000 (31 December 2021:
RMB1,874,444,000); and

(v) certain stocks of Maoye Commercial with a carrying amount of
RMB999,600,000 (31 December 2021: RMB848,350,000).

Except for the secured bank loan of RMB74,214,000 (31 December 2021:
RMB88,106,000) which are denominated in Hong Kong dollars, all borrowings
are in RMB.

Except for the bank loans with a carrying amount of RMB8,392,478,000 (31
December 2021: RMB8,723,043,000) at fixed interest rates, all borrowings
bear interest at floating interest rates.

33. st BIRITERM B H B @

PI5E

(@

HR20205E8 48 » FYIREMERTE LS
BERGFITERET—HASEBEAARE
600,000,0007Tc YA BIES o A BEHIEME
1872517 o SER 1324, 79% M EF K5 B~ D HA
PEERNSHIR I FHHREAME 485
234 Q4% EF| R 5T B D EIN S ERI8H4
H3 I FHRZ A= F 885172202281
13 A R BRI 7220238 B4R B HA

2022128310 ABESHMIREES A
R 1299,501,0007T ©

FEENETRITERAUTEERR

) ZEEBEBBFENEARE
3,699,504,0007T (20214128318 : AR
#£4,370,165,0007T) BT T HIKRIEF ;

i) ZEEEABDFELEARE
9,059,790,0007T (20214128318 : AR
#58,422,086,0007T) B TIREMYE ;

(i) AEMMEREFELNS ARKE233,379,000
7t (20215128310 : AR
158,728,0007T) W& THEREESE ;

vy ZEBEBFENEARE
1,929,583,0007T (20214E12831H : AR
#£1,874,444,00070) NETERTYIE ;
&

() REEERREEART999,600,0007T
(20216128318 : AR15848,350,000
7o) A TRG

PR AR 1E74,214,0007T (20218128310 © A
K 1588,106,0007T) WA IEIFIRITEMRUBTT
sHESN FRAEEREA AR

MREREE A AR £8,392,478,0007T (20214512
HB318 : AR#8,723,043,0007T) HUIRITER
BEEMNEF BN FAEETERFEIANE
TR
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RAFsER R MIEE

Year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12831HIEFE

33.INTEREST-BEARING BANK LOANS AND OTHER
BORROWINGS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

In addition, Shenzhen Maoye Group, Chongde Property Management (Shenzhen)
Co., Ltd., Chongqing Maoye Real Estate Co., Ltd., Mr. Huang Mao Ru, Mrs. Huang
Jingzhang (spouse of Mr. Huang Mao Ru), and Mr Lin Zhen Xiong have guaranteed
certain of the Group’s bank loans with a total amount of RMB6,267,215,000 (31
December 2021: RMB7,338,059,000) as at the end of the reporting year.

The Group had the following undrawn banking facilities at the year end:

33. st BIRITERM B EH B @

Mzt (8

IESh > FASRE AR ORI E (EE) ~ RENEE
B (RY) BRAR - EEXEMEARAT EX
WAL SRR T ERNAERE S R EHT
EAREBETEA ARKE,267,215,0007T (20214
128318 : AR#7,338,059,0007T) W& TRITE
THEHIER

FR AEEFE TIIREROVRITRERE

31 December

31 December

B AR EARIRTIREEE

Amount of undrawn banking facilities

2022 2021
20224 220214
12831H 12831H
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARETF T
50,000 280,000

34. PROVISION FOR RETIREMENT BENEFITS

4. BRIREFI

31 December 31 December

2022 2021

1220225 1220214

12H31H 12831H

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR T ARBEFT

Defined benefit obligations REBMEE 6,891 7,459
Less: Current portion of retirement benefits &, : JBREFIAI TR ENER (630) (670)
6,261 6,789

The Group and the Company provide certain of the eligible staff with
post-retirement benefits pursuant to a retirement benefit plan. The
plan is funded solely by the Group on an actual payment basis.

The latest actuarial valuation of the plan was carried out on 31
December 2022 by the Willis Towers Watson Company, using the
projected unit credit actuarial valuation method.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A TSR 5E

Year ended 31 December 2022

B ZE2022F12831HIEFE
34. PROVISION FOR RETIREMENT BENEFITS 34. BRIREFEE @
(continued)
The principal actuarial assumption used as at the end of the RREPRRMEBNEEBERRET
reporting period is as follows: W
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
20224 1220214
12H31H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%TFT AREFT
Discount rate ITIRE 2.75% 3.25%
A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumptions as at 31 FR2022F12831H  EARKRHNEEHK
December 2022 is shown below: REDNHRUT
Decrease in Increase in
net defined net defined
Increase in benefit Decrease in benefit
rate obligation rate obligation
AERMER REGHELE
L& 7 BERLD LR TR BEELE
Discount rate FIRE 0.25% (138) 0.25% 143
The sensitivity analysis above has been determined based on a TBAESMEREBETERRNERS
method that extrapolates the impact on net defined benefit obligation BAREBEENSEEHHATENETF
as a result of reasonable changes in key assumptions occurring at B BN S AMEE -

the end of the reporting period.

The total expenses recognised in the consolidated statement of profit REEEaRREEGEERARBRN
or loss and the consolidated statement of comprehensive income in BREETEIAEZHOT -

respect of the plan are as follows:

31 December 31 December
2022 2021
120224 20214
12H31H 12831H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETIT

Interest cost B AR 196 234
Net benefit expenses RN R 196 234
Recognised in finance costs = BN 196 234
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RAFsER R MIEE

Year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12831HIEFE

34. PROVISION FOR RETIREMENT BENEFITS

(continued)

34 RAEHEE @

The movements in the present value of the defined benefit

obligations are as follows:

REBRMEENRELZIUT :

2022 2021

20225 20214

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR T ARBEFT

At 1 January M1A1H 7,459 7,548

Interest cost FE A 196 234

Pension payments made BEfTEARE (76) (533)
Benefit expenses (reversed)/recognised in R EMh2mEUE #ER) R

other comprehensive income BEFIFEX (688) 210

At 31 December ®12831H 6,891 7,459

The movements in the defined benefit obligations and the fair value AEBHNETASHEELAAEBEED

of plan assets are as follows: wmr
2021 20214
Pension cost charged to proft or loss Remeasurement gains in ather comprehensive income
SABERRAEAA sARMRENGNEN 2R
Actuaria
changes Sub-total
Sub-fotal arising from included
included changes in in other
1 January Net in proft Bengfit financial  Experience  comprehensive 31 December
2021 interest orloss pad  assumptions  adjustments income 2021
i ey StARH
oot FABRN ZEMIELN 2ENEE g
1818 IEEE N5E BER BEET AEEE NGB 10831
RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEBTn  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARMTRm ARETn ARBTn ARETn
Defined beneftt obligations FERHEL 7,548 23 234 (33 210 = 210 7459
Beneft liabiity BH&E 7548 23 231 (33 210 = 210 7459
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A TSR 5E

Year ended 31 December 2022

EF2022F12831HILEE
34. PROVISION FOR RETIREMENT BENEFITS 34. BRAERIBHE @
(continued)
2022 2022
Pension cost charged to profit or loss Remeasurement gains in other comprehensive income
HARRHERFERE HARMRERGNEN R NE
Actuarial
changes Sub-total
Sub-total arising from included
included changes in in other
1 January Net in profit Benefit financial  Experience comprehensive 31 December
2022 interest or loss paid assumptions  adjustments income 2022
REHRR AR
1120225 tAREN EEMIELN EUEN  R02f
BB fEEE NHE  BfRR BB SRER N8 12A318
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AE%Fm  ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETn AREFR ARETR ARETR
Defined beneft oblgatons FERNER 7459 19% 19 1) (688) 5 (68) 6,801
Benet ity BHaR 7459 19% 19 1) (668) 5 (688) 6,801
35.1SSUED CAPITAL 35. B #1TRR 4
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
120225 20214
12831H 12831H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%TT ARETFT
Issued and fully paid: BEITREE
5,140,326,000 (31 December 2021: 5,140,326,0008% (20214
5,140,326,000) ordinary shares of 12831H : 5,140,326,000/%)
HK$0.10 each SREEC.I0ETZEER 514,033 514,033
Equivalent to RMB’000 FEARETT 460,153 460,153
During the year, there was no movement in issued capital. RERA BRITRAREREZE) -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A T5 R M5t

Year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12831HIEFE

36. RESERVES

37.

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements therein
for the current and prior years are presented in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on pages 98 to 99 of the financial
statements.

In accordance with the PRC Company Law, the PRC subsidiary
of the Group is required to allocate 10% of its profit after tax to
the statutory surplus reserve until such reserve reaches 50% of
the registered capital of the PRC subsidiary. Subject to certain
restrictions set out in the PRC Company Law, part of the statutory
surplus reserve may be converted to increase paid-up capital/issued
capital of the PRC subsidiary, provided that the remaining balance
after the capitalisation is not less than 25% of the registered capital.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS

(a) Major non-cash transactions
During the year, the Group had non-cash additions to the right-
of-use assets and lease liabilities of RMB33,365,000 (2021: non-
cash subtractions of RMB65,127,000) and RMB33,365,000
(2021: non-cash subtractions of RMB65,127,000), respectively,
in respect of lease arrangements for lands and buildings.

(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities

36.

37.

&
FEBRARR LEZ RHBEEEKRE
R BRRFEIBEQE 2R E )
KEH

BEBEPEAB L *EENTEMEAR
BIABHERRBANEZ10%EEER
AR ERARERTENB ARG
A2 250% - IRIFPE A B EFTEHZ
ETIRS B AERER AR AJ 855318
B ABNERER BETRA
EERCRHBFEABIONEMRREZ
25%°

meREERERMEE

(a) EXIERERS
RER RERB T RIEFTHWHEE
ZHDRNERREERIIEaES
JEIR S AN A R 1533,365,0007T (2021
F JERE D A ARTE65,127,000
7o) & A R #533,365,0007T (20214 © JF
HaR D AR KEE5,127,0007T) ©

MEEESFTEERENES

(b)

Loans from
Bank and fellow Interest Lease
other loans subsidiaries payable liabilities Total
RERZ
WEAR
RITREMER fEANER EfIFIR HEaR it
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETFT
At 1 January 2022 20221810 14,314,869 4,850,064 606,514 2,377,138 22,148,585
Changes from financing  RERER S MENEE
cash flows (1,450,587) 75,700 (748,215) (428,193) (2,551,295)
New lease WiHE - - - 1,816 1,816
Interest expense MEREY - - 906,750 143,560 1,050,310
Covid-19-related rent 2R B 7 A#ICovid-19
concessions from HEfsEE
lessors - - - (11,469) (11,469)
Reassessment and BN RBITRE RS
revision of lease terms - - - 43,018 43,018
Interest capitalised FEEA - - 81,345 - 81,345
At 31 December 2022 12022 12831H 12,864,282 4,925,764 846,394 2,125,870 20,762,310
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A TSR 5E

Year ended 31 December 2022
B ZE2022F12831HIEFE

37.NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 7. EZERERERMTE @
CASH FLOWS (continued)

(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities (b) MEEFBFIELESENES @
(continued)

Loans from
Bank and fellow Interest Lease
other loans subsidiaries payable liabilities Total
REEZ
HEAs
RITREMESR EYNEEN FERFIE HEak st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTT ARETT ARBTT ARETT ARETR

At 1 January 2021 20211818 14,342,459 4,052,843 385,006 2,596,177 21,376,575
Changes from financing  RERERETENEE

cash flows (27,590) 797,221 (825,880) (443,637) (499,336)
New lease i = = - 13,383 13,383
Interest expense SRS - - 986,998 159,471 1,146,469
Covid-19-related rent 2R 8 78 ABICovid-19 1R

concessions from BB

lessors - - - (10,342) (10,342)

Reassessment and B RETRERR

revision of lease terms - - - 62,086 62,086
Interest capitalised FEEARIL - - 60,300 - 60,300
At 31 December 2021 1820214128318 14,314,869 4,850,064 606,514 2,377,138 29,148,585
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12831HIEFE

37.NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS (continued)

(c) Total cash outflows for leases

The total cash outflow for leases included in the statement of
cash flows is as follows:

7.z HRERERME ®

() HERERHELE

SAARERERNEERERMHE
LN

2022 2021
20224 20214F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AB¥FT AREFT

Within operating activities R REN (6,728) (7,965)
Within financing activities RRIE RN (428,193) (443,637)
(434,921) (451,602)

38. COMMITMENTS

The Group had the following capital commitments at the end of the
reporting year:

38. &
KEBRBEFRBUTERAG !

31 December 31 December
2022 2021

20224 20214
12H31H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTFT AR®BTT

Contracted, but not provided for, Bt REFETA
in respect of land and buildings BRIEEE

3,010,278 3,081,988
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Year ended 31 December 2022
B ZE2022F12831HIEFE

39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES 39. Bl 533 5 B 4568

(a) In addition to transactions detailed in note 39(d) to the financial (a) =M BRILEF 75 3R &5 MY E39(d) Py 4t
statements, the Group had the following transactions with R REBNREABSETTT
related parties during the year: SR 5 -

2022 2021
2022 20214
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

(5 ARBTR AREBTT

Management fee income from the #&&H &S [EIREHY
operation of department stores: ~ EIEEIIA :
Wuxi Maoye Property Co., Ltd. EHREEEEBRAR
Shopping Centre Branch EMHRLD AT (i) & (v) 113 =

Promotion and advertising expenses S8Rk E &%
Shenzhen Shijin Business Consulting &3l &/ E40E R AT

Co., Ltd. (‘Shenzhen Shijin’) FEIt S ) (v 3,606 1,707
Maintenance expenses for elevators EHAEEEL H
Shenzhen Zhongzhao Building FINRIREFHEBRAT
Technology Co., Ltd. (] 2,054 -

Purchases of parts for elevators ~ BEE T4

Shenzhen Zhongzhao Building FINRIREFHEBRAR

Technology Co., Ltd. (] 1,932 -

Loans from: AUTEEEANER

Shenzhen Maoye Group FINREER () & (v) 831,000 773,000
Chongde Property Management SEMEER (FI)

(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. BERAE 0) 270,000 485,930
Shenzhen Oriental Times Industry FmRELRRES

Co., Ltd. BEERAT () 300,000 92,000
Chongaing Maoye Real Estate EBRXEMERRAR

Co., Ltd. (] - 33,870

1,401,000 1,384,800
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Year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12831HIEFE

39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES

(continued)

39. BB 75 32 5 B 45 BR (@)

(@) F 3 BRIL R #5 3Rk & M 5£39(d) Pt
R AEBBEBLETT T
N5 (@)

(a) In addition to transactions detailed in notes 39 (d) to the financial
statements, the Group had the following transactions with
related parties during the year: (continued)

2022 2021
20224 20214
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
i AEBFR AR¥EF T
Repayment of loans to: AUTEHEEEN
Shenzhen Maoye Group FINREER i & V) 782,000 165,000
Maoye Department Store Investment  REESREBERAT
Limited (ii) - 31,879
Chongde Property Management SEMEEE (FI)
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. BRAT () 201,300 346,130
Shenzhen Oriental Times Industry FHREERES
Co., Ltd. BEERAT () 342,000 50,000
Chongging Maoye Real Estate Co.,  EEXEMESRAT
Ltd. (i) - 33,870
1,325,300 626,879
Interest expense on loans from: RAUTEFEAERNFISHAS .
Shenzhen Maoye Group RINREER i) & V) 179,440 171,557
Maoye Group Limited REEERERAT 0] 9,868 9,403
Chongde Property Management SEMEEE (FI)
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. BRAF (] 4,289 849
Shenzhen Oriental Times Industry A RARRES
Co., Ltd. BXBRAT 0] 249 109
Chongaing Maoye Real Estate BEEXEMERRAR
Co., Ltd. () - 125
Maoye Department Store Investment  XEBSEREARRAT
Limited (ii) 27,690 27,215
221,536 209,258
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A TSR 5E

Year ended 31

December 2022

HE2022F12H31HIEEE

39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES

(continued)

(@ In

addition to transactions detailed in notes 39 (d) to the financial

statements, the Group had the following transactions with
related parties during the year: (continued)

39 Eﬁﬂﬁzﬁﬁé%;mn ?(4‘“)

(@) F 7 BRILR 55 ¥R & MY 5E39(d) P &t

R AEBREBSETTT
5 (@)

2022 2021
2022% 20214
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
BisE AEBFR ARBFT
Banking facilities guaranteed by: T?‘JEﬁHﬁ‘ﬁ?ﬁﬁﬂ'ﬁEﬁ'ﬁ?ﬁ :
Shenzhen Maoye Group RYNREER (i) & (vi) 2,102,000 1,556,000
Mr. Huang Mao Ru and Mrs. Huang ”“ﬂﬂf‘ﬁi&ﬁﬁﬁ?ﬁi
Jingzhang jointly and severally (F£ 5 R AEBY) (V) & (vi) 5,834,214 6,918,106
Xinghua Industrial METE (i) & (vi) - 100,000
Chongging Maoye Real Estate BEEREMERRRAT
Co., Ltd. () & (vi) 550,000 550,000
Chongde Property Management SEMEERE (R BRAF
(Shenzhen) Co., Lid. () & i) 200,000 -
Mr. Lin Zhen Xiong MEELEE (vi) & (vii 60,000 60,000
8,746,214 9,184,106

(vi)

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 F£E R %

They are fellow subsidiaries of the Company.
It is the immediate holding company of the Company.
Mr. Huang Mao Ru is a director of the Company.

The management fee income from the operation of a
department store was determined based on the underlying
contract as agreed between the Group and the fellow
subsidiary of the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, Maoye
Shangsha obtained loans from Shenzhen Maoye
Group amounting to RMB831,000,000 with an annual
interest rate of 4.75%, and repaid a principal amount of
RMB782,000,000.

Certain of the Group’s bank loans were guaranteed
by Shenzhen Maoye Group, Mr. Huang Mao Ru, Mrs.
Huang Jingzhang, Mr. Lin Zhen Xiong, Chongde Property
Management (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. and Chongging Maoye
Real Estate Co., Ltd.

(vi)

e YNSIES EE N NS
HARERABNEZERRAF
BRNMEERERBES-

EEREEMEINNEEEN
ARBAERLZARQRTRF M
B AT HEEM S ARETE

ﬁizozzﬁmﬂmatfﬁf

REBERFIREEEESR
AR 831,000,000 E = >
4. 75% M EF B WEE
B ARI782,000,0007C I A 4
g o

AEEETRITERT BRI
KE (EE) - =mRWSTE REF
LI -MEREE - RBYEE
2 (RY) BRABDKREERE
MEBRATHER-
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Year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12831HIEFE

39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES

(continued)

(a) In addition to transactions detailed in notes 39 (d) to the financial
statements, the Group had the following transactions with
related parties during the year: (continued)

(viil) Mr. Lin Zhen Xiong is the legal person of some subsidiaries.

(viii) Shenzhen Shijin is 100% wholly owned by Mr. Huang, Tony,
who is the son of Mr. Huang Mao Ru and the director of
Shenzhen Maoye Shangsha.

The related party transactions in respect of items 39(a)(viii) above
also constitute connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

(b) Outstanding balances with related parties:

Details of the Group’s outstanding balances with related parties
as at the end of the reporting period are included in notes 29
and 32 to the financial statements.

(c) Compensation of key management

39. FE 75 32 52 B4R (@)

(@) F 3 BRIL R #5 3Rk & M 5£39(d) Pt
R AEBBEBLETT T
N5 (@)

(vi) HMEBEERETHEBELTR
EHIA

(vii) RN S A EFHEIELE (FXW
EEZFRENREFENE
) EEHEANARC

3¢ E839(a) (Vi) TB B R B 75 22 5 TR 8
B EH iR B E14AE P E AR E
RAWIFERAER S o

(b) ELRAEKTSRIKRMEIBEER

o4 S5 [ 1 45 25 HE o SRR 75 R 18
BB RN MR RN 220k
320

() EEEEASFHM

2022 2021

20224 20214

RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFT AR®FT

Salaries and allowances e 2R 4,548 3,961
Retirement benefits BIARBH 210 156
4,758 4117

Further details of directors’ remuneration are included in note 8.
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Year ended 31 December 2022
B ZE2022F12831HIEFE

39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES 39. Bt 53 5 Bl45 68 (@)

(continued)

(d) The Group has rental contracts with five fellow subsidiaries of the d ZEBRCHAEEARBRHEBEA
Group. At the reporting date, the Group had total lease liabilities B EMHEEN -RIREA K&
with fellow subsidiaries under non-cancellable leases falling due REATBCHEEABRAKEB A
as follows: BlZzENIAAEaBEEBENT .

31 December 31 December
2022 2021

20224 20214
12H31H 12831H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREFIT

Lease liabilities — current HEsE—RIH 86,217 68,993
Lease liabilities — non-current HESE—IFFRNER 929,771 995,750
1,015,988 1,064,743
Under such rental contracts, the minimum lease payment BIEZEEESH NEANNRERA
during the year was RMB147,121,992 (31 December 2021: Et3A AR EE147,121,9927T (2021
RMB146,798,592). As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s right- F128310 | AR #146,798,5927T) ©
of use assets relating to such rental contracts amounted to $R2022F12831H  REEBRAZ
RMB1,121,891,447 (31 December 2021: RMB1,200,502,882). EHEANNERAEEEA AR

1,121,891,4477C (20215128318 :
AR #1,200,502,8827T) °
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Year ended 31 December 2022

HZE2022F12831HIEFE
40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 40. £RE T A48
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial RESHRSESHRTENKEEET]
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows: A
2022 20225
Flnanclal assets at FVPL
dMﬂmB’JﬁmﬂﬁE
Designated Equity Financial
as such Mandatorily investments assets at
upon initial designed designated amortised
recognition as such cost
o NIE7
Financial assets THEE MEEE  MEIER

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT Bttt AR¥ETR®

Equity investments designated at EEANANEBEFERR

FVOCI *=*§)ju+7\Hﬁﬂ ‘R
BnEE - - 1,101,520 - 1,101,520
Trade receivables Fguﬁ(%%ﬂlﬁ - - - 28,331 28,331
Financial assets included in SPATERIE HtE W IE
prepayments, other receivables REMBEENSRMEE
and other assets - - - 2,183,999 2,183,999
Financial assets at FVPL NanBEFTEEEEE)
ﬁ/\?amﬁién@ﬁ E 9,654 35,425 - - 45,079
Pledged deposits TEEER - - - 368,728 368,728
Cash and cash equivalents fﬁé&fﬁﬁf &Y - - - 556,293 556,293
9,654 35425 1,101,520 3,137,351 4,283,950
Financial liabilities at FVPL
RAnEEtEBHES
StABRENERERE
Financial
liabilities at
Held for amortised
trading cost Total
RAHEZ
Financial liabilities EHMEE FIEEE THEE g
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET® ARBFT ARBTw
Trade and bills payables BB ZHIEREE - 1,600,620 1,600,620
Financial liabilities included in DJr)\HﬂﬂJf NI K
other payables and accruals EstERNTREE - 10,219,834 10,219,834
Lease liabilities HEaE - 2,125,870 2,125,870
Interest-bearing bank loans and SHERITERREMMER
other borrowings - 12,864,282 12,864,282

- 26,810,606 26,810,606
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Year ended 31 December 2022

HE2022612A31HILFE
40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 40. =R THB S HE @)
(continued)
2021 20214
Financial assets at FVPL
UAnRBEAEEEES
SABENEHEE
Designated Equity Financial
assuch  Mandatorily  investments assets at
upon initial designed  designated amortised
recognition as such at FVOCI cost Total
BEA
YN
HERH
ZESTA
‘ Hi2H e
. e WEE AR
Financial assets TREE AEEE BtEE  #nkE SREE st

RMB'000 ~ RMB'000 ~ RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTT ARETT ARBTRT ARBTT ARETR

Equity investments designated at EEAUABEFEER

FVOCI EE AHMREREN
iR E - - 1,354,735 - 1,354,735
Trade receivables eI E Z A - - - 14,144 14,144
Financial assets included in SABMAZIE AMEREIE
prepayments, other receivables and  REMBEMNSHEE
other assets - - - 1,797,164 1,797,164
Loan to associates mEEABNER - - - 68,324 68,324
Financial assets at FVPL DAnBETEEEEE
STABENERMEE 149,474 277,054 - - 426,528
Pledged deposits THER - - - 147,114 147,114
Cash and cash equivalents ReERREEEY - - - 1,197,116 1,197,116
149,474 277,054 1,354,735 3,223,862 5,005,125
Financial liabilities
at FVPL
MNAnEEH=E
BESHA
BaleHan
Financial
Held liabilities at
for trading  amortised cost Total
i
AETEZ
Financial liabilities TRIBE RIEEE THasE 1t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREEFT ARET T
Trade and bills payables RN B S RIERER - 1,892,912 1,892,912
Financial liabilities included in ST AEME I FRIE R
other payables and accruals EstERANERmasE - 9,718,757 9,718,757
Lease liabilities HEAaR - 2377,138 2,377,138
Interest-bearing bank loans and FFREIRITTERKRAEMER
other borrowings - 14,314,869 14,314,869

S 28,303,676 28,303,676
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RAFsER R MIEE

Year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12831HIEFE

41.FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s financial
instruments, other than those with carrying amounts that reasonably
approximate to fair values, are as follows:

41. ﬁ@ﬂlﬂﬂ’ﬂ’&ﬁfﬁﬁ&’&ﬁ%fﬁ

(=R1

FEETHTA GREEELEZQAAEE
GEMAEERN REEELEZQARE
BT

Carrying amounts Fair values
REEBE AREE
EANDENET T 31 December EEREDEIETN Tl 31 December
2022 2021 2022 2021
20226 20214 20225 20214
12831H 12831H 12831H 12A31H
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ET AREFTT ARETT ARETT
Financial assets EHEE
Equity investments designated EEAUANEEHERR
at fair value through other SEst ALt Z2E =R
comprehensive income BakE 1,101,520 1,354,735 1,101,520 1,354,735
Financial assets at fair value through UAnBEFEEEED
profit or loss STABENEREE 45,079 426,528 45,079 426,528
1,146,599 1,781,263 1,146,599 1,781,263
Financial liabilities Et =l
Interest-bearing bank loans and HERITERREMER
other borrowings 12,864,282 14,314,869 12,864,282 14,314,869
12,864,282 14,314,869 12,864,282 14,314,869

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and cash
equivalents, pledged deposits, trade and bills receivables, trade
and bills payables, financial assets included in prepayments, other
receivables and other assets, financial liabilities included in other
payables and accruals, and amounts due from/to related parties
approximate to their carrying amounts largely due to the short term
maturities of these instruments.

The Group’s finance department headed by the finance manager
is responsible for determining the policies and procedures for
the fair value measurement of financial instruments. The finance
manager reports directly to the chief financial officer and the audit
committee. At each reporting date, the finance department analyses
the movements in the value of financial instruments and determines
the major inputs applied in the valuation. The valuation is reviewed
and approved by the chief financial officer. The valuation process
and results are discussed with the audit committee twice a year for
interim and annual financial reporting.
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BEENLER RehBEFEYN B
RIRER BB SRR BYEBZNIEA
R BRI ~ 5 AR TRIA ~ HEIRRRIE K
HthEENSMEE st ARMB M
ERESHERNESREEREY, Y
Mo mIE TER S BB R
BEmanBERAKREDEERS-

AEEMBHBPIEMHEENRETE
EEEARMERMIARABEFEN
RKREF MBEEEERYHBEN
Bt ZEERE -ASERSHHR M5B
BEDTEM I EEENES WEE
HETPRAINETEZHAE HERKER
HRBEBRMIE PR EE R
BN SFRARGFEZEGMMGEER
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Year ended 31 December 2022
B ZE2022F12831HIEFE

41.FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF METHTANARBERAREE

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 F£E R %

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included
at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a
current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or
liquidation sale. The following methods and assumptions were used
to estimate the fair values:

The fair values of interest-bearing bank and other borrowings have
been calculated by discounting the expected future cash flows using
rates currently available for instruments with similar terms, credit risk
and remaining maturities. The fair value of the liability portion of the
convertible bonds is estimated using an equivalent market interest
rate for a similar convertible bond.

The fair values of listed equity investments are based on quoted
market prices. The fair values of unlisted equity investments
designated at fair value through other comprehensive income have
been estimated using a market-based valuation technique based
on assumptions that are not supported by observable market
prices or rates. The valuation requires the directors to determine
comparable public companies (peers) based on industry, size,
leverage and strategy, and to calculate an appropriate price multiple,
such as price to book (“P/B”) multiple and price to earnings (“P/
E”) multiple, for each comparable company identified. The multiple
is calculated by dividing the enterprise value of the comparable
company by an earnings measure. The trading multiple is then
discounted for considerations such as illiquidity and size differences
between the comparable companies based on company-specific
facts and circumstances. The discounted multiple is applied to the
corresponding earnings measure of the unlisted equity investments
to measure the fair value. The directors believe that the estimated
fair values resulting from the valuation technique, which are recorded
in the consolidated statement of financial position, and the related
changes in fair values, which are recorded in other comprehensive
income, are reasonable, and that they were the most appropriate
values at the end of the reporting period.

The Group invests in unlisted investments, which represent wealth
management products issued by banks in Mainland China. The
Group has estimated the fair value of these unlisted investments by
using a discounted cash flow valuation model based on the market
interest rates of instruments with similar terms and risks.

&%k &)

FRca B FRHEN EREEKRE
BHARBEDNENRENRZTRXZE
FREEMZBM T AN EEERSIIR DL
THERBREARFERAEE !

stEEMMHMEMBN AR BERRR
BHRARRBEREEAEFREUERR
EERERGTNEMHARNTABRE
AR RETITIRAREG B - AR AT
BENaEHs AR BERREURR
RESFBERNEFRHGMERETESR

EHRERENAABERETSZRE
SR EEAULABESERHEE
SPAHMEEWEANR EHREREN
ARBEEBERHHHGEERM LR
R A7 PR R B E LR T LR
METHFE - HEEREFRETE R
B RRIER R RIBEE FJ LR AR AT
(B2 > WRtE—H AR I LEE A B 5
BEENERER HERE ((hARE)
BEERTERE ((MERE)) FH-ZEH
ERALERATNEEBERUBN G
EEFBE -XSBHARIRELQFS
EEERIERIMA RN T Z BARE)
MRREEREEZBRERTUFTER K
FIRBEEANIF LD RERERERE
BHNHEEUAEBAANBE-EFAR
SR EAGT M BN N R BEERME
ENEBERARBENCHREHMEEUY
EHNAABERABESHBESE  LER
ZEEEBATRESHREABEENE
=K

AEBBKREIF LHRE  BIRE MR
TETHNEMER ASEERAER
BREEURRRRERN TANTIHZHE
WITREEAERAGFRFIFLTR
BNAREE-
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HZE2022F12831HIEFE

41.FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Below is a summary of significant unobservable inputs to the
valuation of financial instruments together with a quantitative

N EMTANAARBERAANEE
[E 4% @

TR 20225 K 2021F12831H &
MTEGEMANERTTBRERHAE

sensitivity analysis as at 31 December 2022 and 2021: KEEBRHEDT -
Valuation Significant unobservable

technique input Range Sensitivity of fair value to the input
fh{ERA EARAHRRBAE &M ARBEEHBAENHRRE
Unlisted equity Valuation Average P/E multiple 2022%F: 5% (2021:5%) increase/decrease in
investments multiples of peers 17.48-32.18 multiple would result in
FLmEaERE HERH increase/decrease in fair value by
RMBS,349,000

FETHHEE

Average P/B multiple
of peers

EERZZLHE

Discount for lack

(2021: RMB1,583,000)

20214 BB LT, FFE5% (20214 : 5%)
11.53-265.58 BERNBELMD,H#D
AR 3,349,0007C

(20214 : AR #1,583,0007T)

2022%F: 5% (2021:5%) increase/decrease in
0.63-0.71 multiple would result in
increase/decrease in fair value by

RMB350,000

(2021: RMB3,777,000)

20214F: fEEEF/ TFE5% (20214 : 5%)
0.60-2.42 ERNAABELMHD
AR #350,0007T

(20214 : AR¥3,777,0007T)

20224F: 5% (2021:5%) increase/decrease in

of marketability ~ 10.00%-36.82% discount would result in

REp L H i REE TR

decrease/increase in fair value by

RMB654,000

(2021: RMB1,533,000)

20214 fEELLEFTFEE% (20214 : 5%)

17.51%-27.63% RERANBEEM,HD
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Year ended 31 December 2022
B ZE2022F12831HIEFE

41.FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

M. ERIANAABEERANEE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) =R 0]
Fair value hierarchy NREEER
The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement hierarchy of —El.: =7 E_ﬂ AEEEMTANARBES
the Group’s financial instruments: EE®R
Assets measured at fair value BATESENEE
As at 31 December 2022 1$202212831H
Fair value measurement using
AREESEER
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
. AERY EXTUHRRN
EETIZERE EXBAE BAE
Lgvel 1 Level 2 Level 3
E—1 B B=
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AE®TR  AR%TR  ARMFR
Financial assets at fair value 28
through profit or loss NEmMEE 35,425 - 9,654 45,079
Equity investments designated AUA A EESEAH
at fair value through other R EREN
comprehensive income 555,705 - 545,815 1,101,520
591,130 - 555,469 1,146,599
As at 31 December 2021 2021%12831H
Fair value measurement using
AREBEFERR
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
. TEEN EATIEE
BETSIRE BEXBAGE WEAE
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
51 EH F= Bt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEEFT ARBFT ARETFT AEETFT
Financial assets at fair value SEEHEE
through profit or loss N EHEE 417,053 = 9,475 426,528
Equity investments designated A EESERH
at fair value through other ZEWEN
comprehensive income 724,084 - 630,651 1,354,735
1,141,137 - 640,126 1,781,263

The Group did not have any financial liabilities measured at fair value
as at 31 December 2022 (31 December 2021: Nil).

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements
between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into and out of Level 3
for both financial assets and financial liabilities (2021: Nil).
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Year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12831HIEFE

42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise interest-bearing
bank loans, amounts due from/to related parties, and cash and cash
equivalents. The main purpose of these financial instruments is to
raise finance for the Group’s operations. The Group has various other
financial assets and liabilities such as trade receivables and trade
payables, which arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are
interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and
equity price risk. The board of directors reviews and agrees policies
for managing each of these risks and they are summarised below.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates
relates primarily to the Group’s debt obligations with floating interest
rates.

The effective interest rates and terms of repayment of the interest-
bearing bank loans of the Group are set out in note 33 above.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably
possible change in the RMB interest rate, with all other variables
held constant, of the Group’s profit before tax (through the impact of
floating rate borrowings) and the Group’s equity during the year.

42. B E R EIE B EMBER

FEBNIEEMITEAESERITE
R FEUFEAT R R S RIE U R IR & K
ReFBY ZFEMIANTIELN
ERTEENKEXBEEET A&
B BEEWE 5 IR EN B 7 IAT
NS EHEMEMEEREREERE
EEEERES-

FEENERMIAMEEZTEZREE
EAREEINEREREERRE RE
MERMRERR EFEBZNTE
EEREREBRBR IEFBRBEHAL
Mo

2R
AEBEAT T BUEARERTHFREH
EEAERN TR RS A -

AEBEFERITETNERANERER
EFRE R EXXHIsE33 0

TRIVTIN A BFERE BRI AT
(BBRFIEERNTE) REAEEER

EFMERMEBEERTENBERTHA

RENERNEERISEEBHERAE -

Increase/
Increase/ (decrease) Increase/
(decrease) in profit (decrease)
in basis points before tax in equity”
HEm/ PR AF Rz,
(R) @m, Geb) (R~
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETTT ARETT
31 December 2022 20224%12831H
RMB AR 100 (235,095) -
RMB AR (100) 235,095 -
31 December 2021 20214%12831H
RMB ARKE 100 (246,426) -
RMB PN (100) 246,426 -

*

Excluding retained profits
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 42 AR EEBEMNEE @
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AND POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currency risk

The Group’s exposure to foreign currency risk primarily relates to the
Group’s foreign interest-bearing bank borrowings, the currencies of
which are different from the functional currency.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of the
reporting period to a reasonably possible change in the United States
dollar exchange rates, with all other variables held constant, of the
Group’s profit before tax (arising from United States dollar and RMB
denominated financial instruments).

S s R B

AEBZEBSNE R T B R AERE
SINERIRTTERAR ZEEBNRAHE
EEER A EIEEHE-

TR S AR A E B R A0 B
EAERMBERFTAENBE R TEE
TERGEA IS RHUETRA
REHENSMTANSRE-

Increase/
Increase/ (decrease)
(decrease) in profit
in US$ rate before tax
ETER PRI AIF)
EF 7 (CFR)  3Em GRL
% RMB’000
ARBFT
2022 20225
If RMB weakens against the WARERIETERE
United States dollar (5%) 119
If RMB strengthens against the MARBERETHE
United States dollar 5% (119)
2021 20214
If RMB weakens against the MARBERETERE
United States dollar (5%) 140
If RMB strengthens against the MARBRETHE
United States dollar 5% (140)

Credit risk

The Group’s sales of merchandise are mainly on a cash basis. For
credit sales, the Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties. In addition, receivable balances are monitored on
an ongoing basis and the Group’s exposure to bad debts is not
significant.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12831HIEFE

42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The tables below show the credit quality and the maximum exposure
to credit risk based on the Group’s credit policy, which is mainly
based on past due information unless other information is available
without undue cost or effort, and year-end staging classification as at
31 December. The amounts presented are gross carrying amounts

for financial assets.

As at 31 December 2022

12-month
ECLs
+Z{EREH
EEEE

Stage 1

- Rlo124
RMB’000
AR®TT

42. A5 E R EIE B EMBER @

EEREE @
RAMLORFRIEERTLE
TRETK1I2AIBERAEREER
R E2ENBEREER BRIFEHEA
B2 R A B RE ) BN ] ARy H M E K 7]
B SHNEEERERRRAREEERMK
OKRERMBEDE-FREF AT/
EEMNREEE.

#2022%12831H

Lifetime ECLs

AEAEREBRESSE
Simplified
Stage 2 Stage 3  approach Total
FoEER FSRE 6% st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AEETRT ARBTR ARBTRT ARETET

Trade receivables® e B 5 08 - - - 28,331 28,331
Financial assets included in EIDNSEINERER

prepayments, other receivables HittEWIER

and other assets HthEENERHEE

- Normal** —[Eg~ 1,897,665 - - - 1,897,665

- Doubtful*™* — ] e 286,334 - - - 286,334
Pledged deposits BIEAER

— Not yet past due — M R AR 368,728 - - = 368,728
Cash and cash equivalents RERREEEY

- Not yet past due —H AR 556,293 - - - 556,293

3,109,020 - - 28,331 3,137,351
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk (continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging (continued)

As at 31 December 2021

42. A5 E R EIE B EMBER @

EERRE @
BAMI R R 748 (B
20215E12831H

12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
+-EAEH
FEEE AEREREREERE
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
F—FEE S REER FMEEL [ S
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARKETR ARETT ARBTR ARETR
Loans to associates mEERARER 68,324 - - - 68,324
Trade receivables® fEW B 5 FuE - = S 14,144 14,144
Financial assets included in STATBARIE
prepayments, other receivables and ~ EMIERFIER
other assets HthEENEREE
- Normal* —IEE™ 1,532,196 - - - 1,532,196
- Doubtful™* —BJ A 264,968 - - - 264,968
Pledged deposits BIEEER
— Not yet past due — R 147,114 - - = 147 114
Cash and cash equivalents RERREEEY
— Not yet past due — R 1,197,116 - - - 1,197,116
3,209,718 - - 14,144 3,223,862

to the financial statements.

ke

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure to credit
risk arising from trade receivables are disclosed in note 28 to the

financial statements.

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 F£E R %

For trade receivables to which the Group applies the simplified approach for
impairment, information based on the provision matrix is disclosed in note 28

The credit quality of the financial assets included in prepayments, other
receivables and other assets is considered to be “normal” when they are not
past due and there is no information indicating that the financial assets had a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition. Otherwise, the credit
quality of the financial assets is considered to be “doubtful”.

Y RAERERBILEETRETLHEKRE
ZRIAMES > BN BEERENENINFBR
RITEE28INEE ©

o SPATRI IR EMEWGRIE R Bt E AR
TREEFIRAHEEENBETEHERE
ZREVSEDLREEE EARRERER
BRIER) B ZFTMEENEEEER
WARAEIRE ©
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MU B — 25 BC BRI Y X281 BR
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HZE2022F12831HIEFE

42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 42. R EIEBEMER @

AND POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk
The Group’s policy is to maintain sufficient cash and cash equivalents

and have available funding through bank and other borrowings to
meet its working capital requirements.

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using a recurring
liquidity planning tool. This tool considers the maturity of both its
financial instruments and financial assets (e.g., trade receivables) and
projected cash flows from operations.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at the end
of the reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted
payments, was as follows:

On demand
BEX
RMB’000
ARETT

BN E R
AEBNBRRBERTERERREE
BY wEARTRAEMEBRLUS RS
EREEEARENR.

FEBRBEBMERDESHE AL
EESSERNER- - ILRTRASES
MIAREREE (FIMEWEZRE)
WEMBERREEEHNASFRER

=
£E-°

RI|EMR > BERSAOMERMIROMB
TREENFEBERNT :

2022
20224
Less than
1 year Over 1 year Total
—FR —FE)E s
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ETT ARETTT ARETT

Lease Liabilities HEaR - 318,115 1,807,755 2,125,870
Trade and bills payables ENEZRIEREE - 1,260,158 340,462 1,600,620
Contract liabilities, deposits received, aNaR BlEe-

accruals and other payables e &R R EMEN TS - 6,103,662 4,116,172 10,219,834
Interest-bearing bank and other SHERTERREMER

borrowings (excluding lease liabilities) raEHEa®) - 7,374,274 7,300,120 14,674,394

- 15,056,209 13,564,509 28,620,718

2021
202145
Less than

On demand 1 year Over 1 year Total

BER —FR —ENE 4st

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARETT ARET T ARETFT

Lease Liabilities HE&RE - 276,666 2,100,472 2,377,138

Trade and bills payables ENEZTERER = 1,455,981 436,931 1,892,912

Contract liabilities, deposits received, aNaR elEs,

accruals and other payables fEstE AR AMELRIE - 9,718,757 - 9,718,757
Interest-bearing bank and other SREBTERREMER

borrowings (excluding lease liabilities) FoiEHEER) - 6,925,418 9,639,044 16,564,462

18,376,822 12,176,447 30,653,269
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Year ended 31 December 2022

B ZE2022F12831HIEFE
42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 42 AR EEE IR B EMEER @)
AND POLICIES (continued)
Equity price risk BB %
Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values of equity securities B& 18 /2 B 2 45 R B 15 BUK T K (@ 7l 58
decrease as a result of changes in the level of equity indices and SFEEEFENNRAZSLAAEBET
the value of individual securities. The Group is exposed to equity BER - AEEEHENKRERRMIES
price risk arising from equity investments designated at fair value EEABUARABESFEEEEFHFT AR
through other comprehensive income (note 24) and individual equity teERENERLE (324) RUA
investments included in financial assets at fair value through profit or nNEBEFEEHEH I ABENEME
loss (note 24). The Group’s listed equity investments are listed on the ENENERIEE (5E24) - KEED
Shenzhen and Shanghai stock exchanges and are valued at quoted I ERERNFINR LEESERZM
market prices at the end of the reporting period. L RER SRR M EE o
The market equity indices for the following stock exchanges, at the REARBARSHANRT S HEXER
close of business of the nearest trading day in the year to the end of R4S REF > THEHRZZ AN T iH R
the reporting period, and their respective highest and lowest points EEREZEREAN RS RREE
during the year were as follows: NI
Year ended Year ended
LYY [T W et o Yal 31 December 31 December
2022 2022 2021 2021
#HE20226F HE20215
20224 12A31H 20214 12H31H
128318 LLERE 12A31H IFFE
High/low High/low
5 /1& &/ 1
Shenzhen - A Share Index - AR 2067  2,179/2,029 2648  2,691/2,229
Shanghai - A Share Index LiE-AREH 3,089  3,096/3,082 3640  3732/3313
Capital management BEXER
The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are to AEBEATENTEZEEZAEREH
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and to FagnNEa IR cERNERLEE
maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and UERHHEBR U ARREERAEE
maximise shareholders’ value.
The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments REFBBRBLER INEE U KBRE
to it in light of changes in economic conditions and the risk ENRBHMEIEAREERRE -5
characteristics of the underlying assets. To maintain or adjust the HRNAREAREE AEBFRKRAE
capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment to TN FRENRKRE BREREEAR
shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The BT - AEBRZEMINEBIEME
Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements. BEARRERR B E20225F 520214
No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for 1283 1HIEFER BEAEERE K
managing capital during the years ended 31 December 2022 and RREFLEELERESo
2021.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A T5 IR AR 5L

Year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12831HIEFE

42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 42. R EIEBEMER @

AND POLICIES (continued)

Capital management (continued)

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt
divided by capital plus net debt. Net debt is calculated as lease
liabilities plus interest-bearing bank loans and other borrowings
(other than convertible bonds) less cash and cash equivalents and
pledged deposits. Capital includes the equity attributable to owners
of the parent. The Group’s policy is to keep the gearing ratio at a
reasonable level. The gearing ratios as at 31 December 2022 and
2021 were as follows:

BEXREIE @
AEERBEASBILEREETEAR  Z
LRI EIE SRR U B AN L (EIE 558
ZHstE -FEIEFERAEAGME
IRITERREMER GReTRRESIN
BREERBEBY RERIFEFENR
H-EAGESATHEBS ABRGER &
EENEREREREBILEHERTRSG
IR KF o jR20224F 720215 12H31H
MNEXREBLEERT !

31 December

31 December

2022 2021

20224 20214

12831H 12H31H

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETFT AE®BTFT

Lease liabilities HE&E 2,125,870 2,377,138
Interest-bearing bank loans and other HREIRITERREHMER

borrowings 12,864,282 14,314,869
Less: Cash and cash equivalents and BCRERIBESEEMR

pledged deposits BRFEFER (925,021) (1,344,230)

Net debt BIEFE 14,065,131 15,347,777

Equity attributable to owners of the parent ~ &ATIHEA AEIEET 13,824,204 13,715,262

Adjusted capital KBRE R 13,824,204 13,715,262

Capital and net debt BAKRGIEFEE 27,889,335 29,063,039

Gearing ratio EAREBIEE 50% 53%

43.FINANCIAL GUARANTEE CONTRACTS 43. U HBEREL

Guarantees amounting to RMB510,888,600 (2021: RMB515,387,800)
are given to banks with respect to mortgaged loans procured by the
purchasers of the Group’s properties. Such guarantees will be released
by banks upon the issuance of the real estate ownership certificates
to the purchasers or the satisfaction of the mortgaged loans by the
purchasers, whichever is earlier. In the opinion of directors of the
Company, the fair value of the financial guarantee contracts is not
significant.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A TSR 5E

Year ended 31 December 2022
B ZE2022F12831HIEFE

44. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of the Company
at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

4. Z AT BIRRER

BB RARBREBRYBERAROH
KA ;

31 December

31 December

2022 2021
20224 20214
12831H 12831H
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT ARBEFT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries KRB ABZIRE 146,529 135,455
CURRENT ASSETS MEEE
Prepayments and other receivables B R IB K A FE W IE 2,284 104,908
Dividend receivable FEULES B 1,234,902 1,140,275
Due from subsidiaries FEUR S B8 A Bl 7R IR 762,840 704,386
Due from related parties JFE U e Bt 5 =R 1B 27,864 25,729
Cash and cash equivalents REMRIREEEY 1,468 2,401
Total current assets RN EARRE 2,029,358 1,977,699
CURRENT LIABILITIES mEaE
Other payables and accruals Hih I RIB R BT & A 3,068 2,785
Dividend payable FE(TAE B 27 25
Due to subsidiaries FEAIH B A Bl IR 813,550 727,309
Due to the immediate holding company %ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ&@ﬁ?ﬂlﬁ 639,852 559,718
Interest-bearing bank loans and T EIRITERRHMER
other borrowings 74,214 24,474
Total current liabilities M =R ET R 1,530,711 1,314,311
NET CURRENT ASSETS MENBEREE 498,647 663,388
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT HEERRHER
LIABILITIES 645,176 798,843
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBMAR
Interest-bearing bank loans and SFERITERREMER
other borrowings - 63,631
Total non-current liabilities JERENE(ELERE - 63,631
Net assets BEZE 645,176 735,212
Equity B
Issued capital EETRA 460,153 460,153
Reserves (note) 1 (M50 185,023 275,059
Total equity T ARER 645,176 735,212

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 F£E R %

MAOYE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED M2 EEZERERAT 241



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A T5 IR AR 5L

Year ended 31 December 2022

EZFE2022F12A31HILEE
44. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 44. X R E BB AR R TR (@)
COMPANY (continued)
Note: BisE
A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: KARABBEESMT -
Share Capital Exchange
premium redemption Contributed  fluctuation  Accumulated
account reserve surplus reserve losses Total
R SMEHE
RIPRER fhts BRRR s SR 45t
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB’000
ARETRT ARETRT ARETR ARET: ARETRT AR¥TR
Balance at 1 January 2021 202151 B1 B4 ER 1,631,103 21,770 152,671 (540,589) (948,301) 322,654
Total comprehensive loss for the year FREEBELEE - - - (24,100) (23,495) (47,595)
At 31 December 2021 120214128318 1,631,103 27,770 152,671 (564,689) (974,796) 275,059
Total comprehensive loss for the year FRNR2EBELESR - - - 56,491 (146,527) (90,036)
At 31 December 2022 120226128318 1,631,103 27,770 152,671 (508,198) (1,118,323) 185,023
The Company’s contributed surplus represents the excess of the fair KA BB BEREFTIN BB A B R ARE
value of the shares of the subsidiaries acquired over the previous EBBAARRIRMBEITZRDBEREZZE
nominal value of the Company'’s shares issued in exchange therefor. e
45. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 45. M B IR RAVHL A
The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by Eﬁ\%%%&%aﬁﬁ’:\gOZSfESﬁ AHEEEE
the board of directors on 24 March 2023. iR IR T
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